
Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 

participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours 

prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

July 28, 2021 

Page 1 of 3 

City Council Meeting 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 33 SOUTH MAIN STREET, COLFAX, CA 

 Mayor  Sean Lomen   Mayor Pro Tem Trinity Burruss 

Councilmembers  David Ackerman  Joe Fatula  Marnie Mendoza 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

July 28, 2021 

Regular Session:  6:00PM 

This meeting will be held at Colfax City Hall, 33 South Main Street, along with an option to 

join via zoom if preferred: 
Join via ZOOM on a computer or mobile device by visiting  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81933345389 

Dial in by calling one of the numbers listed below and enter the Webinar ID: 

819 3334 5389 

1 (669) 900-6833   1 (346) 248-7799   1 (312) 626-6799 

1 (929) 205-6099  1 (253) 215-8782   1 (301) 715-8592 

Or join via Facebook Live on our City of Colfax page: City of Colfax California 

Submit public comments to the City Clerk via email at city.clerk@colfax-ca.gov, by mail to PO Box 702, Colfax 

CA 95713, or drop them off in the office at 33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 95713 by 4pm on the day of the meeting. 

Comments received will be submitted to Council and made part of the record. 

1 CLOSED SESSION (No Closed Session)  

2 OPEN SESSION 

2A. Call Open Session to Order 

2B. Pledge of Allegiance 

2C. Roll Call 

2D. Approval of Agenda Order 
This is the time for changes to the agenda to be considered including removal, postponement, or change to the agenda sequence. 

Recommended Action:  By motion, accept the agenda as presented or amended. 

3 AGENCY REPORTS 

3A. Placer County Sheriff 

3B. CHP  

3C. Placer County Fire Department 

4 PRESENTATION (No Presentations) 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81933345389


Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 

participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours 

prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

July 28, 2021 

Page 2 of 3 

5 PUBLIC HEARING   

Notice to the Public: City Council, when considering a matter scheduled for hearing, will take the following actions: 

1. Presentation by Staff

2. Open the Public Hearing

3. Presentation, when applicable, by Applicant

4. Accept Public Testimony

5. When applicable, Applicant rebuttal period

6. Close Public Hearing (No public comment is taken, hearing is closed)

7. Council comments and questions

8. City Council Action

Public Hearings that are continued will be so noted. The continued Public Hearing will be listed on a subsequent council 

agenda and posting of that agenda will serve as notice. 

5A. 2021-2029 Housing Element (pages 4-175)

Presentation: Emmanuel Ursu, Planning Director 

Recommendation: Conduct a Public Hearing for Resolution __-2021 adopting an addendum to the 

General Plan Environmental Impact Report and adopting the 2021- 2029 Housing Element Update of 

the General Plan and authorize staff to submit the Housing Element to CA Dept of Housing and 

Community Development for certification. 

6 CONSENT CALENDAR 

Matters on the Consent Calendar are routine in nature and will be approved by one blanket motion with a Council vote. No 

discussion of these items ensues unless specific items are pulled for discussion and separate action.  If you wish to have an item 

pulled from the Consent Agenda for discussion, please notify the Mayor. 

Recommended Action:  Approve Consent Calendar 

6A. 

6B. 

6C. 

6D. 

6E. 

Minutes (pages 176-183)

Recommendation: By Motion, approve the Colfax City Council minutes of 6/23/2021 and 

7/14/2021. 

Cash Summary - June 2021 (pages 184-194)

Recommendation: Accept and File. 

Quarterly Investment Report – Quarter ended 06/30/2021 (pages 195-204)

Recommendation: Accept and File. 

FY2021-2022 Personnel Handbook and Compensation Updates (pages 205-208)

Recommendation: Information Only. 

Caltrans Sustainable Communities Grant – Agreement Authority (pages 209-210)

Recommendation: By Resolution __-2021 authorize the City Manager to execute all restricted grant 

agreements and any amendments with the California Department of Transportation for the City of 

Colfax Complete Street Plan. 

*** end of consent calendar *** 



Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 

participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours 

prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

July 28, 2021 

Page 3 of 3 

7 PUBLIC COMMENT 

The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and issues discussed at 

committee meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues. If a member of the 

Council prefers formal action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be placed on a future Council 

meeting agenda. 

8 COUNCIL AND STAFF 

The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and issues discussed at 

committee meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues. If a member of the 

Council prefers formal action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be placed on a future Council 

meeting agenda. 

8A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items – All Councilmembers

8B. City Operations Update – City Manager 

9 COUNCIL BUSINESS 

Homelessness Ad hoc Committee (page 211)

Presentation: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Recommendation: Discuss and consider establishing a Homelessness Ad hoc Committee to represent 

Colfax on the Placer County Homelessness Regional Workshop Group. 

10 GOOD OF THE ORDER 

Informal statements, observation reports and inquiries regarding the business of the City may be presented by council members 

under this agenda item or requests for placement of items of interest on a future agenda.  No action will be taken. 

11 ADJOURNMENT 

I, Amy Lind, Interim City Clerk for the City of Colfax, declare that this agenda was posted at Colfax City 

Hall and Colfax Post Office. The agenda is also available on the City website at http://colfax-ca.gov/ 

 ____________________________ 
Amy Lind, Interim City Clerk 

Administrative Remedies must be exhausted prior to action being initiated in a court of law.  If you challenge City Council action in court, you may be 

limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at a public hearing described in this notice/agenda, or in written correspondence delivered to 

the City Clerk of the City of Colfax at, or prior to, said public hearing. 

http://colfax-ca.gov/


City of Colfax 
Staff Report July 28, 2021 2021-2029 Housing Element Update 

Staff Report to City Council 
FOR THE JULY 28, 2021 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
Prepared by: Emmanuel Ursu, Planning Director 
Subject: 2021-2029 Housing Element  

Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A: √ Funded: Un-funded: Amount: Fund(s): 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Conduct a Public Hearing for Resolution __-2021 adopting an 
addendum to the General Plan Environmental Impact Report and adopting the 2021- 2029 
Housing Element Update of the General Plan and authorize staff to submit the Housing 
Element to CA Dept of Housing and Community Development for certification. 

Summary/Background 
The Housing Element is one of the state-mandated chapters (elements) of the City’s General Plan 
and is required by State law to be updated no later than September 10, 2021 (including the 120-
day grace period).  In March 2020, the City entered into contract with PlaceWorks to prepare a 
comprehensive update of the entire General Plan, including the Housing Element.   

The General Plan is a policy document that establishes a long-term vision for the future of the city 
with goals, objectives, policies, and standards for development regarding the distribution of land 
and its type and intensity of use, both public and private.  Housing Element law requires cities and 
counties to adequately plan to meet their existing and projected housing needs for all segments of 
the community, including their share of the regional housing need.  Housing Elements are required 
to be updated every eight (8) years, unlike the rest of the General Plan, which typically has a 20-
year planning horizon. Lastly, the Housing Element is subject to review by the CA Department of 
Housing and Community Development (HCD) for compliance with the requirements of state law.  

Cities without HCD certified Housing Elements are (1) required to prepare an update to their 
Housing Element every four years instead of every eight years; (2) ineligible for state funding for 
many economic development and transportation programs; and (3) exposed to legal challenge from 
housing advocates and developers that could result in court orders for compliance, suspension of 
local control on building and zoning, and possible exposure to paying plaintiffs’ attorney’s fees.   

Update of the Housing Element was initiated in August 2020 with outreach to nine community 
organizations and consultations with representatives of the four organizations that responded to the 
outreach.  Prior to preparing the Draft Housing Element, a widely publicized public workshop was 
held in November 2020.  Informed by the input received through the public outreach process, the 
City’s consultants prepared a draft Housing Element which was made available to the public in 
March 2021 and then submitted to HCD in April 2021. HCD provided a “findings” letter outlining 
deficiencies in the draft Housing Element that are to be addressed prior to City adoption and 
submittal to HCD for certification. Through an iterative process with multiple consultations with 
HCD, the final Draft Housing was prepared and is before the City Council for adoption.    

Item 5A

4



City of Colfax 
Staff Report July 28, 2021 2021-2029 Housing Element Update 

Discussion 
The Housing Element is based on six goals that provide direction and guidance for meeting the 
City’s housing needs over the next eight years, in compliance with the mandates of state law: 
1. Provide housing opportunities and accessibility for all community residents,
2. Remove constraints that discourage the production of affordable housing,
3. Provide and maintain an adequate supply of sites for the development of new affordable

housing,
4. Preserve, rehabilitate, and enhance existing housing and neighborhoods,
5. Promote and affirmatively further fair housing opportunities throughout the community for all

persons, and

6. Encourage energy efficiency and conservation in residential development.

Based on Department of Finance projections, HCD assigns each region in the state a housing 
growth allocation for the 8-year Housing Element planning cycle.  The Sacramento Area Council 
of Governments (SACOG) received an allocation of 153,512 dwelling units for the period between 
2021 and 2029.  Through a process set forth in state law, each city and county receive a “fair 

share” of the Regional Housing Need Allocation (RHNA), including housing affordable to 
moderate-, low- and very low-income households.  The RHNA for the City of Colfax is 97 units 
distributed across the income categories as shown in Table 1. 

To demonstrate compliance with the requirement to accommodate affordable housing, the law 
provides two options: (1) describe market demand and trends, financial feasibility, and recent 
development experience; or (2) utilize default density standards deemed adequate under state law 
to meet the appropriate zoning test. According to state law, the default density standard for the 
City of Colfax is 20 dwelling units per acre.  Existing zoning at the default density is relied upon in 
the Housing Element to demonstrate compliance with the affordable housing allocation.  

As shown in Table 1, the Housing Element demonstrates that adequate land area exists in the City 
of Colfax under existing zoning to accommodate 269 units, a surplus of 172 units above the City’s 
RHNA with surplus in each income category.   

Table 1: City of Colfax RHNA, 2021-2029 

Income Category RHNA (Units) Site Capacity 
under existing zoning 

Surplus 

Very low income 17 63 35 
Low income 11 
Moderate income 21 69 48 
Above moderate income 48 137 89 
Total 97 269 172 

No General Plan Land Use Designation changes or Zoning Map changes are necessary to 

Item 5A

5



City of Colfax 
Staff Report July 28, 2021 2021-2029 Housing Element Update 

accommodate the RNHA however, amendments to the zoning code are required to implement the 
following nine Implementation Measures of the Housing Element: 

Table 2: Implementation Measures that Require Amendment of Zoning Code 

 

No. Implementation Measure 
6.7 Density Bonus. Amend the Zoning Ordinance to comply with State density bonus 

law (Government Code Section 65915, as revised). Promote the density bonus 
through informational brochures that will be displayed at the City’s Planning 
Department. 

6.8 Low-Barrier Navigation Centers. Amend the Zoning Ordinance and make revisions, 
if necessary, to allow low-barrier navigation centers for the homeless, per Government 
Code Section 65662. 

6.9 Supportive Housing. Amend the Zoning Ordinance to allow for the approval of 100 
percent affordable developments that include a percentage of supportive housing units, 
either 25 percent or 12 units, whichever is greater, to be allowed without a conditional 
use permit or other discretionary review in all zoning districts where multifamily and 
mixed-use development is permitted, consistent with Government Code Section 
65651. 

6.10 Employee Housing. Amend the Zoning Ordinance to treat employee/farmworker 
housing that serves six or fewer persons as a single-family structure and permit it in 
the same manner as other single-family structures of the same type within the same 
zone across all zones that allow single-family residential uses. Treat 
employee/farmworker housing consisting of no more than 12 units or 36 beds as an 
agricultural use and permit it in the same manner as other agricultural uses in the same 
zone, in compliance with the California Employee Housing Act (Health and Safety 
Code Sections 17021.5 and 17021.6). 

6.11 Housing for Extremely Low-Income Households. Amend the Zoning Ordinance to 
define and allow single-room occupancy units (SRO) in the R-M zone with a 
conditional use permit. In addition, to help meet the needs of extremely low-income 
households, the City will prioritize funding and/or offer financial incentives or 
regulatory concessions to encourage the development of housing types affordable to 
extremely low-income households, such as SROs, multifamily units, and supportive 
housing, to reduce their displacement risk.   

6.12 Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs). ADUs are a mechanism through which smaller, 
more affordable housing units can be added to the housing stock to reduce 
displacement risk for low-income households, seniors, and other special needs groups. 
The City will amend the Zoning Ordinance to comply with Government Code Section 
65852.2, concerning ADUs.  The City shall also incentivize and encourage ADUs 
through public education, development fee reductions and/or waivers, and construction 

Item 5A

6



City of Colfax 
Staff Report July 28, 2021 2021-2029 Housing Element Update 

In addition to the zoning code changes outlined above, the Housing Element includes 13 additional 
Implementation Measures that require action by the City as described in Section 6.6 of the 2021-
2029 Housing Element.   

Environmental Review 
In compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines section 15164, 
an addendum to the General Plan Environmental Impact Report (EIR) (SCH No. 1998072025) was 
prepared for the 2021-2029 Housing Element. The proposed 2021-2029 Housing Element was 
evaluated and found not to trigger any of the conditions in CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 that 
would require the preparation of a subsequent EIR.  There are no substantial changes in 
circumstances, and the proposed Housing Element consists entirely of land uses permitted by 
housing sites’ existing General Plan land use designations and zoning and represents no change 
from the impacts that were assumed and analyzed by the General Plan EIR.  

Attachments 
1. Resolution __-2021

Exhibit 1 - General Plan EIR Addendum
Exhibit 2 - 2021-2029 Housing Element Update

2. PowerPoint Presentation

resource tools with an emphasis on promoting ADU construction in areas of high 
opportunity to encourage housing mobility options. 

6.13 Residential Care Facilities. Amend the Zoning Ordinance to establish a ministerial 
permit process for residential care facilities for seven or more persons and ensure these 
facilities are only subject to those restrictions that apply to other residential uses of the 
same type in the same zone. The City will also remove the 12- person maximum 
capacity requirement and ensure all requirements are consistent with State Law. 
Residential care facilities are still subject to state licensing requirements.  

6.14 Parking Standards. The City will review and revise as needed, current requirements 
for parking requirements for emergency shelters to ensure that parking standards are 
sufficient to accommodate all staff, provided standards do not require more parking for 
emergency shelters than other residential or commercial uses. 

6.16 Zoning and General Plan Consistency. To ensure maximum General Plan Land Use 
densities are obtainable, the City will review and revise the per unit lot area 
requirement to be 3,000 square feet in the RM-1 zone and 1,500 square feet in the RM-
2 zone.  

Item 5A

7



City of Colfax  
Resolution __-2021 2021-2029 Housing Element Update 

 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 
Resolution № __-2021 

 

ADOPTING AN ADDENDUM TO THE GENERAL PLAN ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
REPORT FOR THE 2021-2029 HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE AND AMENDING THE 

GENERAL PLAN BY ADOPTING THE 2021-2029 HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 65302 of the California Government Code, the City of 
Colfax has prepared the 2021-2029 Housing Element Update as one of the mandatory elements 
of the General Plan; and, 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Housing Element is to encourage the provision of an 
adequate and diverse supply of safe and affordable housing in all communities consistent with 
Statewide housing goals; and, 

WHEREAS, the Housing Element includes an identification and analysis of existing and 
projected housing needs and a statement of goals, policies, quantified objectives, and scheduled 
programs for the preservation, improvement, and development of housing, pursuant to California 
Government Code Section 65580; and, 

WHEREAS, prior to preparing the 2021-2029 Housing Element, the City solicited input 
from community groups and the public, and held a public workshop; and, 

WHEREAS, the City made available the Draft 2021 -2029 Housing Element for public 
review and comment prior to transmitting the draft to the State Housing and Community 
Development Department (HCD) for a 60-day review and comment period; and, 

WHEREAS, comments were received from both the public and HCD and appropriate 
changes incorporated into the document; and, 

WHEREAS, in a letter dated May 28, 2021, HCD notified the City that its Draft 2021-2029 
Housing Element Update does not comply with state law and revisions to the Draft are required; 
and, 

WHEREAS, revisions were made to the Draft 2021-2029 Housing Element to address 
HCD’s May 28, 2021 comment letter and the City along with its Housing Element consultant 
reviewed the revisions with HCD on July 20, 2021 at which time HCD informed the City that the 
revisions adequately address their comments; and, 

 

 

Item 5A

8



City of Colfax  
Resolution __-2021 2021-2029 Housing Element Update 

 

WHEREAS, an addendum to the 1998 General Plan Environmental Impact Report (EIR) 
(SCH No. 1998072025) was prepared pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines Section 15164 finding that the 2021-2029 Housing Element Update does not trigger 
any of the conditions in CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 that would require the preparation of a 
subsequent EIR, that there are no substantial changes in circumstances, and the proposed 
Housing Element consists entirely of land uses permitted by housing sites’ existing General Plan 
land use designations and zoning and represents no change from the impacts that were assumed 
and analyzed by the General Plan EIR; and, 

WHEREAS, at its duly noticed July 28, 2021 public hearing regarding the 2021-2029 
Housing Element update, the City Council received public testimony and considered any, and all 
written comments received during the public review process, any and all oral or written 
comments submitted at the public hearing, the Staff Report and the addendum to the General 
Plan EIR; and, 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council:   

A. ADDENDEM TO THE GENERAL PLAN EIR 
a. That the City Council finds that the Addendum to the 1998 General Plan Environmental 

Impact Report for the 2021-2029 Housing Element Update (“Addendum”) has been 
completed in compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act in that the 
standards set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 apply to the 2021-2029 Housing 
Element Update as follows: 
 

i. No substantial changes are proposed in the project which would require 
major revisions of the EIR due to the involvement of new significant 
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously 
identified significant effects. 
As shown in Table 1-1 of the Addendum, the program changes included in the 
2021-2029 Housing Element are limited to complying with state law, 
combining programs with similar intent to aid in implementation, or 
elimination of programs where the City has already completed the identified 
task. The proposed project would not result in the rezoning of land or approval 
of any development project. All development in the city must be consistent 
with the General Plan, and if a discretionary action, would also be subject to 
CEQA.  

The proposed changes to the Zoning Ordinance identified in Table 1-1 
represent modification of existing policy to either streamline development that 
is already allowed or make the code consistent with state law or implement 
new programs. As all the sites that these modified programs would affect are 
currently designated for development in the Land Use Element of the General 
Plan, there would be no change in the physical impact associated with future 
development. Therefore, policies identified in the General Plan EIR to reduce 
physical environmental effects would continue to apply to future development 

Item 5A

9



City of Colfax  
Resolution __-2021 2021-2029 Housing Element Update 

 

and would reduce impacts to the same significance level as identified in the 
General Plan EIR. 

ii. The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the 
previous EIR. 
As shown in Table 1-1 of the Addendum, the 2021-2029 Housing Element 
programs are similar to the existing policies of the General Plan. The proposed 
2021–2029 Housing Element includes three amended programs and 15 new 
programs. As stated previously, these amended and new programs would not 
result in new significant environmental impacts.  

iii. Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe 
than shown in the previous EIR. 
The proposed project would have the same significant impacts as those 
disclosed in the certified General Plan EIR. The policies identified in the 
General Plan EIR to reduce physical environmental effects would also apply to 
the proposed project. Because the proposed project does not include land use 
changes and the new and amended programs identified in Table 1-1 of the 
Addendum would not affect land use patterns in the city or result in physical 
changes to the environment, there are no new or more severe significant 
impacts associated with the proposed 2021–2029 Housing Element. 

iv. Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible 
would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more 
significant effects of the project, but the project proponents decline to 
adopt the mitigation measure or alternative. 
The proposed project includes policy-level changes that are limited to 
complying with state law and would not result in physical changes to the 
environment that were not disclosed in the General Plan EIR. Moreover, the 
proposed project would not create new impacts or the need for additional 
mitigation measures. The policies identified in the General Plan EIR to reduce 
physical environmental effects would also apply to the 2021–2029 Housing 
Element. The City is required to adopt a Housing Element, and the element 
must be reviewed and certified by HCD. There is no feasible alternative to 
adopting a Housing Element. As with the existing Housing Element evaluated 
in the General Plan EIR, the proposed Housing Element does not result in 
significant environmental impacts; therefore, there is no need for new 
mitigation measures.   

v. Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from 
those analyzed in the previous EIR would substantially reduce one or 
more significant effects on the environment, but the project proponents 
decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative.  
The proposed project would have the same significant impacts as the 
previously certified General Plan EIR and all associated policies identified in 

Item 5A

10



City of Colfax  
Resolution __-2021 2021-2029 Housing Element Update 

 

the General Plan EIR to reduce physical environmental effects would continue 
to apply. As stated in the response to Standard 4, there are no new significant 
impacts resulting from adoption of the 2021–2029 Housing Element; therefore, 
there are no new mitigation measures or alternatives to the proposed project. 

b. That the City Council finds that the Addendum to the General Plan EIR prepared for the 
2021-2029 Housing Element reflects the independent judgment and analysis of the City 
as lead agency for the Project. 
 

c. That the City Clerk is directed to attach the Addendum to the final General Plan EIR. 
 

d. That the custodian of the documents comprising the record of proceedings is the 
Department head, or his designee, of the City of Colfax Planning Department, 33 S. Main 
Street, Colfax, CA 95713. 

 
B. 2021-2029 – HOUSING ELEMENT  

a. That the City Council finds that the 2021-2029 Housing Element is deemed to be in the 
public’s interest; and, 

b. That the City Council finds that the amendment of the Housing Element of the City of 
Colfax General Plan is consistent and compatible with all other elements of the General 
Plan and the implementing measures; and, 

c. That the City Council finds that the potential impact of the proposed General Plan 
amendment has been assessed and determined not to be detrimental to the public health, 
safety and welfare; and, 

d. That the City Council finds that the 2021-2029 Housing Element has been processed in 
accordance with applicable provisions of the California Government Code and the 
California Environmental Quality Act; and, 

e. That the City Council adopts the 2021-2029 Housing Element Update and thereby 
amends the General Plan to incorporate the updated Housing Element. 

 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the 
regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 28th day of July 2021 by the 
following vote of the City Council: 

AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSTAIN:  
ABSENT:   

______________________________ 
        Sean Lomen, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:                                                                                                                                 
 
___________________________________ 
Amy Lind, Interim City Clerk 

Item 5A

11



July 2021 | General Plan EIR Addendum 

ADDENDUM TO THE GENERAL PLAN EIR 
 SCH No. 1998072025 

FOR THE 

2021–2029 HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE 
City of Colfax 

Prepared for: 

City of Colfax 
     Emmanuel Ursu 

Planning Director 
33 South Main Street 

Colfax, California 95713 
530.346.6214 

Prepared by: 

PlaceWorks 
Contact: Miles Barker, Project Planner 

101 Parkshore Drive, Suite 112 
Folsom, California 95630 

916.276.0616 
info@placeworks.com 
www.placeworks.com 

EXHIBIT 1

Item 5A

12



Item 5A

13



A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  C O L F A X  

Table of Contents 

July 2021 Page i 

Section Page 

1. ADDENDUM TO THE ADOPTED GENERAL PLAN EIR ............................................................... 1 

1.1 BACKGROUND .................................................................................................................................................... 1 

1.2 PROJECT SUMMARY ......................................................................................................................................... 1 

1.3 PURPOSE OF AN EIR ADDENDUM ......................................................................................................... 10 

2. CEQA ANALYSIS .......................................................................................................................... 12 

2.1 ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS ................................................................................................................... 12 

2.2 FINDING .............................................................................................................................................................. 14 

Table Page 

TABLE 1-1  SUMMARY OF PROGRAM CHANGES BETWEEN EXISTING HOUSING ELEMENT AND 
2021-2029 HOUSING ELEMENT ............................................................................................................................ 2 

Item 5A

14



A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  C O L F A X  

Table of Contents 

Page ii PlaceWorks 

This page intentionally left blank. 

Item 5A

15



July 2021 Page 1 

1. Addendum to the Adopted General Plan EIR
1.1 BACKGROUND 
The proposed 2021–2029 Housing Element (proposed project) will replace the existing 2013–2021 Housing 
Element and serve as the City of  Colfax’s (City’s) guiding policy document that meets future needs of  housing 
for all the City’s economic levels. The Housing Element is one of  eight elements of  the City’s General Plan.  

The General Plan is the foundation development policy document of  the City of  Colfax. It defines the 
framework by which the physical, economic, and human resources of  the city are to be managed and used over 
time. The General Plan acts to clarify and articulate the intentions of  the City with respect to the rights and 
expectations of  the public, property owners, prospective investors, and business interests. The General Plan 
informs these citizens of  the goals, objectives, policies, and standards for development of  Colfax and the 
responsibilities of  all sectors in meeting these. While the General Plan Environmental Impact Report (EIR) did 
not specifically address the Housing Element, the policies in the General Plan address all physical impacts 
resulting from development in Colfax. 

As a policy document, the Housing Element does not result in physical changes to the environment but 
encourages the provision of  affordable housing within the housing development projected within the existing 
land use designations in the Land Use Element of  the General Plan. None of  the policies in the proposed 
project would change the existing land use pattern, as established by the General Plan and evaluated in the 
General Plan EIR. All future construction within the city must comply with the General Plan, Zoning 
Ordinance, state and federal permits, and local development standards. In addition, future discretionary actions 
(i.e., use permits, site plan review) require independent and project-specific environmental review to comply 
with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  

This document serves as the environmental documentation for the City’s proposed 2021–2029 Housing 
Element update. This addendum to the City of  Colfax’s General Plan EIR, certified in September 1998 (State 
Clearinghouse Number 1998072025), demonstrates that the analysis in that EIR adequately addresses the 
potential physical impacts associated with implementation of  the proposed project and the proposed project 
would not trigger any of  the conditions described in CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 calling for the 
preparation of  a subsequent EIR or negative declaration. 

1.2 PROJECT SUMMARY 
CEQA requires the City to evaluate the environmental impacts associated with changes to the environment. In 
this instance, most of  the goals, policies, and programs from the previous Housing Element are continued 
through to the proposed 2021–2029 Housing Element. Table 1-1 includes the changes in goals or policies 
between the existing 2013–2021 Housing Element and the proposed 2021–2029 Housing Element. 
Modifications to the existing policies are identified in the text following Table 1-1. 

Item 5A

16



A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  C O L F A X  

1. Addendum to the Adopted General Plan EIR 
 

Page 2 PlaceWorks 

Table 1-1 Summary of Program Changes Between Existing Housing Element and 2021–2029 Housing Element 

Programs Implementation Status Continue/Modify/Delete 
PROGRAM 1. The City, upon request, will assist interested affordable housing 
developers to pursue available funding sources for affordable housing, including 
applications for HOME and CDBG funds, Low Income Housing Tax Credits and 
tax-exempt bonds for the construction or rehabilitation of lower income housing, 
including extremely low-income renter occupied housing. 
 
The City will market its rehabilitation programs by providing an information packet 
regarding the program at City Hall and on the City’s website. This information will 
be available by April 1, 2014. 

To date, this program has been developer-driven. Developers have not 
requested assistance to pursue available funding. The City will continue to offer 
this service, upon request, to interested developers. 

Combine with Programs 2, 5, and 6 and 
continue as Implementation Measure 
6.1: Support Affordable Housing 
Development. 

PROGRAM 2. Every 4 years, the City will update its list of non-profit developers 
who would be interested in developing affordable housing in the City. Upon 
request, the City will send these providers a development packet including 
multifamily vacant land inventory, services, and housing incentives. 

The City has not received any requests or interest in developing affordable 
housing in the city in over 5 years; therefore, the City has not updated the list 
of interested non-profit developers in that time. 

Combine with Programs 1, 5, and 6 and 
continue as Implementation Measure 
6.1: Support Affordable Housing 
Development. 

PROGRAM 3. Continue to offer a streamlined application package to be given to 
each developer containing: an explanation of the planning application permit 
process and timing; an application form where all requested actions for the project 
in regards to both the planning and engineering departments can be checked; an 
environmental evaluation form; a complete checklist for the application; a copy of 
the fee schedule, where the applicant can check which Planning, Engineering, 
and Building fees they are responsible for; and a list of incentives. 

The City reviews all applications for discretionary approval against a checklist 
of requirements that is tailored to each project to ensure streamlined 
processing and avoid extra submittal material that would result in a longer 
review process. 

Modify and continue as Implementation 
Measure 6.2: Streamlined Approval (SB 
35). 

PROGRAM 4. Continue to promote the Placer County First-Time Home Buyers 
Program, which is available to all Placer County residents, by maintaining 
brochures at City Hall and on the City’s website. 

The City provides a brochure on the program that is available to all residents 
at City Hall and the local library. The City will make this information available to 
residents on the City’s website. 

Continue as Implementation Measure 
6.3: First-Time Homebuyer Program.  

PROGRAM 5. Continue to offer incentives that can be used to encourage the 
development of housing opportunities for specialized housing needs. Incentives 
will include reduced site development standards, reduced permit fees, and 
accelerated application and plan processing. The City will continue to support 
emergency shelter programs as proposed by neighboring jurisdictions. 

The City offers incentives for housing for persons with special needs, including 
expedited processing and possible fee reductions with approval by City 
Council. The City also supports applications to agencies including Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) and California Department of Housing and 
Community Development (HCD) to provide specialized housing. 

Combine with Programs 1, 2, and 6 and 
continue as Implementation Measure 
6.1: Support Affordable Housing 
Development. 

PROGRAM 6. The City will provide residents who have questions regarding 
affordable housing options with contact information for the Placer County Health 
and Human Services Department, including links on the City’s web site. 

On the City’s website, they provide a link to the County’s website for residents 
interested with questions about affordable housing options. The City continues 
to work with Placer County Health and Human Services Department in 
providing current information on affordable housing options in the city and 
throughout the county. 

Combine with Programs 1, 2, and 5 and 
continue as Implementation Measure 
6.1: Support Affordable Housing 
Development. 

PROGRAM 7. Continue to allow developers to "piggyback" or file concurrent 
applications (e.g., rezones, tentative tract maps, conditional use permits, variance 
requests, etc.) if multiple approvals are required, and if consistent with applicable 
processing requirements. 

The City continues to allow concurrent applications for new development 
projects that require more than one discretionary permit. 

Combine with Programs 8, 9, 10, and 15 
and continue as Implementation 
Measure 6.5: Permit Streamlining and 
Priority Processing. 

Item 5A

17



A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  C O L F A X  

1. Addendum to the Adopted General Plan EIR 
 

June 2021 Page 3 

Programs Implementation Status Continue/Modify/Delete 
PROGRAM 8. Continue to promote a coordinated City review process among 
affected City departments to reduce delays and processing time. 

The City’s development review committee reviews projects with new housing 
or economic development potential early in their submittal and review process. 
The committee identifies any potential issues or concerns, and designs 
solutions that help reduce delays and keep the project moving through approval 
and permitting. 

Combine with Programs 7, 9, 10, and 15 
and continue as Implementation 
Measure 6.5: Permit Streamlining and 
Priority Processing. 

PROGRAM 9. Continue the City’s policy of stressing the importance of “flexibility” 
in review and processing of permit and other application processing. 

The City fast-tracks projects with new housing or economic development 
potential through the entitlement review process. Where feasible, projects are 
approved at the staff level through the administrative permit process. 

Combine with Programs 7, 8, 10, and 15 
and continue as Implementation 
Measure 6.5: Permit Streamlining and 
Priority Processing. 

PROGRAM 10. Continue to monitor the average process times for discretionary 
development permits and Design Review process to ensure they do not constrain 
residential development including multifamily and housing affordable to low- and 
moderate-income households. 

The City fast-tracks projects with new housing or economic development 
potential through the entitlement review process to ensure that residential 
development is not constrained by processing times. Where feasible, projects 
are approved at the staff level through the administrative permit process. 

Combine with Programs 7, 8, 9, and 15 
and continue as Implementation 
Measure 6.5: Permit Streamlining and 
Priority Processing. 

PROGRAM 11. Continue to review current Planning Fees on an as-needed basis, 
and where appropriate make changes to reflect the affordability of multifamily 
development. 

The City established an ad hoc committee to review for potential fee savings 
on a project-by-project basis, as warranted, and fees are reviewed against 
project viability to ensure that they reflect the affordability of multifamily 
development. 

Delete.  

PROGRAM 12. Monitor the inventory of vacant land every four years to ensure 
an adequate amount of land zoned for both single family and multifamily 
development is available. 

A vacant land inventory was completed in the spring of 2019 and is available 
by request through the City’s Planning Department.  

Combine with Program 13 and continue 
as Implementation Measure 6.15: 
Housing Inventory. 

PROGRAM 13. Annually review the housing element for consistency with the 
general plan as part of its Annual Housing Element Progress Report process. File 
the Annual Housing Element Progress Report with HCD. 

The City annually reviews the housing element for consistency with the general 
plan and files progress reports with HCD; the last Annual Housing Element 
Progress Report was submitted to HCD in May 2020. 

Combine with Program 12 and continue 
as Implementation Measure 6.15: 
Housing Inventory. 

PROGRAM 14. Continue to monitor new developments for compliance with City 
design standards. Revise current Zoning Code to reflect the City’s evolving goals, 
as necessary. 

The City monitors new development projects through the conditions of approval 
and site inspections completed both during and after development. 

Delete.  

PROGRAM 15. The City will endeavor to make residents aware of the benefits of 
incorporating energy saving measures into residential construction. If City 
resources allow, brochures providing such information will be made available at 
City Hall. 

The City Building Inspector implements and enforces the Title 24 Building 
Energy Efficiency Standards. The City provides handouts providing information 
on energy-saving measures that are available at City Hall. 

Combine with Programs 7, 8, 9, and 10 
and continue as Implementation 
Measure 6.5: Permit Streamlining and 
Priority Processing. 

PROGRAM 16. Continue to require that, at a minimum, all residential 
development complies with the energy conservation requirements of Title 24 of 
the California Code of Regulations. 

The City Building Inspection staff implements and enforces Title 24 Building 
Energy Efficiency Standards. 

Delete. 

PROGRAM 17. Continue to coordinate housing rehabilitation programs with code 
enforcement efforts and combine both targeted and citywide participation. 

The City’s Code Enforcement and Building Inspection staff coordinate 
inspections and compliance efforts to coordinate housing rehabilitation with 
code enforcement. 

Modify and continue as Implementation 
Measure 6.19: Code Enforcement.  

Item 5A

18



A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  C O L F A X  

1. Addendum to the Adopted General Plan EIR

Page 4 PlaceWorks 

Programs Implementation Status Continue/Modify/Delete 
PROGRAM 18. The City of Colfax will continue to monitor Canyon View Senior 
Apartments, which has an expiring Section 8 contract in 2017. Renewal of the 
Section 8 contract in 2017 will depend upon the availability of HUD financing and 
the current owner’s decision to renew. With the assistance of the California 
Housing Partnership, the City will annually monitor the status of the Section 8 
renewal. 

The Section 8 contract for Canyon View Senior Apartments was renewed, and 
the City continues to monitor the contract to ensure it is maintained. 

Modify and continue as Implementation 
Measure 6.20: Monitor At-Risk Units. 

PROGRAM 19. The City will continue to maintain information on fair housing law 
from the California Department of Fair Employment & Housing and have copies 
of information available for the public at City Hall. 

The City has made brochures that provide information regarding fair housing 
laws free to the public available at City Hall. 

Combine with Program 20 and continue 
as Implementation Measure 6.21: 
Develop a Plan to Affirmatively Further 
Fair Housing (AFFH).  

PROGRAM 20. Continue to refer all housing discrimination referrals to the 
Planning Director who will work with the complainant and refer complaints to the 
State Fair Employment and Housing Commission. 

The City has made brochures that provide information regarding fair housing 
laws free to the public available at City Hall. To date, no housing discrimination 
cases have been referred to the Planning Director. The State Fair Employment 
and Housing Commission reports eight fair housing complaints were referred 
from Placer County but does not report at the city-level. 

Combine with Program 19 and continue 
as Implementation Measure 6.21: 
Develop a Plan to Affirmatively Further 
Fair Housing (AFFH). 

Item 5A

19



A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  C O L F A X  

1. Addendum to the Adopted General Plan EIR

July 2021 Page 5 

As shown in Table 1-1, the proposed 2021–2029 Housing Element consolidates many programs from the 
previous Housing Element to aid in implementation and eliminate redundancy. The following three amended 
programs are included in the proposed 2021–2029 Housing Element (Note: the following programs are 
modified using italic underline or strikeout to indicate changes to the amended programs): 

 PROGRAM 3 Implementation Measure 6.2: Streamlined Approval (SB 35). Continue to offer a
streamlined application package to be given to each developer containing: an explanation of  the planning
application permit process and timing; an application form where all requested actions for the project in
regards to both the planning and engineering departments can be checked; an environmental evaluation
form; a complete checklist for the application; a copy of  the fee schedule, where the applicant can check
which Planning, Engineering, and Building fees they are responsible for; and a list of  incentives. The City
will establish a written policy or procedure and other guidance as appropriate to specify a streamlining approval process and
standards for eligible projects, as set forth under Government Code Section 65913.4.

 PROGRAM 17 Implementation Measure 6.19: Code Enforcement. The City will Continue to coordinate
housing rehabilitation programs with proactive code enforcement efforts and combine both targeted and
citywide participation of  health and safety matters to ensure compliance with health and safety code violations. The City
will also develop an enforcement program to prevent displacement or mitigate through assistance with relocation costs for lower-
income households as funding is available.

 PROGRAM 18 Implementation Measure 6.20: Monitor At-Risk Units. The City of  Colfax will
continue to monitor Canyon View Senior Apartments, which has an expiring Section 8 contract in 2017.
Renewal of  the Section 8 contract in 2017 will depend upon the availability of  HUD financing and the
current owner’s decision to renew. With the assistance of  the California Housing Partnership, the City will
annually monitor the status of  the Section 8 renewal. Maintain and update the City’s affordable housing database
as a mechanism to monitor and identify units at risk of  losing their affordability subsidies or requirements. For complexes at
risk of  converting to market rate, the City may:

o Contact property owners of  units at risk of  converting to market-rate housing within one year of  affordability
expiration to discuss the City’s desire to preserve complexes as affordable housing.

o Coordinate with owners of  expiring subsidies to ensure the required notices to tenants are sent out at 3 years, 12
months, and 6 months.

o Reach out to agencies interested in purchasing and/or managing at-risk units.

o Work with tenants to provide education regarding tenant rights and conversion procedures pursuant to California
law.

Program 1, Program 2, Program 5, and Program 6 were combined and amended as one implementation 
measure – Implementation Measure 6.1: Support Affordable Housing Development. 

Item 5A

20



A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  C O L F A X  

1. Addendum to the Adopted General Plan EIR

Page 6 PlaceWorks 

 Implementation Measure 6.1: Support Affordable Housing Development. The City shall work with
housing developers to expand opportunities for affordable lower-income housing and special-needs
groups, including seniors, persons with disabilities, persons with developmental disabilities, extremely low-
income households, female-headed households, farmworkers, and homeless persons, by creating
partnerships, providing incentives, and pursuing funding opportunities. Specifically, the City shall:

o Provide technical assistance with site identification, site acquisition, and permit processing
procedures;

o Reach out annually to for-profit and nonprofit housing developers, local and regional funding
agencies, and other organizations to review and promote available housing programs;

o Meet annually with developers to identify barriers to construction of  housing for special-needs
groups, including senior housing and units with two or more bedrooms for large families; provide
incentives as needed to reduce construction costs including fee waivers or deferrals or reduced
parking requirements.

o Promote the use of  the density bonus ordinance, application processing fee waivers, impact fee
waivers, and fee deferrals to encourage affordable housing with City Council approval;

o Partner with nonprofit and for-profit affordable housing developers to support their financing
applications for state and federal grant programs, tax-exempt bonds, and other programs that
become available;

o Pursue federal, state, and private funding for low- and moderate-income housing by applying for
state and federal monies for direct support of  lower-income housing construction and
rehabilitation, specifically for development of  housing affordable to extremely low-income
households.

Program 7, Program 8, Program 9, Program 10, and Program 15 were combined and amended as one 
implementation measure – Implementation Measure 6.5: Permit Streamlining and Priority Processing.  

 Implementation Measure 6.5: Permit Streamlining and Priority Processing. Continue to monitor
and improve, as needed, the design review and processing times to ensure they do not constrain the
development of  housing. To further promote this, the City will continue to allow developers to file
concurrent applications (e.g., rezones, tentative tract maps, conditional use permits, variance requests, etc.).
If  multiple approvals are required, and if  consistent with applicable processing requirements, the City will
coordinate review processes between departments to reduce processing times and minimize delay.

Program 12 and Program 13 were combined and amended as one implementation measure – 
Implementation Measure 6.15: Housing Inventory. 

 Implementation Measure 6.15: Housing Inventory. Annually monitor the City’s housing sites inventory
to ensure there is adequate land to meet the City’s Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA).

Item 5A

21



A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  C O L F A X  

1. Addendum to the Adopted General Plan EIR 

July 2021 Page 7 

Program 19 and Program 20 were combined and amended as one implementation measure – 
Implementation Measure 6.21: Develop a Plan to Affirmatively Further Fair Housing (AFFH). 

 Implementation Measure 6.21: Develop a Plan to Affirmatively Further Fair Housing (AFFH). The 
AFFH Plan shall take actions to address significant disparities in housing needs and in access to opportunity 
for all persons regardless of  race, religion, sex, marital status, ancestry, national origin, color, familial status, 
or disability, and other characteristics protected by the California Fair Employment and Housing Act (Part 
2.8, commencing with Section 12900, of  Division 3 of  Title 2), Section 65008, and any other state and 
federal fair housing and planning law. 

Specific actions will include: 

o Implement Measures 6.3, 6.17, and 6.18 to affirmatively further fair housing, including targeting 
community revitalization through place-based programs, enhancing mobility between 
neighborhoods, and developing strategies to reduce displacement risk for special-needs groups and 
lower-income households. Focus particularly in areas of  concentrated overpayment (Measures 6.1, 
6.4, and 6.11) and facilitate affordable housing in high opportunity areas (Measures 6.6, 6.11, and 
6.12) 

o Maintain information on fair housing law from the California Department of  Fair Employment 
& Housing and have copies of  information available for the public at City Hall. Annually work 
with Legal Service of  Northern California to provide at least two trainings during the planning 
period with landlords and tenants on state and federal fair housing laws.  

o As housing discrimination inquiries are received, refer cases to the Planning Director who will 
work with the complainant and refer complaints to the State Department of  Fair Employment 
and Housing, United States Department of  Housing and Urban Development’s (HUD’s) Office 
of  Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity, and Legal Services of  Northern California. 

o Work with Legal Services of  Northern California on an annual basis to track fair housing 
complaints, identify patterns, and to enforce fair housing laws. 

o Provide biannual training to landlords and property owners on avoiding discriminatory practices 
based on income or other protected classes and their requirement to grant reasonable 
accommodation requests. 

o Maintain information on organizations and programs that are available to landowners to assist 
them in meeting defensible space goals and taking other steps that may decrease fire insurance 
rates to reduce disaster displacement risk. These programs may include the National Fire 
Protection Association’s Firewise USA program, CalFire’s Landowners Assistance and wildfire 
preparedness informational tools, and Placer County’s Chipper Program. Provide links to these 
resources on the City’s website and update as programs change. 

Item 5A

22



A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  C O L F A X  

1. Addendum to the Adopted General Plan EIR 

Page 8 PlaceWorks 

o Annually review the results of  Placer County Transportation Planning Agency’s annual assessment 
of  unmet transit need and, if  needed in Colfax, work with transit agencies to expand routes and 
frequency. 

o Beginning in May 2022 and biannually thereafter, hold a community workshop to facilitate 
discussions with the community on housing and homelessness issues; brainstorm solutions; raise 
community awareness of  the critical housing needs of  local residents; and educate the public on 
the myths and realities of  multifamily housing, affordable housing, and encourage community 
members to apply for committee and commission positions. 

o By July 2022, develop a targeted program to connect lower-income residents with affordable 
homeownership and rental options to improve economic and housing mobility to higher 
opportunity areas within the City and implement incentive programs to encourage construction 
of  affordable housing. Provide assistance locating housing opportunities to at least two households 
annually after the program has been developed. 

o Meet with multifamily developers by May 2022, and biannually thereafter, to identify potential sites 
for higher-density housing in areas near resources and services and address barriers to 
development. 

o As part of  the Annual Progress Report process in year 2025, evaluate the City’s fair housing 
objectives and adjust as appropriate. 

The following 15 programs are new to the City and are included in the proposed 2021–2029 Housing Element: 

 Implementation Measure 6.4: Developmental Disability Services. Work with the Alta California 
Regional Center to implement an outreach program that informs families within the city about housing 
and services available for persons with developmental disabilities. The program could include the 
development of  an informational brochure, including information on services on the City’s website, and/or 
providing housing-related training for individuals/families through workshops. 

 Implementation Measure 6.5: Permit Streamlining and Priority Processing. Continue to monitor 
and improve, as needed, the design review and processing times to ensure they do not constrain the 
development of  housing. To further promote this, the City will continue to allow developers to file 
concurrent applications (e.g., rezones, tentative tract maps, conditional use permits, variance requests, etc.). 
If  multiple approvals are required, and if  consistent with applicable processing requirements, the City will 
coordinate review processes between departments to reduce processing times and minimize delay. 

 Implementation Measure 6.6: Incentives for the Development of  Affordable Housing. Allow 
flexibility in development standards to facilitate affordable housing development by offering fast-
track/priority processing, density bonuses, flexibility in development standards, and fee subsidies (when 
feasible) to developers proposing new housing, mixed-use, or infill projects affordable to extremely low-
income households, low-income households, farmworkers, seniors, and persons with disabilities, persons 
with developmental disabilities, and female-headed households. 

Item 5A

23



A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  C O L F A X  

1. Addendum to the Adopted General Plan EIR

July 2021 Page 9 

 Implementation Measure 6.7: Density Bonus. Amend the Zoning Ordinance to comply with State
density bonus law (Government Code Section 65915, as revised). Promote the density bonus through
informational brochures that will be displayed at the City’s Planning Department.

 Implementation Measure 6.8: Low-Barrier Navigation Centers. Amend the Zoning Ordinance and
make revisions, if  necessary, to allow low-barrier navigation centers for the homeless, per Government
Code Section 65662.

 Implementation Measure 6.9: Supportive Housing. Amend the Zoning Ordinance to allow for the
approval of  100-percent affordable developments that include a percentage of  supportive housing units,
either 25 percent or 12 units, whichever is greater, to be allowed without a conditional use permit or other
discretionary review in all zoning districts where multifamily and mixed-use development is permitted,
consistent with Government Code Section 65651.

 Implementation Measure 6.10: Employee Housing. Amend the Zoning Ordinance to treat
employee/farmworker housing that serves six or fewer persons as a single-family structure and permit it
in the same manner as other single-family structures of  the same type within the same zone across all zones
that allow single-family residential uses. Treat employee/farmworker housing consisting of  no more than
12 units or 36 beds as an agricultural use and permit it in the same manner as other agricultural uses in the
same zone, in compliance with the California Employee Housing Act (Health and Safety Code Sections
17021.5 and 17021.6).

 Implementation Measure 6.11: Housing for Extremely Low-Income Households. Amend the
Zoning Ordinance to define and allow single-room occupancy units (SRO) in the R-M zone with a
conditional use permit. In addition, to help meet the needs of  extremely low-income households, the City
will prioritize funding and/or offer financial incentives or regulatory concessions to encourage the
development of  housing types affordable to extremely low-income households, such as SROs, multifamily
units, and supportive housing, to reduce their displacement risk.

 Implementation Measure 6.12: Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs). ADUs are a mechanism through
which smaller, more affordable housing units can be added to the housing stock to reduce displacement
risk for low-income households, seniors, and other special-needs groups. The City will amend the Zoning
Ordinance to comply with Government Code Section 65852.2 concerning ADUs.  The City shall also
incentivize and encourage ADUs through public education, development fee reductions and/or waivers,
and construction resource tools with an emphasis on promoting ADU construction in areas of  high
opportunity to encourage housing mobility options.

 Implementation Measure 6.13: Residential Care Facilities. Amend the Zoning Ordinance to establish
a ministerial permit process for residential care facilities for seven or more persons and ensure these
facilities are only subject to those restrictions that apply to other residential uses of  the same type in the
same zone. The City will also remove the 12-person maximum capacity requirement and ensure all
requirements are consistent with state law. Residential care facilities are still subject to state licensing
requirements.

Item 5A

24



A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  C O L F A X  

1. Addendum to the Adopted General Plan EIR

Page 10 PlaceWorks 

 Implementation Measure 6.14: Parking Standards. The City will review and revise as needed, current
requirements for parking requirements for emergency shelters to ensure that parking standards are
sufficient to accommodate all staff, provided standards do not require more parking for emergency shelters
than other residential or commercial uses.

 Implementation Measure 6.17: Zoning and General Plan Consistency. To ensure maximum General
Plan Land Use densities are obtainable, the City will review and revise the per-unit land area requirement
to be 3,000 square feet in the RM-1 zone and 1,500 square feet in the RM-2 zone.

 Implementation Measure 6.18: Housing Rehabilitation Program. The City will annually apply for
rehabilitation funds to provide housing rehabilitation services and weatherization services to very low- and
low-income households and facilitate place-based revitalization in areas of  targeted rehabilitation need. To
improve effectiveness of  this program, the City will advertise rehabilitation and weatherization programs
on the City’s website and provide brochures available at City Hall.

 Implementation Measure 6.22: Environmental Justice. Each time a housing project is proposed that
may have an effect on a particular group or neighborhood, the City will make efforts to distribute
information on the project to ensure that the group or neighborhood is made aware of  the project and the
process and has the opportunity to respond.

 Implementation Measure 6.23: Energy Conservation. Attempt to make residents aware of  the benefits
of  incorporating energy-saving measures into residential construction. Information will be made available
on the City’s website.

1.3 PURPOSE OF AN EIR ADDENDUM 
According to CEQA Guidelines Section 15164(a), an addendum shall be prepared if  some changes or additions 
to a previously adopted EIR are necessary, but none of  the conditions enumerated in CEQA Guidelines 
Sections 15162(a)(1)–(3) calling for the preparation of  a subsequent EIR have occurred. As stated in CEQA 
Guidelines, Section 15162 (Subsequent EIRs and Negative Declarations): 

When an EIR has been certified or negative declaration adopted for a project, no subsequent EIR shall be 
prepared for that project unless the lead agency determines, on the basis of  substantial evidence in the light 
of  the whole record, one or more of  the following: 

(1) Substantial changes are proposed in the project which will require major revisions of the
previous EIR or negative declaration due to the involvement of new significant environmental
effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects;

(2) Substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under which the project is
undertaken which will require major revisions of the previous EIR or negative declaration due
to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the
severity of previously identified significant effects; or

Item 5A

25



A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  C O L F A X  

1. Addendum to the Adopted General Plan EIR

July 2021 Page 11 

(3) New information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have been
known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the previous EIR was certified as
complete or negative declaration was adopted, shows any of the following:

(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous EIR or
negative declaration;

(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than shown in
the previous EIR;

(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be
feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the project, but
the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative; or

(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from those analyzed
in the previous EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the
environment, but the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or
alternative.

The proposed project would not result in any of  the conditions outlined in CEQA Guidelines Sections 
15162(a)(1)-(3) as the proposed changes would not result in new significant environmental effects or a 
substantial increase in the severity of  previously identified significant effects requiring major revisions to the 
1998 General Plan EIR. Accordingly, this checklist provides the substantial evidence required by CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15164(e) to support the finding that a subsequent EIR is not required and an addendum to 
the General Plan EIR is the appropriate environmental document to address changes to the proposed project. 

As stated in CEQA Guidelines Section 15164 (Addendum to an EIR): 

(a) The lead agency or responsible agency shall prepare an addendum to a previously certified
EIR if some changes or additions are necessary but none of the conditions described in
Section 15162 calling for preparation of a subsequent EIR have occurred.

(b) An addendum to an adopted negative declaration may be prepared if only minor technical
changes or additions are necessary or none of the conditions described in Section 15162
calling for the preparation of a subsequent EIR or negative declaration have occurred.

(c) An addendum need not be circulated for public review but can be included in or attached
to the final EIR or adopted negative declaration.

(d) The decision-making body shall consider the addendum with the final EIR or adopted
negative declaration prior to making a decision on the project.

(e) A brief explanation of the decision not to prepare a subsequent EIR pursuant to Section
15162 should be included in an addendum to an EIR, the lead agency’s findings on the
project, or elsewhere in the record. The explanation must be supported by substantial
evidence.

A copy of  this addendum, and all supporting documentation, may be reviewed or obtained at the City of  Colfax 
Planning Department, 33 South Main Street, Colfax, California 95713.  

Item 5A

26



July 2021 Page 12 

2. CEQA Analysis
2.1 ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS 
The General Plan EIR evaluates the proposed revisions to the goals, policies, and implementation measures of  
the City of  Colfax General Plan. The General Plan contains policies related to land use, circulation, noise, 
community design, housing, natural environment, safety, and economic development. The General Plan is 
largely designed to be self-mitigating by incorporating policies and implementation measures that address and 
mitigate related environmental impacts, such as zoning codes and design standards.  

Table 1-1 shows that most of  the existing Housing Element policies will remain unchanged with the proposed 
project. The 15 new programs are either informative or would result in no physical change to the environment. 
The programs were modified to comply with state law, combine programs with similar intent to aid in 
implementation, or eliminate programs where the City has already completed the identified task.  

Program 3 involves informational changes that include a reference to establishing a written policy or procedure 
and other guidance as appropriate to specify a streamlining approval process and standards for eligible projects 
and removes a reference to offering a streamlined application package to be given to each developer. Program 
17 involves informational changes that include a reference to continuing proactive code enforcement of  health 
and safety matters and developing an enforcement program to prevent displacement or mitigate through 
assistance with relocation costs for lower-income households. Program 18 involves informational changes that 
include a reference to maintaining and updating the City’s affordable housing database as a mechanism to 
monitor and identify units at risk of  losing their affordability subsidies or requirements and removes a reference 
to monitoring Canyon View Senior Apartments and annually monitoring the status of  the Section 8 renewal. 
These changes would not result in a physical environmental effect. 

The following programs were combined and amended as one program to aid in their implementation as they 
were similar in intent:  

 Program 1, Program 2, Program 5, and Program 6

 Program 7, Program 8, Program 9, Program 10, and Program 15

 Program 12 and Program 13

 Program 19 and Program 20

As such, these modifications to the existing programs would not result in any physical impacts on the 
environment. The proposed Housing Element consolidates many programs from the existing Housing Element 
to aid in implementation and eliminate redundancy. These changes would not result in a physical environmental 
effect. 

Item 5A

27



A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  C O L F A X  

2. CEQA Analysis

July 2021 Page 13 

The 15 new programs represent changes that allow the City to amend the City of  Colfax Ordinance Code to 
implement an outreach program that informs families within the city about housing and services available for 
persons with developmental disabilities; monitor and improve the design review and processing times to ensure 
they do not constrain the development of  housing; allow flexibility in development standards to facilitate 
affordable housing development to developers proposing new housing, mixed-use, or infill projects affordable 
to extremely low-income households, low-income households, farmworkers, seniors, and persons with 
disabilities, persons with developmental disabilities, and female-headed households; comply with state density 
bonus law and promote the density bonus through informational brochures; allow low-barrier navigation 
centers for the homeless; allow for the approval of  100-percent affordable developments that include a 
percentage of  supportive housing units to be allowed without a conditional use permit or other discretionary 
review in all zoning districts where multifamily and mixed-use development is permitted; treat 
employee/farmworker housing that serves six or fewer persons as a single-family structure and permit it in the 
same manner as other single-family structures of  the same type within the same zone across all zones that allow 
single-family residential uses, as well as employee/farmworker housing consisting of  no more than 12 units or 
36 beds as an agricultural use and permit it in the same manner as other agricultural uses in the same zone; 
define and allow SRO in the R-M zone with a conditional use permit; comply with Government Code Section 
65852.2 concerning ADUs and incentivize and encourage ADUs through public education, development fee 
reductions and/or waivers, and construction resource tools; establish a ministerial permit process for residential 
care facilities for seven or more persons; remove the 12-person maximum capacity requirement and ensure all 
requirements are consistent with state law; review and revise current requirements for parking requirements for 
emergency shelters to ensure that parking standards are sufficient to accommodate all staff; review and revise 
the per-unit land area requirement to be 3,000 square feet in the RM-1 zone and 1,500 square feet in the RM-2 
zone; annually apply for rehabilitation funds to provide housing rehabilitation services and weatherization 
services to very low- and low-income households and facilitate place-based revitalization in areas of  targeted 
rehabilitation need; distribute information on proposed housing projects each time a project may have an effect 
on a particular group or neighborhood; and make residents aware of  the benefits of  incorporating energy-
saving measures into residential construction via the City’s website. 

Moreover, the City maintains a thorough building permit review process that would ensure compliance with 
federal, state, and local regulations, such as dust control, stormwater runoff, and water quality prior to the 
issuance of  any building permit. Additionally, prior to issuance of  any building permit, a project applicant is 
required to pay development impact fees (Chapter 3.56 of  the Municipal Code), which would address potential 
impacts to public services. The policies identified in the General Plan EIR to reduce physical environmental 
effects would continue to apply to future development and would reduce impacts to the same significance level 
as identified in the General Plan EIR. 

The proposed Housing Element establishes targets for the income accessibility of  future housing; however, the 
ability to construct the housing is based on designations in the Land Use Element. As the City can meet its 
RHNA without changing any land use designation, the Land Use Element remains unchanged from the 
document evaluated in the General Plan EIR. The proposed Housing Element does not change the 
development pattern for the city, as shown in the Land Use Element of  the General Plan and the zoning map 
for the City. Physical change to the environment would occur from implementation of  the Land Use Element 

Item 5A

28



A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  C O L F A X  

2. CEQA Analysis 

Page 14 PlaceWorks 

of  the General Plan, not the proposed Housing Element. Therefore, development of  housing as considered in 
the proposed Housing Element would be consistent with that analyzed in the General Plan EIR. As the 
proposed Housing Element does not affect the land use pattern of  the city, or result in any physical change to 
the environment, and as the General Plan EIR evaluated the existing land use pattern and includes policies and 
programs to address environmental impacts, the update to the Housing Element would not result in any new 
environmental impacts or increase the severity of  any environmental impacts previously evaluated in the 
General Plan EIR. 

All future development in the city would be required to comply with local regulations, including the General 
Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and subdivision standards. These local regulations guide future development and 
would address potential physical impacts resulting from development. Moreover, the City’s Zoning Ordinance 
contains a list of  permitted uses for each respective zoning district. The General Plan EIR evaluated permitted 
uses and anticipated physical impacts associated with development and would therefore result in no new impact 
as part of  development. As the proposed project does not change the permitted uses allowed by the Zoning 
Ordinance, there would be no new impact. Building regulations are applied as part of  the building permit 
process and are independent of  CEQA.  

As the proposed 2021–2029 Housing Element does not change any land use designation or zone district, the 
impacts of  the proposed project would be no more substantial than analyzed in the General Plan EIR. No new 
mitigation measures are necessary. 

2.2 FINDING  
The discussion in this addendum confirms that the proposed project has been evaluated for significant impacts 
pursuant to CEQA. The discussion is meaningfully different than a determination that a project is “exempt” 
from CEQA review, as the proposed 2021–2029 Housing Element update is not exempt. Rather, the 
determination here is that the 1998 General Plan EIR evaluated the physical impacts likely to result from future 
development. As the proposed 2021–2029 Housing Element does not change any land use designation or 
approve any development, the General Plan EIR provides a sufficient and adequate analysis of  the 
environmental impacts of  the proposed 2021–2029 Housing Element.  

There are no substantial changes in the circumstances or new information that was not known and could not 
have been known at the time of  the adoption of  the General Plan EIR. The proposed project consists entirely 
of  land uses permitted by project sites’ existing General Plan land use designation and zoning and represents 
no change from the impacts that were assumed and analyzed by the General Plan EIR.  

As a result, and for the reasons explained in this addendum, the project would not cause any new significant 
environmental impacts or substantially increase the severity of  significant environmental impacts disclosed in 
the General Plan EIR. Thus, the proposed project does not trigger any of  the conditions in CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15162 allowing the preparation of  a subsequent EIR, and the appropriate environmental document as 
authorized by CEQA Guidelines Section 15164(b) is an addendum. Accordingly, this EIR addendum has been 
prepared.  

Item 5A

29



A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  C O L F A X  

2. CEQA Analysis 

July 2021 Page 15 

The following identifies the standards set forth in Section 15162 of  the CEQA Guidelines as they relate to the 
proposed project. The text that follows the provisions of  the law relates to the proposed 2021–2029 Housing 
Element. 

1. No substantial changes are proposed in the project which would require major revisions of the 
EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in 
the severity of previously identified significant effects. 

As shown in Table 1-1, the program changes included in the proposed Housing Element are limited to 
complying with state law, combining programs with similar intent to aid in implementation, or elimination 
of  programs where the City has already completed the identified task. The proposed project would not 
result in the rezoning of  land or approval of  any development project. All development in the city must be 
consistent with the General Plan, and if  a discretionary action, would also be subject to CEQA.  

The proposed changes to the Zoning Ordinance identified in Table 1-1 represent modification of  existing 
policy to either streamline development that is already allowed or make the code consistent with state law 
or implement new programs. As all the sites that these modified programs would affect are currently 
designated for development in the Land Use Element of  the General Plan, there would be no change in 
the physical impact associated with future development. Therefore, policies identified in the General Plan 
EIR to reduce physical environmental effects would continue to apply to future development and would 
reduce impacts to the same significance level as identified in the General Plan EIR.  

2. The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous EIR. 

As shown in Table 1-1, the proposed Housing Element programs are similar to the existing policies of  the 
General Plan. The proposed 2021–2029 Housing Element includes 3 amended programs and 15 new 
programs. As stated previously, these amended and new programs would not result in new significant 
environmental impacts.  

3. Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than shown in the 
previous EIR. 

The proposed project would have the same significant impacts as those disclosed in the certified General 
Plan EIR. The policies identified in the General Plan EIR to reduce physical environmental effects would 
also apply to the proposed project. Because the proposed project does not include land use changes and 
the new and amended programs identified in Table 1-1 would not affect land use patterns in the city or 
result in physical changes to the environment, there are no new or more severe significant impacts 
associated with the proposed 2021–2029 Housing Element. 

4. Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be feasible 
and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the project, but the project 
proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative. 

The proposed project includes policy-level changes that are limited to complying with state law and would 
not result in physical changes to the environment that were not disclosed in the General Plan EIR. 

Item 5A

30



A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  2 0 2 1 – 2 0 2 9  H O U S I N G  E L E M E N T  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  C O L F A X  

2. CEQA Analysis

Page 16 PlaceWorks 

Moreover, the proposed project would not create new impacts or the need for additional mitigation 
measures. The policies identified in the General Plan EIR to reduce physical environmental effects would 
also apply to the 2021–2029 Housing Element. The City is required to adopt a Housing Element, and the 
element must be reviewed and certified by HCD. There is no feasible alternative to adopting a Housing 
Element. As with the existing Housing Element evaluated in the General Plan EIR, the proposed Housing 
Element does not result in significant environmental impacts; therefore, there is no need for new mitigation 
measures.   

5. Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from those analyzed in the
previous EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but
the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative.

The proposed project would have the same significant impacts as the previously certified General Plan EIR
and all associated policies identified in the General Plan EIR to reduce physical environmental effects would
continue to apply. As stated in the response to Standard 4, there are no new significant impacts resulting
from adoption of  the 2021–2029 Housing Element; therefore, there are no new mitigation measures or
alternatives to the proposed project.

Item 5A

31



Adoption Draft – July 2021

CITY OF COLFAX
HOUSING ELEMENT 2021-2029

E X H I B I T  2

Item 5A

32



Item 5A

33



Public Review Draft – November 2020

O R A N G E  C O U N T Y    •    B AY  A R E A    •    S A C R A M E N TO    •    C E N T R A L  C O A S T    •    L O S  A N G E L E S    •    I N L A N D  E M P I R E    •    S A N  D I E G O

www.placeworks.com

July 2021 
ADOPTION DRAFT

Prepared By:

101 Parkshore Drive 
Suite 112

Folsom, California 95630
 t 916.245.7500

CITY OF COLFAX
HOUSING ELEMENT 2021-2029

Item 5A

34



Item 5A

35



 

City of Colfax Draft 2020 General Plan Page i 

6 

Housing 

Table of Contents 
6.0 Housing Element ................................................................................................................................................. 5 

6.1 Introduction to the Housing Element ............................................................................................... 5 

6.1.1 Purpose ............................................................................................................................................. 5 

6.1.2 Organization .................................................................................................................................... 6 

6.1.3 General Plan Consistency .............................................................................................................. 7 

6.1.4 Public Participation ......................................................................................................................... 7 

6.2 Community Profile ............................................................................................................................... 10 

6.2.1 Data Sources ................................................................................................................................... 11 

6.2.2 Population Characteristics ............................................................................................................ 11 

6.2.3 Employment Characteristics ........................................................................................................ 14 

6.2.4 Household Characteristics ............................................................................................................ 16 

6.2.5 Income Characteristics .................................................................................................................. 18 

6.2.6 Housing Stock Characteristics .................................................................................................... 23 

6.2.7 Housing Cost and Affordability .................................................................................................. 26 

6.2.8 Special Needs Groups .................................................................................................................. 28 

6.2.9 Assisted Units At-Risk of Conversion ........................................................................................ 40 

6.2.10 Fair Housing Assessment ............................................................................................................ 44 

6.3 Housing Resources Inventory ........................................................................................................... 67 

6.3.1 Regional Housing Needs Allocation ......................................................................................... 67 

6.4 Housing Constraints ........................................................................................................................... 77 

6.4.1 Governmental Constraints .......................................................................................................... 77 

6.4.2 Non-Governmental Constraints ................................................................................................ 97 

6.4.3 Opportunities for Energy Conservation ................................................................................... 99 

6.5 Review of Previous Housing Element ............................................................................................ 101 

6.6 Housing Goals, Policies, and Implementation Measures ........................................................... 109 

6.6.1 Quantified Objectives ................................................................................................................. 120 

Appendix A – Public Outreach ..................................................................................................................... A-1 

 

  

Item 5A

36



JULY 2021 

Page ii City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Tables 

Table 1 Population Trends – Placer County and Neighboring Communities ............................................. 11 
Table 2 Population Projections ............................................................................................................................. 12 
Table 3 Population by Age Trends - City of Colfax .......................................................................................... 12 
Table 4 Population by Race and Ethnicity - 2018 ............................................................................................. 14 
Table 5 Employment by Industry - City of Colfax ............................................................................................. 14 
Table 6 Colfax Area Major Employers ................................................................................................................. 15 
Table 7 Civilian Labor Force – City of Colfax ..................................................................................................... 16 
Table 8  Household Characteristics, 2018 ........................................................................................................... 17 
Table 9 Household Size Trends ............................................................................................................................ 17 
Table 10 Overcrowded Households, 2018 .......................................................................................................... 18 
Table 11 Maximum Household Income Level, 2020 by Household Size for Placer County .................... 19 
Table 12 Household Income, 2018 ....................................................................................................................... 19 
Table 13 Households by Income Category, 2018 .............................................................................................. 20 
Table 14 Poverty Status, 2018 City of Colfax and Placer County ................................................................... 21 
Table 15 Housing Overpayment ........................................................................................................................... 22 
Table 16 Housing Overpayment for Low Income Households ...................................................................... 22 
Table 17 Housing Units by Housing Type ........................................................................................................... 23 
Table 18 Households by Tenure .......................................................................................................................... 24 
Table 19 Occupancy Status of Housing Stock ................................................................................................... 25 
Table 20 Age of Housing Stock, 2018 .................................................................................................................. 26 
Table 21 Rental Rates ............................................................................................................................................... 27 
Table 22 Median Sales Prices in Placer County ................................................................................................ 27 
Table 23 Housing Affordability by Income Level, Placer County, 2020 ...................................................... 28 
Table 24 Households by Tenure by Age, 2018 ................................................................................................. 29 
Table 25 Senior Households by Income, 2018 – City of Colfax ..................................................................... 30 
Table 26 Senior Households by Income Category: .......................................................................................... 30 
Table 27 Disability Characteristics Age ................................................................................................................ 31 
Table 28 Persons with Developmental Disabilities by Age, 2019 .................................................................. 32 
Table 29 Household Size by Tenure .................................................................................................................... 33 
Table 30 Farmworkers - City of Colfax ............................................................................................................... 34 
Table 31 Farms and Farmworkers by Work Period Length – Placer County .............................................. 35 
Table 32 Household Type and Presence of Children 18 Years Old and Under  ....................................... 36 
Table 33 Households by Poverty Level, 2018 – City of Colfax ....................................................................... 36 
Table 34 Inventory of at-Risk Assisted Complexes (2020) .............................................................................. 41 
Table 35 Fair Housing Issues in Colfax ................................................................................................................ 65 

Item 5A

37



JULY 2021 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page iii 

6 

Housing 
Table 36 Regional Housing Needs Allocation (2021–2029) ........................................................................... 68
Table 37 Realistic Capacities .................................................................................................................................. 69
Table 38 Vacant Land by Zoning ......................................................................................................................... 70
Table 39 Summary of RHNA and Sites Capacity ............................................................................................... 71
Table 40 Vacant Land Inventory .......................................................................................................................... 72
Table 41 Development Standards by Residential Zone .................................................................................. 78
Table 42 Housing Types Permitted by Zoning District ................................................................................... 80
Table 43 Vacant Industrial Land ........................................................................................................................... 82
Table 44 Planning Application Fees – Surrounding Jurisdictions ................................................................. 86
Table 45 Colfax Development Review Fees ....................................................................................................... 86
Table 46 Residential Development Fees ............................................................................................................ 87
Table 47 Colfax Development Review and Approval Procedures................................................................ 93
Table 48 Typical Processing Procedures by Project Type .............................................................................. 94
Table 49 Interest Rates ........................................................................................................................................... 98
Table 50 2021–2029 Quantified Objectives ..................................................................................................... 120

Figures 
Figure 1 City of Colfax Location ............................................................................................................................. 10
Figure 2 TCAC/HCD Opportunity Areas ............................................................................................................ 47
Figure 3 Poverty Status ........................................................................................................................................... 50
Figure 4: Diversity Index .......................................................................................................................................... 51
Figure 5 Dominant Family Type ........................................................................................................................... 52
Figure 6 Population with a Disability ................................................................................................................... 55
Figure 7 Proximity to Schools................................................................................................................................ 56
Figure 8 Proximity to Jobs ...................................................................................................................................... 57
Figure 9 Access to Healthy Places ....................................................................................................................... 58
Figure 10 Renters Overpaying for Housing ........................................................................................................ 60
Figure 11 Homeowners Overpaying for Housing .............................................................................................. 61
Figure 12 Vacant Sites Map ................................................................................................................................... 75

Item 5A

38



JULY 2021 

Page iv City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

This page intentionally left blank. 

Item 5A

39



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-5 

6 

Housing 

6.0 Housing Element 
6.1 Introduction to the Housing Element 
Meeting the housing needs established by the State of California continues to be an important goal 
for the City of Colfax (City). As the population of the State continues to grow and scarce resources 
decline, it becomes more difficult for local agencies to create adequate housing opportunities while 
maintaining a high standard of living for our community. 

State law requires each local government entity to adopt a comprehensive long-term general plan 
for the physical development of their city or county. The Housing Element is one of the seven 
mandated elements composing the General Plan. State law, through the Housing Element, addresses 
the existing and projected housing needs within all economic segments of the State’s various 
communities, and in this case, the City of Colfax. This legal mandate recognizes that, for the private 
sector to adequately address housing needs, local governments must adopt land use plans and other 
planning programs to create opportunities that do not constrain development of affordable housing. 
Housing policy in the State is dependent on the effective development and implementation of local 
general plans and particularly housing elements. 

The City’s 2021–2029 Housing Element is based on six goals that provide direction and guidance for 
meeting the City’s housing needs over the next eight years: 

1. Provide housing opportunities and accessibility for all community residents 
2. Remove constraints that discourage the production of affordable housing 
3. Provide and maintain an adequate supply of sites for the development of new affordable 

housing 
4. Preserve, rehabilitate, and enhance existing housing and neighborhoods 
5. Promote and affirmatively further fair housing opportunities throughout the community for all 

persons regardless of age, race, religion, color, ancestry, national origin, sex, marital status, 
disability, familial status, or sexual orientation. 

6. Encourage energy efficiency and conservation into residential development 

6.1.1 Purpose 

The State of California has declared that “…the availability of housing is of vital statewide importance 
and the early attainment of decent housing and a suitable living environment for every California 
family is a priority of the highest order.” In addition, government and the private sector should 
cooperate to provide a diversity of housing opportunity and accommodate regional housing needs. 
At the same time, housing policy must recognize economic, environmental and fiscal factors and 
community goals within the general plan. 

Item 5A

40



JULY 2021 

Page 6-6 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Further, State Housing Element law requires: 

» An assessment of housing needs and an inventory of resources and constraints relevant to 
the meeting of these needs. 

» An analysis of population and employment trends 
» An analysis of the City’s fair share of the regional housing needs 
» An analysis of household characteristics 
» An inventory of suitable land for residential development 
» An analysis of the governmental and non-governmental constraints on the improvement, 

maintenance, and development of housing 
» An analysis of special housing needs 
» An analysis of opportunities for energy conservation 
» An analysis of publicly assisted housing developments that are “at-risk” of converting to 

non-assisted housing developments 
» Identification of regulatory provisions for emergency shelters. 

The purpose of these requirements is to develop an understanding of the existing and projected 
housing needs within the community and to set forth policies and schedules which promote 
preservation, improvement and development of diverse types and costs of housing throughout 
Colfax. 

6.1.2 Organization 

Colfax’s Housing Element is organized into six primary sections: 

Introduction to the Housing Element provides the community context, legal requirements of State 
housing element law, and a summary of the public outreach and community engagement methods 
used to achieve the community’s participation in the development of this update of the Housing 
Element. 

Community Profile lays out the demographic, housing, and employment characteristics of the City of 
Colfax and discusses the housing needs of the City going forward. 

Housing Resources Inventory lays out what housing assets the City currently has, including an 
inventory of sites that have potential to be developed into housing. 

Housing Constraints examines possible barriers to housing development and affordability in the City 
by evaluating building, land use, and other government regulation as well as nongovernmental 
constraints such as financing.  

Item 5A

41



JULY 2021 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-7 

6 

Housing 
Review of Previous Housing Element evaluates the implementation status and effectiveness of the 
2013–2021 Housing Element programs. 

Housing Goals, Policies, and Programs lays out the goals, policies, and programs the City will pursue 
over the next eight years to create quality, affordable housing in the City of Colfax.  

6.1.3 General Plan Consistency 

State law requires that “the general plan and elements and parts thereof comprise an integrated, 
internally consistent, and compatible statement of policies.” The purpose of requiring internal 
consistency is to avoid policy conflict and provide a clear policy guide for the future maintenance, 
improvement, and development of housing within the city. Concurrently with this Housing Element 
update, the Colfax General Plan, including the Safety Element is being reviewed and updated to bring 
it into compliance with State law. The concurrent process has ensured consistency between the 
Housing Element and other General Plan elements. The City will continue to review and revise the 
Housing Element, as necessary for consistency, when amendments are made to the General Plan. 

6.1.4 Public Participation 

State law requires a diligent effort be made to achieve public participation during the update of the 
Housing Element. Public participation assists the City with identifying and analyzing existing and 
projected housing needs in order to achieve the City’s goal to preserve, improve and develop housing 
for all incoming segments of the community. 

It is important to note that the City of Colfax’s effort to encourage community participation of its 
housing policies and programs is an ongoing process. The City provides translation services for 
materials and presentations by request; however, no residents requested notices or meetings to be 
provided in a language other than English during the Housing Element update process. 

Public outreach efforts in conjunction with the Housing Element update are described herein. 

Public Meetings and Hearings 

The City of Colfax held a public workshop (prior to completing the Draft Housing Element Update) on 
October 21, 2020, to provide an overview of the update process, solicit public input, and encourage 
public participation in the Housing Element update process. Outreach was targeted to lower-income 
residents, special needs groups, and service providers. A flyer with information about the workshop 
posted on the City’s website and social media pages was sent to local service providers, affordable 
housing developers, various Placer County agencies, including the Health & Human Services 
Department, legal aid providers, and the Colfax Area Chamber of Commerce. The flyer informed 
prospective participants of the concurrent Housing Element and General Plan updates, both of which 
were discussed at the meeting. The notice also encouraged community members to share input or 
ask questions prior to, or after, the workshop by emailing the Planning Director.  

Item 5A

42



JULY 2021 

Page 6-8 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

The workshop was attended by Colfax Planning Department staff, two Planning Commission/City 
Council members, and one member of the public. Consultants hired by the City to complete the 
General Plan and Housing Element updates gave a brief presentation on the Housing Element 
requirements, the City’s share of the regional housing needs, and the update process. Members of 
the public were asked if they had, or knew of, any housing-related needs or concerns that the City 
should consider in its upcoming draft Housing Element update.  This presentation was followed by an 
informal question-and-answer session about the City’s housing need requirements. 

Key discussion points and public input from the workshops were recorded in notes prepared by the 
City’s consultants to be considered in the drafting of the Housing Element. Attendees at the workshop 
were told they could fill out a written comment form in addition to providing a verbal comment at the 
workshop. They were also given the opportunity to provide their contact information on the sign-in 
sheet, which included a request to receive future notices regarding the Housing Element update 
process. 

A. PUBLIC COMMENTS

The Public Review Draft Housing Element was released on April 6, 2021 and was made available on 
the City’s website and direct noticing was sent to local housing agencies and advocate groups.  

B. CONSULTATIONS

To ensure the City was representing all segments of the community, consultations were conducted. 
In August 2020, the City reached out to nine agencies. Of these, four responded and consultations 
were conducted with stakeholders to offer the opportunity for each of them to provide one-on-one 
input. The following stakeholders were interviewed: 

» Placer Community Foundation, on August 4, 2020
» Legal Services of Northern California, on August 11, 2020
» Rural Community Assistance Corporation, on August 18, 2020
» Placer County Health and Human Services, on August 27, 2020

Through these consultations, stakeholders expressed common remarks regarding opportunities and 
concerns for housing in Colfax. A common opportunity that stakeholders saw was that Colfax is largely 
an untapped market for developers and people to buy and occupy housing. Specifically, opportunities 
for mobile home parks, studios and small one-bedroom apartments, and workforce housing were 
cited as main untapped development opportunities that could meet much of the housing need in 
Colfax. Common concerns included the threat of wildland fire due to Colfax’s wildland-urban interface 
and access to services due to the City’s limited transportation options. Lack of developable land 
availability and political support for development were also cited as major concerns for the future of 
housing. The feedback gathered during these consultations was used to inform development of 
programs, the assessment of fair housing and disproportionate housing need, and identify any 
potential constraints on development that are discussed further in the Constraints section of this 

Item 5A

43



JULY 2021 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-9 

6 

Housing 
Housing Element. Refer to Section 6.6 for updated programs for this Housing Element. Additionally, 
some items will be addressed in the Safety element update occurring concurrently with this Housing 
Element update.  

Placer County Health and Human Services specifically stated that housing authority customers need 
at least two-bedroom housing options for low-income families in the area. For individuals 
experiencing homelessness and recipients of mental health services, one-bedroom and studio units 
are ideal. All stakeholders expressed that there is an insufficient number of rental units for younger 
generations (those between 20 and 30 years), and for seniors and those with disabilities. Workforce 
housing (housing for teachers, service workers, etc.) was also cited as a major need in Colfax. These 
needs contribute to the largest barriers to finding affordable, decent housing in Colfax; the largest 
barrier cited is the lack of affordable housing stock. Stakeholders also discussed an economic trend in 
the City where lower-wage jobs are being created, but only market-rate housing is being developed, 
contributing to housing disparity and inequity among lower-income families. 

The physical condition of housing was not widely commented on during the consultation as a result 
of stakeholders not feeling that their work resulted in expertise on this topic. However, those consulted 
did mention that there is a lack of adequate service infrastructure in the City, especially internet access 
due to the rural nature of the area, though this issue is primarily in areas outside of the incorporated 
city limits. 

Stakeholders also remarked that reports of Section 8 vouchers being denied has resulted in equity 
issues, though this has been somewhat mitigated since the passage of Assembly Bill (AB) 329. 
However, high cost of utilities (sewer, propane, and internet) has contributed to disparities in 
affordability of housing. Respondents recommended more affordable housing projects be 
constructed to address these issues, especially due to a growing concern about displacement and loss 
of housing. This has been exacerbated since the COVID-19 pandemic began, and Health and Human 
Services anticipates a spike in eviction cases. Stakeholders recommended rent control or stabilization 
as a mechanism to address these issues. 

A full list of the questions asked to stakeholders during consultations can be found in Appendix A. 

Item 5A

44



JULY 2021 

Page 6-10 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

6.2 Community Profile  
Colfax is in the Sierra Foothills near Interstate 80, 50 miles east of Sacramento (Figure 1). It is 
characterized as a small, historic town that grew from the railroad industry. As a foothill community, 
it has steep topography that is a challenge to build on with limited flat areas that are generally built 
out. The earliest contemporary history of Colfax began in a little valley just below Colfax on the 
southern side of the Southern Pacific Railroad. Along a bend in the valley known as Alder Grove, 
miners first congregated as early as the spring of 1849. The area became the distributing point of 
supplies for all the mining camps around it. As a commercial area, it ranked with Dry Diggings (Auburn) 
until late in the fall of 1849, when fear of a harsh winter in the upper canyon area discouraged winter 
trading activity. The site for the town, which is today known as Colfax, was laid out by the Central 
Pacific Railroad in 1865. The name Colfax came from Schuyler Colfax, who served as Vice President in 
the Grant administration. In 1875, Colfax was listed as one of the leading towns in Placer County as a 
distribution center. In 1910, the City of Colfax was incorporated. 

FIGURE 1 
CITY OF COLFAX LOCATION 

Sources: SACOG Open Data, 2020; Placer County Open Data, 2020; 
Sacramento County Open Data, 2020; Esri. 

Item 5A

45



JULY 2021 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-11 

6 

Housing 

6.2.1 Data Sources 

To assess the present and future housing needs of the City of Colfax, it is important to analyze 
demographic variables, such as population, employment, and households. This section uses sources 
such as the 2006–2010 and 2014–2018 American Community Survey (ACS), California Department of 
Finance (Demographic Research Unit), and the Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG) 
data packet.  

6.2.2 Population Characteristics 

Population Trends 

The SACOG region consists of 18 cities, including the City of Colfax, and the unincorporated areas of 
four counties, including Placer County. As shown in Table 1, between 2010 and 2020, Placer County’s 
population increased by 15.9 percent or 55,279 persons. Four counties surround Placer County: El 
Dorado, Yuba, Sacramento, and Nevada. Of these counties, Placer County is the second most 
populated. 

The City of Colfax was fourth in population growth of the six surrounding cities between 2010 and 
2020, with an estimated 9.6-percent growth rate. Colfax and most of the surrounding cities have 
experienced substantial population increase in the past nine years, with only Grass Valley experiencing 
almost no growth.  

TABLE 1 
POPULATION TRENDS – PLACER COUNTY AND NEIGHBORING COMMUNITIES 

Jurisdiction 2010 2020 Numerical 
Change 

Percent 
Change 

California 37,253,956 39,782,870 2,528,914 6.8%
Placer County 348,432 403,711 55,279 15.9% 
Colfax 1,963 2,152 189 9.6%
Auburn 13,330 14,594 1,264 9.5%
Grass Valley 12,860 12,865 5 0.0% 
Rocklin 56,974 70,350 13,376 23.5%
Roseville 118,788 145,163 26,375 22.2%
Loomis 6,430 6,888 458  7.1%
Nevada City 3,068 3,140 72  2.3% 

Source: Department of Finance, 2020 

Item 5A

46



JULY 2021 

Page 6-12 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Population Projections 

According to population projections prepared by SACOG, Colfax is expected to experience a 
consistent level of growth over the next two decades (see Table 2). Colfax’s population over the long 
term is expected to grow at the following rate. 

TABLE 2 
POPULATION PROJECTIONS

Year 2012 2020 2036 
Population 1,999 2,078 2,297 

Source: SACOG MTP/SCS Modeling Projections, 2016  

Age Characteristics 

Between 2010 and 2018, the median age in Colfax decreased from 38 to 35 years of age. Persons 
between the ages of 25 and 34, the largest age group, represented 16.0 percent of the population in 
2018, an increase of 27.0 percent since 2010 (see Table 3). In addition to the City’s population shifting 
younger, there has been a substantial increase in the population under age five. An increase in young 
family often results in increased demand for larger housing units with two or more bedrooms. To 
accommodate this growing housing demand in Colfax, the City has included Measure 6.1 to work with 
developers to identify mechanisms to encourage construction of larger housing units. 

TABLE 3 
POPULATION BY AGE TRENDS - CITY OF COLFAX 

Age Group 2010 2018 Change 
Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 

0 – 4 146 7.4% 201 9.9% 55 37.7% 
5 – 9 117 6.0% 105 5.2% -12 -10.3%
10 – 14 141 7.2% 109 5.4% -32 -22.7%
15 – 19 139 7.1% 146 7.2% 7 5.0% 
20 – 24 115 5.9% 136 6.7% 21 18.3% 
25 – 34 256 13.0% 325 16.0% 69 27.0% 
35 – 44 245 12.5% 230 11.3% -15 -6.1%
45 – 54 314 16.0% 278 13.7% -36 -11.5%
55 – 59 146 7.4% 118 5.8% -28 -19.2%
60 – 64 120 6.1% 112 5.5% -8 -6.7%
65 – 74 113 5.8% 140 6.9% 27 23.9% 

Item 5A

47



JULY 2021 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-13 

6

Housing 

Age Group 2010 2018 Change 
Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 

75 – 84 84 4.3% 99 4.9% 15 17.9% 
85+ 27 1.4% 30 1.5% 3 11.1% 
Total 1,963 100.0% 2,029 100.0% 66 3.4%
Median Age (years) 
   Colfax 38 35 -- 
   Placer County 40 42 -- 
   California 35 36 -- 

Source: SACOG, 2014–2018 American Community Survey, 2010 Decennial Census 

Race and Ethnicity 

Race and ethnicity can potentially reflect cultural preferences regarding housing needs. For example, 
certain cultures may be accustomed to living with extended family members and need larger units. 
Therefore, planning for communities with high concentrations of certain racial/ethnic groups should 
consider the unique housing needs of these groups.  

California in general, and Northern California recently, has seen a significant rise in its minority 
populations. According to the 2014–2018 ACS, 9.4 percent of the population in the City of Colfax is of 
Hispanic descent (see Table 4). By race, the white population is the largest racial group in the City at 
81.2 percent. A small number of minorities include some other race (2.0 percent), two or more races 
(2.7 percent), American Indian/Alaska Native (1.6 percent), Black/African American (3.3 percent), and 
Asian/Pacific Islander (0.0 percent).  

The population that identifies as Hispanic or Latino remained relatively steady in the City between 
2010 and 2018, increasing by 0.3 percent, according to ACS estimates. Recent studies have suggested 
that Hispanics and/or Latinos differ in attitudes toward housing densities and household size, as well 
as cultural practices of living with extended families; thus, housing needs tend to vary and should be 
an important factor in determining local housing needs.  

According to the 2014–2018 ACS, 81.2 percent of the Colfax population categorize themselves as 
White, as compared to 73.2 percent of the Placer County population. In the City, 9.4 percent of the 
population categorizes themselves as Hispanic origin. 

Item 5A

48



JULY 2021 

Page 6-14 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

TABLE 4 
POPULATION BY RACE AND ETHNICITY - 2018 

Category City of Colfax Placer County 
Number Percent Number Percent 

White 1,647 81.2% 278,380 73.2%
Black 66 3.3% 5,868 1.5%
American Indian 32 1.6% 1,244 0.3% 
Asian/Pacific Islander 0 0.0% 27,772 7.3% 
Other 40 2.0% 403 0.1%
Two or more Races 54 2.7% 13,912 3.7% 
Hispanic Origin 190 9.4% 52,498 13.8% 

Source: SACOG, 2014–2018 American Community Survey 

6.2.3 Employment Characteristics 

Employment 

Table 5 depicts the distribution of employment industries in the City. The largest industry in the City 
of Colfax in 2018 was educational, health, and social services (19.4 percent) despite seeing a slight 
decline from 2010. The second-largest industry in 2018 was the retail trade industry, making up 18.4 
percent of the labor force. Transportation and warehousing and utilities experienced the greatest 
decline from 2010 to 2018, dropping from 11 percent to 1 percent of the labor force in the City.   

TABLE 5 
EMPLOYMENT BY INDUSTRY - CITY OF COLFAX 

Major Industries 
City of Colfax 

2010 2018 
Number Percent Number Percent 

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing and Hunting, and 
Mining 0 0.0% 16 1.8% 

Construction 102 12.1% 125 14.2%
Manufacturing 51 6.0% 53 6.0% 
Wholesale Trade 21 2.5% 39 4.4% 
Retail Trade 132 15.6% 162 18.4% 
Transportation and Warehousing, Utilities 93 11.0% 9 1.0% 
Information 25 3.0% 9 1.0%

Item 5A

49



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-15 

6 

Housing 

Major Industries 
City of Colfax 

2010 2018 
Number Percent Number Percent 

Finance, Insurance, Real Estate, and Rental and 
Leasing 33 3.9% 67 7.6% 

Professional, Scientific, Management, 
Administrative, and Waste Management Services 52 6.1% 46 5.2% 

Educational, Health, and Social Services 172 20.3% 172 19.6% 
Arts, Entertainment, Recreation, Accommodation, 
and Food Services 53 6.3% 59 6.7% 

Public Administration 70 8.3% 52 5.9% 
Other Services 42 5.0% 70 8.0% 
Employed Civilian Population 16 Years and Over 846 100.0% 879 100.0% 

Source: SACOG, 2006–2010 and 2014–2018 American Community Survey 

Top Employers 

Major employers in the Colfax area as of 2020 include a manufacturer, retail trade, school district, and 
an energy provider (see Table 6). 

TABLE 6 
COLFAX AREA MAJOR EMPLOYERS 

Employer 
Winner Chevrolet 

Placer Union High School District1 
Hills Flat Lumber 

Sierra Energy 
Sierra Market 

Source: City of Colfax Planning Department, 2020 
1. Employed at Colfax High School 

  

Item 5A

50



JULY 2021 

Page 6-16 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Labor Force 

According to the American Community Survey, the City of Colfax labor force contained approximately 
1,047 persons in 2019. At that time, the unemployment rate was 7.6 percent (see Table 7). According 
to the California Employment Development Department, the unemployment rate had increased to 
9.5 percent in December 2020. This increase in unemployment is likely a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic, which resulted in a drastic increase in unemployment nationally in 2020. 

TABLE 7 
CIVILIAN LABOR FORCE – CITY OF COLFAX 

Year Population in 
the Labor Force 

Employed 
Population 

Unemployed 
Population 

Unemployment 
Rate 

2010 958 846 112 11.7% 
2011 1,075 950 125 11.6% 
2012 1,091 888 203 18.6% 
2013 1,278 1,046 232 18.2% 
2014 1,393 1,174 219 15.7% 
2015 1,318 1,117 201 15.3% 
2016 1,229 1,037 1,228 15.6% 
2017 1,106 994 112 10.1% 
2018 951 879 72 7.6% 
2019 1,047 967 80 7.6% 
Source: American Community Survey 5-year estimates 2010 through 2019 Table S2301 

6.2.4 Household Characteristics 

Household Type 

A household refers to the people occupying a home, such as a family, a single person, or unrelated 
persons living together. Family households often prefer single-family homes or condominiums to 
accommodate children, and nonfamily households generally occupy smaller apartments or 
condominiums.  

Table 8 displays household composition as reported by the 2014–2018 ACS. In the City of Colfax, 
families made up 53.8 percent of all households, and 34.0 percent of families have children under 18 
years of age. Placer County has a substantially higher percentage of families (69.1 percent), but a lower 
percentage of those families have children under 18 years of age (30.7 percent). 

  

Item 5A

51



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-17 

6 

Housing 

TABLE 8  
HOUSEHOLD CHARACTERISTICS, 2018  

Jurisdiction Households 
Average 

Household 
Size 

Percentage of Households 

Families 
Families with 

Children 
Under 18 

Nonfamily 

Colfax 868 2.34 53.8% 34.0% 46.2% 
Placer County 140,661 2.68 69.1% 30.7% 30.9% 

Source: SACOG, 2014–2018 American Community Survey Tables S1101 and S2501  

Household Size 

Household size is also an important factor in determining the size of housing units needed within a 
jurisdiction. In the City of Colfax, “large” households containing five or more persons represented 4.4 
percent of all households in 2018, a decrease from 8.1 percent of households in 2010. “Small” 
households with one or two persons represented 68.2 percent. Households with one person were the 
fastest-growing household size between 2010 and 2018, increasing from 31.5 percent in 2010 to 36.2 
percent in 2018 (see Table 9). This would indicate a growing demand for smaller housing units with 
one to two bedrooms. 

TABLE 9 
HOUSEHOLD SIZE TRENDS 

Household Size 2010 2018 
Number Percent Number Percent 

CITY OF COLFAX 
1 Person 259 31.5% 314 36.2% 
2 Person 268 32.6% 278 32.0% 
3–4 Person 229 27.8% 238 27.4% 
5+ Person 67 8.1% 38 4.4% 

PLACER COUNTY 
1 Person 30,496 23.0% 34,612 24.6% 
2 Person 47,551 35.9% 51,134 36.4% 
3–4 Person 40,911 30.8% 41,751 29.7% 
5+ Person 13,669 10.3% 13,164 9.4% 

Source: SACOG, 2014–2018 American Community Survey  

  

Item 5A

52



JULY 2021 

Page 6-18 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Overcrowded Households 

The US Census Bureau defines overcrowding as a housing unit that is occupied by more than one 
person per room (not including kitchens and bathrooms). Units with more than 1.5 persons per room 
are considered severely overcrowded and indicate a significant housing need. 

Overcrowding is not a significant housing problem in Colfax. According to 2014–2018 ACS data, there 
were a total of 27 overcrowded households, representing only 3.1 percent of all households in 2018 
(see Table 10). Of the 27 overcrowded households, approximately 81 percent (22 households) are 
renter households. At the same time, overcrowded renter households represent 4.8 percent of all 
renter households, which is significantly less than 13.4 percent for the State of California. 

TABLE 10 
OVERCROWDED HOUSEHOLDS, 2018  

Persons Per 
Room 

Owners Renters Total 
Number Percentage Number Percentage Number Percentage 

1.0–1.5 5 1.2% 22 4.8% 27 3.1% 
More than 1.5 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 

Total 
Overcrowded 
Households 

5 1.2% 22 4.8% 27 3.1% 

Total Households 407 100.0% 461 100.0% 868 100.0% 
Source: 2014–2018 American Community Survey Table S2501 

6.2.5 Income Characteristics 

HCD Income Limits 

The California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) publishes annual income 
limits for each county in the state. The 2020 area median income (AMI) in Placer County (for a four-
person household) is $86,300. Table 11 shows the maximum annual income level for each income 
group adjusted for household size for Placer County, as determined by HCD. The maximum annual 
income data is used to calculate the maximum affordable housing payments for the different 
households (varying by income level) and their eligibility for federal housing assistance.  

  

Item 5A

53



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-19 

6 

Housing 

TABLE 11 
MAXIMUM HOUSEHOLD INCOME LEVEL, 2020 BY HOUSEHOLD SIZE FOR PLACER COUNTY  

Household 
Size 

Maximum Income Level 
Extremely 

Low Very Low Low Median Moderate 

1-Person $18,150 $30,250 $48,350 $60,400 $72,500 
2-Person $20,750 $34,550 $55,250 $69,050 $82,850 
3-Person $23,350 $38,850 $62,150 $77,650 $93,200 
4-Person $26,200 $43,150 $69,050 $86,300 $103,550 
5-Person $30,680 $46,650 $74,600 $93,200 $111,850 
6-Person $35,160 $50,100 $80,100 $100,100 $120,100 
7-Person $39,640 $53,550 $85,650 $107,000 $128,400 
8-Person $44,120 $57,000 $91,150 $113,900 $136,700 

Source: California Department of Housing and Community Development, Division of Housing Policy Development, 
State Income 2020. 

Household Income 

A household’s income affects its ability to find appropriate housing and determines the type and 
quality of housing. According to the ACS, the median household income in 2018 for the City of Colfax 
was $49,571 per year. This is lower than both the county median of $61,937 and the state median of 
$75,277. The distribution of household incomes in Colfax is shown in Table 12. 

TABLE 12 
HOUSEHOLD INCOME, 2018 

Income  Number Percentage 
Less than $10,000 53 6.1% 
$10,000 to $14,999 102 11.8% 
$15,000 to $24,999 76 8.8% 
$25,000 to $34,999 100 11.5% 
$35,000 to $49,999 109 12.6% 
$50,000 to $74,999 197 22.7% 
$75,000 to $99,999 110 12.7% 
$100,000 to $149,999 98 11.3% 
$150,000 to $199,999 23 2.6% 

Item 5A

54



JULY 2021 

Page 6-20 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Income  Number Percentage 
$200,000 or more 0 0.0% 
Median Household Income 
Colfax $49,571 
Placer County $84,357 
California $71,228 

Source: 2014–2018 American Community Survey Tables B19001 and B19013  

Approximately 68 percent of households in Colfax are considered lower-income households by the 
HCD State Income Limits (Table 13). Market-rate housing is often unaffordable to these households 
and there is an increase in demand for affordable housing. 

TABLE 13 
HOUSEHOLDS BY INCOME CATEGORY, 2018 

Income Category Number Percentage 
Extremely Low 232 27% 
Very Low 135 16% 
Low 184 21% 
Moderate 178 21% 
Above Moderate 139 16% 
Total 868 100% 

Source: 2014–2018 American Community Survey Tables B19001 and B19013, HCD State Income Limits, 2018. 
Note: Based off four-person household income categories. 

Poverty 

Approximately 13.2 percent of all Colfax families with children under age 18 were in poverty, according 
to the 2014–2018 ACS data shown in Table 14. This figure is higher than for the county overall, which 
has a rate of 7.5 percent. The percentages of female-headed families in poverty in Colfax are almost 
double the percentage of married families. Similarly, female-headed families in poverty in Placer 
County are more than double the rate of married Placer County families in poverty. Colfax does not 
have any female-headed families with children under five in poverty, relative to 20.2 percent of 
female-headed households with children under five in Placer County.  

  

Item 5A

55



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-21 

6 

Housing 

TABLE 14 
POVERTY STATUS, 2018 

CITY OF COLFAX AND PLACER COUNTY  

Poverty Status Category 
Percentage in Poverty 

Colfax Placer County 
Families 8.4% 5.7% 

With Children Under Age 18 13.2% 7.5% 
With Children Under Age 5 7.4% 7.0% 

Families, Female Householder, No Husband Present 16.2% 16.2% 
With Children Under Age 18 22.3% 21.8% 
With Children Under Age 5 0.0% 20.2% 

Individuals 13.6% 8.0% 
Age 18 to 64  13.6% 8.0% 
Age 65 and Over 13.4% 8.0% 

Source: 2014–2018 American Community Survey Tables S1701 and S1702  

Overpayment 

Overpayment is an important measure of the affordability of housing within a city. Overpayment for 
housing is based on the total cost of shelter compared to a household’s ability to pay. Specifically, 
overpayment is defined as a household paying more than 30 percent of their gross household income 
for shelter. According to the US Census, shelter cost is the monthly owner costs (mortgages, deeds of 
trust, contracts to purchase or similar debts on the property, taxes, insurance, and utilities) or the gross 
rent (contract rent plus the estimated average monthly cost of utilities). 

A total of 164 owner households (18.0 percent of total households) were paying more than 30 percent 
of their income for housing in 2016 (see Tables 15 and 16). In contrast, 224 renter households (24.6 of 
total households) were paying more than 30 percent of their income for housing.  

Of all owner-occupied households within the City, 60 (6.6%) are considered extremely low-income; 
for 50 percent of those households, the cost of housing is greater than half of the gross household 
income. Similarly, of all renter-occupied households within the City, 90 (9.1%) are considered extremely 
low income; for 33 percent of those households, the cost of housing is greater than half of their 
household incomes.  

  

Item 5A

56



JULY 2021 

Page 6-22 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

TABLE 15 
HOUSING OVERPAYMENT 

Household Tenure Number Percent 
Total Occupied Units (Households) 910 100.0% 
     Total Households Overpaying 448 49.2% 
Total Renter Households 535 58.8% 
     Total Renter Households Overpaying 269 50.3% 
Total Owner Households 375 41.2% 
       Total Owner Households Overpaying 179 47.7% 

Source: Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy (CHAS) 2012–2016 dataset. 

TABLE 16 
HOUSING OVERPAYMENT FOR LOW INCOME HOUSEHOLDS 
Income Category Number Percent 

Total Lower-Income Households (0-80% of AMI) 545 100.0% 
Lower Income Renters (0–80%) 300 55.0% 
Lower Income Owners (0–80%) 245 45.0% 

Lower Income Households Paying More Than 30% 388 42.9% 
Lower Income Renter Households Overpaying 224 57.4% 
     Extremely Low-Income (ELI) Renter (0-30% of AMI) 60 26.8% 
     Very Low-Income Renter (31-50% of AMI) 75 33.5% 
     Low-Income Renter (51-80% of AMI) 89 39.7% 
Lower Income Owner Households Overpaying 164 42.1% 
     ELI Owner (0-30% of AMI) 45 27.4% 
     Very Low-Income Owner (31-50% of AMI) 40 24.4% 
     Low-Income Owner (51-80% of AMI) 79 48.2% 

Lower Income Households Paying More Than 50% 148 27.2% 
Lower Income Renter Households Overpaying 74 50.0% 
     Extremely Low-Income (ELI) Renter (0-30% of AMI) 30 40.5% 
     Very Low-Income Renter (31-50% of AMI) 40 54.1% 
     Low-Income Renter (51-80% of AMI) 4 5.4% 
Lower Income Owner Households Overpaying 74 50.0% 
     ELI Owner (0-30% of AMI) 30 40.5% 
     Very Low-Income Owner (31-50% of AMI) 40 54.1% 
     Low-Income Owner (51-80% of AMI) 4 5.4% 

Source: Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy (CHAS) 2012–2016 dataset. 

Item 5A

57



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-23 

6 

Housing 

6.2.6 Housing Stock Characteristics  

Housing Type 

According to the Department of Finance, in 2020, just over two-thirds (70.6 percent) of the city’s 
housing stock was made up of single-family homes, approximately one-quarter (27.1 percent) were 
multifamily units, and the remaining 2.3 percent were mobile homes (see Table 17). Placer County had 
higher percentages of single-family homes (80.8 percent) but a lower percentage of multifamily units 
(16.6 percent).  

TABLE 17 
HOUSING UNITS BY HOUSING TYPE  

Housing Type 2020 
Number Percentage 

Single-Family Detached 611 65.5% 
Single-Family Attached 48 5.1% 
2 to 4 Units 186 19.9% 
5 or More Units 67 7.2% 
Mobile Homes 21 2.3% 
Total Housing Units 933 100.0% 

Source: California Department of Finance, 2020 

Housing Tenure 

Housing tenure (owner versus renter) can be affected by many factors, such as housing cost (interest 
rates, economics, land supply, and development constraints), housing type, housing availability, job 
availability, and consumer preference.  

Table 18 details housing tenure in Colfax according to 2006–2010 and 2014–2018 ACS data. When 
comparing this to Placer County, the City of Colfax has a lower owner-occupied household percentage 
(46.9 percent) than the county (57.4 percent). On the other hand, Colfax has a slightly higher 
percentage of renter-occupied households (53.1 percent) relative to the county (42.6 percent). 

  

Item 5A

58



JULY 2021 

Page 6-24 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

TABLE 18 
HOUSEHOLDS BY TENURE 

Tenure 2010 2018 Numerical 
Difference 

Percentage 
Change Number Percentage Number Percentage 

Renter-occupied 
Households 327 42.6% 461 53.1% 134 41.0% 

Owner-occupied 
Households 441 57.4% 407 46.9% -34 -7.7% 

Source: SACOG, 2006–2010 and 2014–2018 American Community Survey 

Vacancy Rates 

The vacancy rate is an indicator of the general availability of housing. It also reflects how well available 
units meet the current housing market demand. A low vacancy rate suggests that households may 
have difficulty finding housing within their price range; a high vacancy rate may indicate a mismatch 
between household characteristics and the type of available units, or an oversupply of housing units. 
The availability of vacant housing units provides households with choices on different unit types to 
accommodate changing needs (e.g., single persons, newly married couples, and elderly households 
typically need smaller units than households with school-age children). A low vacancy rate may 
contribute to higher-market rents and prices and may limit the choices of households in finding 
adequate housing. It may also be related to overcrowding, as discussed earlier. 

The average annual vacancy rate in 2018 for Colfax is 6.8 percent overall (see Table 19). For rental 
units, the vacancy rate is 1.2 percent, and it is 2.5 percent for for-sale units, according to 2014–2018 
ACS data. Typically, a minimum target rate for overall unit vacancy of 3 percent is considered 
acceptable to ensure an adequate choice of housing for consumers. An acceptable vacancy rate for 
owner-occupied housing is 1.5 percent, and a vacancy rate of 5 percent is acceptable for rental units. 
Vacancy rates in Colfax suggest a shortage of rental housing choices but a surplus of ownership units. 
Rental vacancy rates in Colfax are low at 1.2 percent, compared to 2.5 percent for owner-occupied 
units (Table 19). 

  

Item 5A

59



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-25 

6 

Housing 

TABLE 19 
OCCUPANCY STATUS OF HOUSING STOCK 

Type 2010 2018 Numerical 
Difference 

Percentage 
Change Number Percentage Number Percentage 

Occupied 768 89.9% 868 93.2% 100 13.0% 
Vacant 86 10.1% 63 6.8% -23 -26.7% 

For rent 60 7.0% 11 1.2% -49 -81.7% 
For sale 20 2.3% 23 2.5% 3 15.0% 
Rented/sold,  
not occupied 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 

For seasonal/ 
recreational or  
occasional use 

0 0.0% 4 0.4% 4 - 

All others, 
including migrant 
workers 

6 0.7% 25 2.7% 19 316.7% 

Total Housing Units* 854 100.0% 931 100.0% 77 9.0% 
Source: 2010 and 2014–2018 American Community Survey Tables B25002 and B25004 
*Totals are estimates reported by ACS and may differ slightly from estimates reported by other sources, such as 
DOF.  

Age of Housing Stock  

Age is one measure of housing stock conditions and a factor for determining the need for 
rehabilitation. Without proper maintenance, housing units deteriorate over time. Thus, units that are 
older are more likely to need major repairs (e.g., a new roof or plumbing). As a general rule, houses 
30 years or older are considered aged and are more likely to require major repairs. In addition, older 
houses may not be built to current standards for fire and earthquake safety.   

Over half of houses in Colfax (43.6 percent) were built after 1990; however, while a large percentage 
of the housing stock is less than 30 years old, there has been a dramatic decline in housing production 
with just 4 percent of the housing stock being built in the last decade (see Table 20). As many housing 
units built prior to 1990 (56.4 percent) may not have been regularly maintained due to the costs of 
maintenance. it is safe to assume that some or most of these units may need some type of 
rehabilitation. The City’s Building Inspector and Code Enforcement Officer also estimated that 
approximately 25 percent of housing units in the City of Colfax do, or will, need some type of 
rehabilitation during the planning period. Additionally, when looking at median home values 
($422,000) and the median income of Colfax residents ($49,571), it is likely that many current property 
owners do not have disposable income for regular maintenance and repairs. Therefore, the 
rehabilitation estimate of approximately 25 percent or more of the housing stock is likely accurate.  

Item 5A

60



JULY 2021 

Page 6-26 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

TABLE 20 
AGE OF HOUSING STOCK, 2018 

Year Structure Built Number of Units Percentage of Total 
Built 2014 or later 14 1.5% 
Built 2010 to 2013 23 2.5% 
Built 2000 to 2009 211 22.7% 
Build 1990 to 1999 157 16.9% 
Built 1980 to 1989 108 11.6% 
Built 1970 to 1979 149 16.0% 
Built 1960 to 1969 73 7.8% 
Built 1950 to 1959 63 6.8% 
Built 1940 to 1949 11 1.2% 
Built 1939 or earlier 122 13.1% 
Total 931* 100.0% 

Source: 2014–2018 American Community Survey Table B25034 
*Totals are estimates reported by ACS and may differ slightly from estimates reported by other sources, such as 
DOF.  

6.2.7 Housing Cost and Affordability 

Rental Prices 

Table 21 shows the apartment rental price ranges in Colfax and surrounding cities for June 2020. 
Searches for the City of Colfax found rental apartments in the one- and two-bedroom categories. 
There was only one of each type listed in the City of Colfax, the one-bedroom was listed for $1,300 
and the two-bedroom for $1,250. The listings in Loomis and Auburn had higher rents than Colfax. 
According to the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development’s (HUD’s) 2020 
Advisory Small Area Fair Market Rent data sets, the Placer County area fair market rents are listed 
between $920 and $1,140 for an efficiency unit.  

  

Item 5A

61



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-27 

6 

Housing 

TABLE 21 
RENTAL RATES 

City 1 Bedroom 2 Bedrooms 3 Bedrooms 4+ Bedrooms 
Range Median Range Median Range Median Range Median 

Colfax $1,300 — $1,250 — — — — — 
Loomis $1,750 — — — $1,895 — — — 

Auburn $1,300–
$1,595 $1,450 $1,040–

$1,925 $1,325 $2,095–
$2,250 $2,250 $1,850–

$3,000 $2,475 

Source: Zillow available listings, June 18, 2020 

Housing Sales Costs  

According to Realtor.com, a website that provides local data on homes for sale, apartments for rent, 
neighborhood insights, markets, and trends, the median sales price for homes in Colfax in June 2020 
was $422,000 (see Table 22 for median sales prices in Colfax and other cities in Placer County). 

TABLE 22 
MEDIAN SALES PRICES IN PLACER COUNTY 

Jurisdiction Median Sales Price 
Colfax $422,000  
Auburn $500,000  
Applegate $446,000  
Newcastle $762,000  
Roseville $467,400  
Meadow Vista $620,000  
Source: Realtor.com, June 2020 

Housing Affordability 

Housing affordability leads to other housing issues. For lower-income renters and owners, severe cost 
burden can require families to double up, resulting in overcrowding and related problems. Although 
homeowners enjoy income and property tax deductions and other benefits that help to compensate 
for high housing costs, lower-income homeowners may need to defer maintenance or repairs due to 
limited funds, which can lead to housing deterioration.  

Significant price inflation in the housing market drove home prices up in the early 2000s. This was 
often referred to as the “housing bubble,” which hit its peak in early 2006 and began to “burst” later 
that year, with the greatest decline in housing prices in U.S. history occurring in 2008. As a result, 
home prices declined across the country and in the State of California.  

Item 5A

62



JULY 2021 

Page 6-28 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Table 23 lists the affordable rents and maximum purchase price based on the HCD income limits for 
Placer County. As shown, the maximum affordable rent is $1,079 monthly for a very-low-income, four-
person household; $1,726 for a low-income household; and $2,589 for a moderate-income 
household. As discussed previously, both rentals available in Colfax in June 2020 were listed at $1,250 
or above, meaning that low- and moderate-income households and above can afford the current 
rental prices. 

According to data from Realtor.com, the median home price for Colfax in June 2020 was $422,000. 
When looking at Table 23, the maximum affordable sales price for a four-person household is 
$83,357 for a very-low-income household, $224,952 for a low-income household, and $413,592 for 
a moderate-income household. This indicates that households below moderate-income would be 
unlikely to be able to afford existing or newly constructed homes in Colfax. Very low- and low-
income households may have trouble finding an affordable house.  

TABLE 23 
HOUSING AFFORDABILITY BY INCOME LEVEL, PLACER COUNTY, 2020 

(Based on a Four-person 
Household in Placer County) 

Income Level 
Very Low Low Moderate 

Annual Income  $43,150  $69,050  $103,550  
Monthly Income $3,596  $5,754  $8,629  
Maximum Monthly Gross Rent1 $1,079  $1,726  $2,589  
Maximum Purchase Price2 $83,357  $224,952  $413,592  

Source: 2020 Income Limits, Department of Housing and Community Development, monthly mortgage 
calculation: https://www.chase.com/mortgage/mortgage-resources/affordability-calculator. 
1 Affordable housing cost for renter-occupied households assumes 30% of gross household income, not 

including utility cost.  
2  Affordable housing sales prices are based on the following assumed variables: approximately 20% down 

payment, 30-year fixed rate mortgage at 4.5% annual interest rate. 

6.2.8 Special Needs Groups 

Certain groups encounter greater difficulty finding decent, affordable housing due to their special 
needs and/or circumstances. Special circumstances may be related to one’s employment and income, 
family characteristics, medical condition or disability, and/or household characteristics. State housing 
element law identifies the following “special needs” groups: the disabled, large households, seniors, 
farmworkers, female heads of households, and the homeless. An important role of the Housing 
Element is to ensure that persons from all segments of the community can find suitable housing. 

 
  

Item 5A

63



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-29 

6 

Housing 

Seniors 

Many elderly households live in housing that costs too much or live-in housing that does not 
accommodate specific needs for assistance. Due to various circumstances, an elderly household may 
have difficulty staying in their home community or near family. The purpose of this section is to 
determine the housing needs for all characteristics of the elderly community, defined as persons over 
the age of 65 years. 

As the population of seniors in the City increases, so do their collective needs. In 2010, 21.0 percent of 
the population in Colfax was aged 65 or older; in 2018, that age group had increased to make up 25.3 
percent of the City’s population (Table 24). The City has included Implementation Measures 6.1 and 
6.6 to address the growing housing needs for this group by working with developers to incentivize 
and support the development of affordable and accessible housing for special needs groups, including 
seniors. 

TABLE 24 
HOUSEHOLDS BY TENURE BY AGE, 2018 

Householder 
Age 

Owners Renters Total 
Number Percentage Number Percentage Number Percentage 

Under 35 years 40 9.8% 124 26.9% 164 18.9% 
35 to 64 years 230 56.5% 254 55.1% 484 55.8% 
65 years or 
more 137 33.7% 83 18.0% 220 25.3% 

Total 407 100.0% 461 100.0% 868 100.0% 
Source: 2014–2018 American Community Survey Table S2502. 

Senior Income 

In 2010, 54.5 percent of all senior citizen households had incomes below $25,000 (see Table 25). By 
2018, this percent has decreased to 42.8 percent. There was also a decrease in the percent of seniors 
earning over $50,000. In 2010, there were 35 senior households (21.0 percent) who earned over 
$50,000 annually; by 2018 that had dropped to 29 households (13.2 percent). The greatest gains were 
in the $35,000 to $49,999 range, with an increase from 6.6 percent of seniors to 29.1 percent of 
seniors.  

  

Item 5A

64



JULY 2021 

Page 6-30 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

TABLE 25 
SENIOR HOUSEHOLDS BY INCOME, 2018 – CITY OF COLFAX 

Income Ranges 2010 2018 
Number Percentage Number Percentage 

Less than $15,000 60 35.9% 60 27.3% 
$15,000–$24,999 31 18.6% 34 15.5% 
$25,000–$34,999 30 18.0% 33 15.0% 
$35,000–$49,999 11 6.6% 64 29.1% 
$50,000–$74,999 31 18.6% 18 8.2% 
$75,000–$99,999 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 
$100,000+ 4 2.4% 11 5.0% 
Total 167 100.0% 220 100.0% 

Source: 2006–2010 and 2014–2018 American Community Survey Table B19037 

Eligibility for federal programs is based on the median income of the county or statistical area in which 
the project or program is located. In this case, eligibility is based on the 2020 HCD State Income Limits 
AMI for Placer County of $69,050 for a two-person household. Using that as the basis, less than 13.2 
percent of senior households are considered moderate or above-moderate income (see Table 26). 

TABLE 26 
SENIOR HOUSEHOLDS BY INCOME CATEGORY – 2018 

2020 AREA MEDIAN INCOME (2-PERSON HOUSEHOLD): $69,050 

Income Category Income Proportion of Senior 
Households in Colfax 

Extremely Low Less than $20,750 40.5% 
Very Low $20,751–$34,550 17.3% 
Low $34,551–$55,250 29.1% 
Moderate $55,251–$82,850 8.2% 
Above Moderate Greater than $82,851 5.0% 
Source: 2020 HCD State Income Limits, 2014–2018 American Community Survey Table B19037 applied to 
State Income Limits 

  

Item 5A

65



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-31 

6 

Housing 

Senior Housing 

Currently, there is one senior complex, Canyon View Apartments, within the City. This complex is a 
67-unit project with 66 low-income units, which currently has a 5-year waiting list. 

The Colfax Sierra Vista Community Center is a non-profit organization located in downtown Colfax. 
The center offers activities such as exercise classes, art classes, health and wellness classes, and cooking 
classes, in addition to providing a monthly free farmer’s market during the growing season, serving 
as an evacuation center for wildfire victims, and a cooling/warming center during extreme weather 
conditions. Conference room rentals are also available for various informational meetings and events. 
In addition, lunches are offered two days a week through Placer County at the United Methodist 
Church. All other senior activities are operated through the local churches and community-based 
organizations, such as the Women’s Auxiliary. 

Available Transportation 

The County operates a fixed-route and dial-a-ride bus system; both systems offer significant fare 
reductions for seniors and disabled residents. 

Persons with Disabilities 

The City of Colfax has a disabled population of 300 persons, that is, 14.8 percent of the total 
population, according to the 2014–2018 ACS. Table 27 provides additional characteristics for the 
disabled population.  

In 2017, the City of Colfax adopted an Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Self-Evaluation & 
Transition Plan to provide a plan, process, and recommendations to promote compliance with the 
requirements of the ADA Title II. The City developed this plan to identify barriers to accessibility for 
persons with disabilities and promote solutions to remove these barriers and a schedule of steps to 
take. The City has a transition plan to upgrade City facilities and infrastructure to meet ADA standards. 

TABLE 27 
DISABILITY CHARACTERISTICS AGE  

 Characteristics Number Percentage 
Total Population  2,029 100.0% 
Total Persons with a Disability  300 14.8% 

Persons Age 65 + with a Disability 30 21.4% 
Type of Disability (All Ages Groups)  

Hearing 82 4.0% 
Vision 54 2.7% 
Cognitive 102 5.6% 

Item 5A

66



JULY 2021 

Page 6-32 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

 Characteristics Number Percentage 
Ambulatory 107 5.9% 
Self-Care 31 1.7% 
Independent Living 96 6.3% 

Total Population in Labor Force  908 100.0% 
Employed – with a disability  33 3.9% 
Unemployed – with a disability 0 0.0% 

Source: SACOG, 2014–2018 American Community Survey Table S1810  
Note: Persons can have more than one type of disability; percentages will not add to 100%. 

Persons with Developmental Disabilities 

Chapter 507, Statutes of 2010 (Senate Bill [SB] 812), which took effect January 2011, requires the City 
to include in the special housing needs analysis the needs of individuals with a developmental disability 
within the community. According to Section 4512 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, 
“developmental disability” means a disability that originates before an individual attains 18 years of 
age, continues, or can be expected to continue, indefinitely, and constitutes a substantial disability for 
that individual.  It includes intellectual disabilities, cerebral palsy, epilepsy, and autism.  This term also 
includes disabling conditions found to be closely related to intellectual disability or to require 
treatment similar to that required for individuals with intellectual disabilities but does not include other 
conditions that are solely physical in nature. 

Many developmentally disabled persons can live and work independently within a conventional 
housing environment. More severely disabled persons require a group living environment where 
supervision is provided. The most severely affected persons may require an institutional environment 
where medical aid and physical therapy are provided. Because developmental disabilities exist before 
adulthood, the first issue in supportive housing for the developmentally disabled is the transition from 
the person’s living situation as a child to an appropriate level of independence as an adult. 

Table 28 includes information about Colfax’s population with a developmentally disability by age.  

TABLE 28 
PERSONS WITH DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES BY AGE, 2019 

Age Range Persons 
0–17 years 35 
18+ years 38 
Total 73 

Source: California Department of Developmental Services 2019. 

Item 5A

67



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-33 

6 

Housing 
A number of housing types are appropriate for people living with a development disability: rent-
subsidized homes, licensed and unlicensed single-family homes, inclusionary housing, Section 8 
housing, special programs for home purchase, HUD housing, and SB 962 homes, which are adult 
residential facilities for persons with special healthcare needs. The design of housing-accessibility 
modifications, the proximity to services and transit, and the availability of group-living opportunities 
represent some of the considerations that are important in serving this special-needs group. 
Incorporating “barrier-free” design in all new multifamily housing (as required by California and federal 
fair housing laws) is especially important to provide the widest range of choices for disabled residents. 
Special consideration should also be given to the affordability of housing, as people with disabilities 
may be living on a fixed income.  

The Placer County Health and Human Services Department in Auburn provides services to disabled 
residents, including: 

» Housing Choice Voucher Program 
» Get Hired! Workshop Series in collaboration with Placer School for Adults 
» Transitional Housing Program 
» Permanent Supportive Housing Program 

Large Households 

Large households are defined as having five or more members residing in the home. These 
households constitute a special-need group because of an often-limited supply of adequately sized, 
affordable housing units. Because of high housing costs, families and/or extended families may be 
forced to live together under one roof. Table 29 shows household size by tenure in Colfax. Nearly 
three-quarters (73.7 percent) of households in the City that are occupied by five or more people are 
rental households. 

TABLE 29 
HOUSEHOLD SIZE BY TENURE  

Tenure 1-4 persons 5+ persons Total 
Number Percentage Number Percentage Number Percentage 

Owner 397 47.8% 10 26.3% 407 46.9% 
Renter 433 52.2% 28 73.7% 461 53.1% 
Total 830 100.0% 38 100.0% 868 100.0% 

Source: SACOG, 2014–2018 American Community Survey. 

 

 

Item 5A

68



JULY 2021 

Page 6-34 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Farmworkers 

Estimating farmworkers and those households associated with farm work within the State is extremely 
difficult. Generally, the farmworker population contains two segments of workers: permanent and 
migratory (seasonal). The permanent population consists of farmworkers who have settled in the 
region, maintain local residence, and are employed most of the year. The migratory farmworker 
population consists of those who typically migrate to the region during seasonal periods in search of 
farm labor employment. Traditional sources of population estimates, including the 2010 Census, have 
tended to significantly underestimate the farmworker population. Moreover, different employment 
estimation techniques result in diverse estimates of local agricultural employment. Nonetheless, a 
range of estimates of farmworkers in the State can be derived. Further, by applying assumptions 
derived from surveys specifically targeted to farmworkers, an aggregate population (both workers and 
households) can be estimated.  

According to the 2014–2018 ACS data, in 2010 there were no persons who were employed and who 
lived in the City of Colfax whose occupation was in the agriculture, forestry, fishing and hunting, or 
mining industries (see Table 30). By 2018, however, there were 16 persons (1.8 percent) who were 
employed and lived in the City who had one of those occupation. Needless to say, farmworkers are 
not a segment of the population generating a great need for housing in Colfax. 

TABLE 30 
FARMWORKERS - CITY OF COLFAX 

 
2010 2018 

Number Percent of Total 
Employment Number Percent of Total 

Employment 
Agriculture, forestry, fishing 
and hunting, and mining 0 0.0% 16 1.8% 

Source: SACOG, 2006–2010 and 2014–2018 American Community Survey 

According to the 2017 Census of Agriculture, there were 1,386 farmworkers in Placer County, over half 
of which are on small farms with 10 or fewer workers (see Table 31). However, as stated previously, 
very few of these workers live in Colfax and will not result in a great need for farmworker housing in 
Colfax. 

  

Item 5A

69



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-35 

6 

Housing 

TABLE 31 
FARMS AND FARMWORKERS BY WORK PERIOD LENGTH – PLACER COUNTY  

Hired Farm 
Labor 

Total 
Farms 277 

Workers 1,386 

Farms with 10 or More Workers 
Farms 21 

Workers 771 

Workers by 
Days Worked 

150 Days or More 

Total 
Farms 122 

Workers 457 

Farms with 10 or More Workers 
Farms 9 

Workers 238 
Fewer than 150 Days 

Total 
Farms 220 

Workers 929 

Farms with 10 or More Workers 
Farms 15 

Workers 512 
Source: USDA Agricultural Census 2017, Table 7 

Female Heads of Households  

Female heads of households face challenges due to generally lower-income levels, having only a 
single source of income, often having the financial burden of childcare, and reluctance of some people 
to rent to them as a result of these difficulties. In 2018, there were approximately 93 households (10.7 
percent of total family households) with a female householder with children and no spouse present, 
and approximately 74 (8.4 percent) female households with no children and no spouse present (see 
Table 32). Combined, female householders make up a larger part of the City’s population than do 
male householders with no spouse present. In 2018, there were just 12 (1.4 percent) male householders 
with children present and no spouse, and no male householders with no children.  

  

Item 5A

70



JULY 2021 

Page 6-36 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

TABLE 32 
HOUSEHOLD TYPE AND PRESENCE OF CHILDREN 18 YEARS OLD AND UNDER – CITY OF COLFAX – 2018 

Household Type Number Percent 
Family Households 467 53.8% 
   With Children Under 18 Years Old 267 30.8% 
   With No Children 200 23.0% 
Female Householder with Children* 93 10.7% 
Female Householder with No Children* 74 8.5% 
Male Householder with Children* 12 1.4% 
Male Householder with No Children* 0 0.0% 
Non-family Households 401 46.2% 
Total 868 

Source: 2014–2018 American Community Survey Table DP02  
* No spouse present. 

Of the 467 family households for which poverty information was collected, 39 households (8.4 percent) 
in the City were identified as families being below the poverty level (see Table 33). Of these, 
approximately half were female-headed households.  

TABLE 33  
HOUSEHOLDS BY POVERTY LEVEL, 2018 – CITY OF COLFAX 

Family Households Number Percent 
Total Family Households 467 
Total Families Below the Poverty Level 39 8.4% 
Total Female Householder* 121 
Female Householder Below the Poverty Level* 20 16.2% 
Female Householder with Children Under 18 Years Below the Poverty Level* 27 22.3% 

Source: SACOG, 2014–2018 American Community Survey Table S1702 
*No spouse present. 

  

Item 5A

71



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-37 

6 

Housing 

Extremely Low-Income Households 

Lower-income households generally have a higher incidence of housing problems and tend to 
overpay for housing (paying 30 percent or more of their monthly income toward housing costs). 
Households that earn 30 percent or less than the County’s median income (up to $20,750 for a family 
of four in 2020) are considered “extremely low-income.” Extremely low-income households typically 
consist of minimum-wage workers, seniors on fixed incomes, disabled persons, and farmworkers.  To 
estimate the number of households in this income category, the City reviewed 2006–2015 
Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy (CHAS) data for the number of households in the 
extremely low-income (ELI) range.  

As shown in Table 33A, extremely low-income households made up less than 13.3 percent (125 
households) of all households. When looking at tenure data for ELI households, 35 were owner 
occupied households and 90 were renter occupied households.  Additionally, of all extremely low-
income households within the City, 95 (10.2%) were overpaying for housing (paying more than 30% 
on housing costs), and 55 (5.9%) were severely overpaying (paying more than 50% on housing costs). 

(Please note, the numbers included for overpayment rely on the 2006- 2015 CHAS data, which differs 
from Table 16 which relies on the 2012–2016 dataset.)  

TABLE 33A  
EXTREMELY LOW-INCOME HOUSEHOLDS– CITY OF COLFAX 

Total Households Characteristics Number Percent of Total 
Households 

Total occupied units (households) 935 100.0% 
Total lower income (0-80% of HAMFI) households 475 50.8% 
    Extremely low income (0-30% of HAMFI) households 125 13.3% 

               Extremely low-income renters  90 9.6% 

               Extremely low-income owners  35 3.7% 

Lower income households paying more than 50%  144 15.4% 
     Extremely Low Income paying more than 50% 55 5.9% 

              ELI Renter HH severely overpaying 35 3.7% 

              ELI Owner HH severely overpaying 20 2.1% 

Lower income households paying more than 30%  359 38.4% 
     Extremely Low Income paying more than 30% 95 10.2% 

Source: 2006–2015 Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy  

  

Item 5A

72



JULY 2021 

Page 6-38 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

While no specific housing affordable to extremely low-income households has been built, the owners 
of Canyon View Senior Apartments recently opted to renew their Section 8 contract and the property 
is now recorded low risk as their contract is not set to expire until 2068 and therefore continues to 
provide an affordable housing option to lower income households.  

The City also supports ELI households Measures included in the Housing Element.  

Measure 6.1 – 
» Work with housing developers to expand opportunities for affordable lower-income housing 

and special needs groups including seniors, persons with disabilities, persons with 
developmental disabilities, extremely low-income households, female headed households, 
farmworkers, and homeless persons, by creating partnerships, providing incentives, and 
pursuing funding opportunities.  

» Pursue federal, State, and private funding for low- and moderate-income housing by applying 
for State and federal monies for direct support of lower-income housing construction and 
rehabilitation, specifically for development of housing affordable to extremely low-income 
households.  

Measure 6.6 – 
» Allow flexibility in development standards to facilitate affordable housing development by 

offering fast-track/priority processing, density bonuses, flexibility in development standards, 
and fee subsidies (when feasible) to developers proposing new housing, mixed-use, or infill 
projects affordable to extremely low-income households, low-income households, 
farmworkers, seniors, and persons with disabilities, persons with developmental disabilities, 
and female headed households. 

Measure 6.8 – 
» Amend the Zoning Ordinance and make revisions to allow low-barrier navigation centers for 

the homeless, per Government Code Section 65662. 

Measure 6.11 – 
» Amend the Zoning Ordinance to define and allow single-room occupancy units (SRO) in the 

R-M zone with a conditional use permit. In addition, to help meet the needs of extremely low-
income households, the City will prioritize funding and/or offer financial incentives or 
regulatory concessions to encourage the development of housing types affordable to 
extremely low-income households, such as SROs, multifamily units, and supportive housing, 
to reduce their displacement risk.   

  

Item 5A

73



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-39 

6 

Housing 
Measure 6.20 – 

» Develop a targeted program to connect lower-income residents with affordable 
homeownership and rental options to improve economic and housing mobility to higher 
opportunity areas within the City and implement incentive programs to encourage 
construction of affordable housing. 

 Provide regulatory incentives for the development of units affordable to extremely low-, very 
low-, and low-income households, including second dwelling units, senior housing, infill 
projects, mixed-use and multifamily units, and housing for special-needs groups, including 
agricultural employees, persons with disabilities (including developmental disabilities), and 
individuals and families in need of emergency/transitional housing. The City will take 
subsequent action, as appropriate, to make the development of such units more financially 
feasible including providing financial incentives, such as reducing, waiving, and/or deferring 
fees, where feasible, offering fast track/priority processing, density bonuses, and flexibility in 
development standards. 

Homeless Persons 

Homelessness continues as a regional and national issue. Factors contributing to the rise in 
homelessness include the general lack of housing affordable to lower-income persons, increases in 
the number of persons whose incomes fall below the poverty level, reductions in public subsidies to 
the poor, alcohol and substance abuses, and the de-institutionalization of the mentally ill. Homeless 
people, victims of abuse, and other individuals require housing that is being met by the traditional 
housing stock. These people require temporary housing and assistance at little or no cost to the 
recipient. 

Due to their transient nature, it is difficult to count the number of homeless in any one area. It should 
also be noted that there are generally two types of homeless—the "permanent homeless," who are 
the transient and most visible homeless population, and the "temporary homeless," who are homeless 
usually due to eviction and may stay with friends, family, or in a shelter or motel until they can find a 
permanent residence. The farmworker and day laborer are most appropriately classified as part of the 
migratory homeless population. 

The City made three efforts to solicit an estimate on the number of homeless persons living in Colfax 
from the Placer County Sheriff Colfax Substation; however, due to limited volunteer capacity at the 
substation, they were not able to provide an estimate. Most homeless persons take advantage of 
services offered in Auburn and Roseville. In January 2020, the Homeless Resource Council of the 
Sierras conduced a Point-in-Time (PIT) survey of homeless individuals in Colfax. At the time of the 
count, three homeless individuals were identified in the city, and it is estimated that there is only three 
homeless individuals on any given day in Colfax. City staff confirmed this is accurate. All three homeless 
individuals were unsheltered, one was female, one was male, and one declined to respond.  

  

Item 5A

74



JULY 2021 

Page 6-40 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Placer County provides several services for the homeless through a variety of programs, including: 

» Whole Person Care – Providing intensive case coordination and housing assistance 
» Welcome Center – An entry point for Placer County’s services, located in Auburn 
» Gathering Inn Resource Center – An entry point for Placer County’s services, located in 

Roseville 
» Temporary Homeless Shelter – 100-person nightly shelter located in North Auburn 
» Transitional Housing Program – Four transitional houses providing housing and supportive 

services for adults who were homeless and have been diagnosed with mental illness 
» Placer Street Permanent Supportive Housing Program – Six units for individuals who were 

homeless and have been diagnosed with a mental illness 
» Problem Oriented Policing Program (POPP) – Probation officers and mental health 

practitioners who engage, refer, and support homeless individuals 
» Adult System of Care – Providing screenings and mental health services to homeless 

individuals 
» Screening Clinic – Connects individuals to resources, services, and treatment for substance 

use issues 

The primary methods of providing emergency shelter to homeless individuals and families in Placer 
County are motel voucher programs, dispersed through various divisions of Placer County Health and 
Human Services (HHS), and through several community-based organizations. In addition, a few 
organizations, such as Sierra Foothill AIDS Foundation, Peace for Families, and the Children’s Receiving 
Home provide emergency housing to certain segments of the homeless population. 

Although the City does not have the population of homeless persons to support a full-time shelter, 
staff at the Sierra Vista Community Center confirmed that the Placer Food Bank meets at the center 
on the second Monday of each month to provide food to homeless persons and the center has the 
capacity for approximately 100 emergency shelter beds, which can be made available during cold 
weather in the winter, heat waves in the summer, and the fire season.  

6.2.9 Assisted Units At-Risk of Conversion 

State law requires that the Housing Element include an analysis of the existing assisted housing 
developments that are eligible to change from low- to moderate-income housing uses during the 
next 10 years due to termination of subsidy contracts, mortgage prepayment, or expiration of 
restrictions on use.  

The California Housing Partnership Corporation does not list any assisted units in the City of Colfax as 
at-risk. The owners of Canyon View Senior Apartments recently opted to renew their Section 8 
contract and the property is now recorded low risk as their contract is not set to expire until 2068. 

Item 5A

75



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-41 

6 

Housing 
The process of opting out of affordable programs is a thorough and lengthy process that requires 
notices to local government and local housing authorities. Table 34 lists information about the single 
affordable housing complex in Colfax. 

TABLE 34 
INVENTORY OF AT-RISK ASSISTED COMPLEXES (2020) 

Project Financing Assisted Units Date Target 
Group 

Risk 
Assessment 

Canyon View Section 8 66 8/31/2068 Seniors Low 
Total At-Risk Units 0  

Source: California Housing Partnership Corporation, 2020 

Cost Analysis 

While there are not currently any at-risk units in Colfax, if a project were to be classified as such, the 
cost of preserving these units must be determined for rehabilitation, new construction, or tenant-
based rental assistance. The cost of conserving the assisted units is estimated to be significantly less 
than that required to replace the units through new construction. Conservation of assisted units 
generally requires subsidizing the difference between market-rate and assisted rents. Since land prices 
and land availability are generally the limiting factors to development of low-income housing, it is 
estimated that subsidizing rents to preserve assisted housing is more feasible and economical than 
new construction. However, federal, state, and local resources must be available to assist with the 
preservation of the units. 

New Construction/Replacement 

The construction of new affordable housing units is a more permanent solution to replace at-risk units 
before conversion to market-rate units. The actual replacement costs for any of the at-risk units will 
depend on many variables, such as the number of units, location, density, unit sizes, site development 
costs related to location within the City, on- and off-site improvements, and both existing and new 
financing. New construction typically far exceeds the cost of other options to preserve affordable units. 

Rental Assistance 

The project can also be maintained using rental subsidies from non-federal (state, local, or other) 
funding sources. The feasibility of providing rental assistance is highly dependent upon the availability 
of other funding sources necessary to make rent subsidies available and the willingness of property 
owners to accept rental vouchers.  

The difficulty in estimating the per-unit cost is that there are so many variables, starting with the 
household income of the family who will occupy the unit. Based on current data, a two-person senior 
household with extremely low income earns up to $20,750. Shelter affordability (30 percent of AMI) 
would be $518 a month for rent and utilities. If the complex converted to market rate, the one-

Item 5A

76



JULY 2021 

Page 6-42 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

bedroom unit would have an estimated rent of $1,300 per month. This means subsidizing the 
household at $782 per month, or $9,384 a year. 

Purchase of Affordability Covenants 

Another option to preserve the affordability of at-risk projects is for the City to provide an incentive 
package to the owners of the assisted units to maintain the project as affordable housing. Incentives 
could include supplementing the Section 8 subsidy received to market levels. The feasibility of this 
option depends on whether the complex is too highly leveraged. By providing lump sum financial 
incentives or ongoing subsidies in the form of rents or reduced mortgage interest rates to the owner, 
the City can ensure that some or all the units remain affordable. 

Resources for Preservation 

The following is a list of potential financial resources considered a part of the City's overall financial 
plan to deal with retaining affordable units. The number and availability of programs to assist cities 
and counties in increasing and improving their affordable housing stock is limited, and public funding 
for new projects is unpredictable. The list includes local, state, and federal programs. 

HOME Program: The HOME Program was created under Title II of the Cranston-Gonzales National 
Affordable Housing Act enacted on November 28, 1990. The HOME Program helps to expand the 
supply of decent, affordable housing for low- and very low-income families by providing grants to 
states and local governments. This money can be used to acquire property, construct new housing 
for rent or homeownership, rehabilitate rental or owner-occupied housing, improve sites for HOME-
assisted development or demolish dilapidated housing on such sites, pay relocation costs for 
households displaced by HOME activities, provide financing assistance to low-income homeowners 
and new homebuyers for home purchase or rehabilitation, provide tenant-based rental assistance or 
help with security deposits to low-income renters, meet HOME program planning and administration 
expenses to take a more regional, collaborative approach to meeting their affordable housing needs. 

Placer County Health and Human Services Department has jurisdiction within the City of Colfax and 
Placer County. It administers federal and state funds for its public housing projects and government-
assisted housing units, such as Section 8 Rent Subsidy. 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds: Between 1993 and 2003, the City received 
approximately $1,144,000 in CDBG grants. Since 2004, the City has not received any additional CDBG 
funding. The City will continue to apply for future CDBG funds for housing rehabilitation activities, as 
they become available, and currently has applications pending for street project funding and CARES 
funding.  

Low-Income Housing Tax Credit Program (LIHTC): The LIHTC Program provides for federal and state 
tax credits for private and non-profit developers and investors who agree to set aside all or an 
established percentage of their rental units for households at or below 60 percent of AMI for 55 years. 
These tax credits may also be used on rehabilitation projects, contributing to the preservation 
program. 

Item 5A

77



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-43 

6 

Housing 
The Federal Home Loan System facilitates the Affordable Housing Program (AHP) and Community 
Investment Program (CIP) for the purposes of expanding the affordable housing supply. The San 
Francisco Federal Home Loan Bank District provides local service. Subsidies are awarded on a 
competitive basis, usually in the form of low-interest loans and must be used to finance the purchase, 
construction, and/or rehabilitation of rental housing. 

Qualified Entities 

Efforts by the City to retain low-income housing must be able to draw upon two basic types of 
preservation resources: organizational and financial. Qualified, non-profit entities need to be made 
aware of the future possibilities of units becoming ''at-risk.'' Groups with whom the City has an 
ongoing association are the logical entities for future participation. HCD provides a list of qualified 
entities that are known as being interested in acquiring at-risk units and maintaining affordability for 
the life of the structure; in Placer County these organizations include: 

» Volunteers of America National Services  
» ROEM Development Corporation 
» Rural California Housing Corporation 
» ACLC Inc. 
» Eskaton Properties Inc. 
» Affordable Housing Foundation 

In addition, the City of Colfax will develop procedures for monitoring and preserving at-risk units that 
will include: 

» Monitoring the Risk Assessment report published by the California Housing Partnership 
Corporation (CHPC). 

» Maintaining contact with the owners and managers of the Canyon View Apartments to 
determine if there are plans to opt-out in the future and assist in locating eligible buyers. 

» Developing and maintaining a list of potential purchasers of at-risk units and act as a liaison 
between owners and eligible purchasers. 

  

Item 5A

78



JULY 2021 

Page 6-44 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

6.2.10 Fair Housing Assessment 

Assembly Bill (AB) 686 requires that all housing elements due on or after January 1, 2021 contain an 
Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH) consistent with the core elements of the analysis required by the 
federal Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing (AFFH) Final Rule of July 16, 2015. 

Under state law, affirmatively further fair housing means “taking meaningful actions, in addition to 
combatting discrimination, that overcome patterns of segregation and foster inclusive communities 
free from barriers that restrict access to opportunity based on protected characteristics.” 

AB 686 requires the City, and all jurisdictions in the state, to complete three major requirements as 
part of the housing element update: 

 Conduct an Assessment of Fair Housing that includes a summary of fair housing issues, an 
analysis of available federal, state, and local data knowledge to identify patterns of segregation 
or other barriers to fair housing, and prioritization of contributing factors to fair housing issues. 

 Prepare the Housing Element Land Inventory and identification of sites through the lens of 
affirmatively furthering fair housing. 

 Include an implementation measure in the Housing Element that affirmatively furthers fair 
housing and promotes housing opportunities throughout the community for protected 
classes and addresses contributing factors identified in the AFH (applies to housing elements 
beginning January 1, 2019). 

In order to comply with AB 686, the City has completed the following outreach and analysis. 

Outreach 

As discussed in the Public Participation section of the Housing Element, the City held a public 
workshop in addition to the standard public hearing process and conducted individual consultations 
with stakeholders. A flyer with information about the workshop was sent to local service providers, 
affordable housing developers, various Placer County agencies, legal aid providers, and the Colfax 
Area Chamber of commerce in an effort to reach lower-income residents and special needs groups. 
Despite these efforts, the workshop was attended by only one member of the public, in addition to 
Planning Commission and City Council members. The City has included Implementation Measure 6.20 
to conduct ongoing outreach to engage members of all socio-economic groups and recruit members 
of underrepresented groups to participate in Planning Commission, City Council, and committees as 
they are formed. Members of the community were also encouraged to share input to ask questions 
before and after the workshop by emailing the Planning Director. 

The City also conducted one-on-one consultation meetings with the housing advocates, housing and 
service providers, and community organizations mentioned in the Public Participation section (page 
6-4) who serve the general public and special needs groups. As with the workshop, the purpose of 
these consultations was to solicit direct feedback on housing needs, barriers to fair and affordable 

Item 5A

79



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-45 

6 

Housing 
housing, and opportunities for development from all community groups, not just those who are able 
to attend workshop and public hearings. During each of these consultations, the City asked 
stakeholders for input regarding factors that contribute to fair housing issues, and accessibility 
concerns their clients have, and other fair housing questions. The feedback gathered from these 
interviews was used to inform this assessment of fair housing and associated programs. The primary 
concern that stakeholders raised related to fair housing was the limited supply of smaller and more 
affordable housing units, such as studio apartments and workforce housing, to meet existing demand. 
Additionally, they expressed concern about the lack of transportation options to access services in the 
City. As described below, the City has included Implementation Measures 6.1, 6.6, and 6.20 to address 
these concerns.  

The City will provide ongoing outreach throughout the planning period regarding fair housing law by 
providing brochures to tenants, landlords, and property managers on fair housing laws and 
enforcement and referral processes. The City will also work with Legal Services of Northern California 
to provide training as needed (Measure 6.20). 

The draft Housing Element was proactively distributed to the public and stakeholders on March 11, 
2021 prior to submittal to HCD on April 7, 2021. During the public comment period, the City solicited 
feedback on the assessment of fair housing; no comments were received. 

Assessment of Fair Housing Issues 
State Government Code Section 65583 (10)(A)(ii) requires the City of Colfax to analyze areas of 
segregation, racially or ethnically concentrated areas of poverty, disparities in access to opportunity, 
and disproportionate housing needs including displacement risk. According to the 2020 TCAC/HCD 
Opportunity Area map, the City of Colfax is nearly entirely a moderate resource area. As shown in 
Figure 2, the area northeast of the city is designated as low resource; the city limits capture two small 
portions of this land; however, the City confirmed that these are the locations of the city cemetery 
and the old landfill and are therefore undevelopable. While the City does not plan for housing outside 
of city limits in this area of low resource, it is likely that residents of this area rely on Colfax for services 
and jobs. As such, the City has taken a broader view than just city limits when assessing fair housing 
issues and patterns. 

Some of the indicators identified by TCAC and HCD to determine the access to opportunity include 
levels of employment and proximity to jobs, access to effective educational opportunities for both 
children and adults, concentration of poverty, and levels of environmental pollutants, among others, 
compared to the whole county. As indicator scores decline, the level of designation decreases from 
“highest resource” to “low resource.” Low resource areas typically have limited access to high-quality 
education and employment opportunities, may have lower median incomes and home values, or have 
limited public infrastructure. The City does not have any areas identified as areas of high segregation 
and poverty. As a predominantly moderate resource area, Colfax residents are expected to have 
access to educational, economic, and environmental opportunities, but at slightly lower levels than 
some of the higher designated areas such as Lake of the Pines to the west or Auburn to the south.  

Item 5A

80



JULY 2021 

Page 6-46 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Like many of the present-day cities of the Sierra Nevada foothills, early growth patterns in Colfax are 
tied to the railroad and mining. Originally established as “Illinoistown” in 1849, the arrival of the Central 
Pacific Railroad soon after brought with it gold miners and other settlers. Renamed to “Colfax” at this 
time, the town became an important center for the construction of the railroad and distribution of 
goods and supplies to mining operations in the foothills. While the Chinese population grew in Colfax 
during the time of railroad construction, the labor force moved with the work and the discovery of 
gold nearby led to predominantly Anglo settlement that reflects the population of Colfax today. It’s 
roots as a rural mining community influenced early development patterns of a denser, historic 
downtown with density decreasing further from the core. However, much of the truly low-density land 
uses are on the outskirts of the city branching into neighboring unincorporated land of Placer County. 
The commercial center remains with medium and high-density land uses for much of the land west 
of Interstate 80.  While Colfax’s history as a mining town and location in semi-rural Placer County has 
influenced its predominantly White population today, there is no history of redlining, discriminatory 
land use or zoning practices or other factors or other discriminatory land use or zoning practices that 
have resulted in patterns of discrimination to inform the assessment of fair housing. 

The City has conducted the following analysis of available data to assess local access to opportunities 
and indicators of fair housing issues, in addition to the designations provided by the TCAC/HCD 
Opportunity Areas map. Data for disability, poverty, familial status, was available at the census tract 
level, and data for rates of opportunity areas, overpayment, jobs proximity, and diversity were 
available at the block group level. The City has used the most localized level of data available for the 
analysis.  

Item 5A

81



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-47 

6 

Housing 

FIGURE 2 
TCAC/HCD OPPORTUNITY AREAS 

 

Item 5A

82



JULY 2021 

Page 6-48 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Patterns of Segregation and Integration 

As shown in Figure 3, the City of Colfax has a lower rate of poverty than areas to the northeast and 
northwest, but a similar rate to the areas to the south and higher rate than directly to the north of the 
city. The rate of poverty in Colfax is similar to much of rural and semi-rural areas of unincorporated 
Placer County and lower than similar areas of Nevada County. However, as discussed in the 
Community Profile, the rate of poverty in Colfax overall (13.2 percent) is higher than Placer County 
(7.4 percent). While Colfax does not have any highly concentrated areas of poverty like nearby 
jurisdictions, the block group in the northwest corner of the City, north of Rising Sun Street between 
Bear River and Interstate 80 has a lower median income than all other surrounding areas, both inside 
and out of city limits. With nearly double the rate of poverty than the County, it is safe to assume that 
access for affordable housing is a challenge for all residents. The rate of poverty in the City of Colfax 
and surrounding areas has remained relatively stable since 2014, suggesting few improvements in 
access to more affordable housing of higher paying jobs. 

A racially or ethnically concentrated area of poverty (R/ECAPs) is defined by HUD as areas in which 
50 percent or more of the population identifies as non-White and 40 percent or more of individuals 
are living below the poverty line. While there are no R/ECAPs in Colfax or the surrounding areas (the 
closest are in the City of Yuba City and City of Sacramento), the area of highest diversity index score 
is the area described above with the lowest median income (Figure 4). Colfax has a low diversity index 
overall and is predominantly non-Hispanic White, similar to the region as a whole.  Since 2014, there 
has been a slight increase diversity in the City; however, the percent of Colfax residents that identify 
as non-Hispanic White (81.2 percent) is still significantly higher than the County overall (73.2 percent). 
While there is a slightly higher diversity score in the northern reaches of the City, this reflects a greater 
racial and ethnic mix rather than a concentration of people of color as this area is still predominantly 
non-Hispanic White. The lack of diversity in Colfax reflects most of unincorporated Placer and Nevada 
counties, while diversity index scores are higher in more urbanized areas, which may account for the 
population differences between Colfax and the County. The City has included Implementation 
Measure 6.3 to promote their first-time homebuyer program and other means of connecting residents 
with housing opportunities in the City, to promote an inclusive community for all families, individuals, 
and households. 

Similarly, to R/ECAPs, there are no areas that meet the definition of a racially concentrated area of 
affluence (RCAA). A RCAA was defined in 2019 in the HUD’s Cityscape periodical by Goetz et al. in 
Racially Concentrated Areas of Affluence: A Preliminary Investigation as a census tract in which 80 
percent or more of the population is White and has a median income greater than $125,000 annually. 
Using this definition, there are no census tracts in, or overlapping with, the City of Colfax that can be 
identified as a RCAA. While there is little diversity in both race and income in Colfax, the concentrations 
of White populations and high median income are significantly greater in more suburban areas of the 
SACOG region, including the Lake of the Pines community in Nevada County and Granite Bay in Placer 
County; Granite Bay has the only RCAA in the SACOG region. There are three census tracts that 
overlap with city limits for Colfax, all of which have a median income below $90,000 annually. While 
approximately 81 percent of Colfax residents identify as White, all three census tracts that overlap with 
city limits have a median income of less than $90,000 annually. 

Item 5A

83



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-49 

6 

Housing 
As shown in Figure 5, Colfax and most of the surrounding region is dominated by families. While more 
than half of Colfax households are families, this is still less than surrounding communities and Placer 
County. Approximately 70% of Placer County households are families and nearly three-quarters of 
households in Alta and Alta Sierra are families. However, a higher percentage of family households in 
Colfax have children under 18 (34.0 percent of families), compared to 30.7 percent in Placer County, 
28.8 percent in Alta Sierra, and 6.7 percent in Alta, suggesting a need for larger housing units for 
Colfax families. While approximately 70.6 percent of housing units in Colfax are single-family homes, 
the low rate of vacancy for rental units (1.2 percent) and ownership units (2.5 percent) presents a 
barrier to households and families seeking housing. These vacancy rates also present a barrier to non-
family households seeking housing in Colfax. The City has included Implementation Measures 6.1, 6.6, 
and 6.20 to connect Colfax residents with affordable ownership opportunities and incentivize the 
development of a variety of housing types to meet all housing needs. 

The Community Profile of the Housing Element analyzes historic demographic trends in Colfax 
including distribution of age, population change, racial and ethnic concentrations, job availability, and 
more. The City of Colfax has seen slow but steady growth and slight shift to a younger population as 
young families move to the area. Additionally, diversity in Colfax has increased slightly with a 8 
percentage point decrease in the White population paired with a 7 percentage point increase in 
Asian/Pacific Islanders and 4 percentage point increase in residents that identify as Hispanic. These 
trends are continued to expect, following state and national patterns, as diversity increases, and 
populations continue to grow. SACOG estimates that by 2040, the population of Colfax will rise to 
2,523, a 23 percent increase since 2016, and jobs will increase by 75 percent. This suggests that access 
to jobs will increase for Colfax residents, and may even attract employees from other nearby 
communities. The changes in population demographics and access to units suggests that the City is 
moving toward a more integrated community with improved access to opportunity. Access to 
affordable housing in areas of opportunity are addressed through several programs identified 
throughout this Assessment of Fair Housing.  

Item 5A

84



JULY 2021 

Page 6-50 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

FIGURE 3 
POVERTY STATUS 

 

Item 5A

85



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-51 

6 

Housing 

FIGURE 4 
DIVERSITY INDEX 

 
 

Source: Esri (2018), by block group 

Item 5A

86



JULY 2021 

Page 6-52 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

FIGURE 5 
DOMINANT FAMILY TYPE 

 

Item 5A

87



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-53 

6 

Housing 
The percent of the population with a disability in Colfax is similar to the surrounding areas, as shown 
in Figure 6. Since 2014, the rate in Colfax has remained stable while the percent of persons with 
disabilities has increased in the Grass Valley area to the west and decreased in unincorporated Placer 
County to the east. The City of Colfax has had a slightly higher rate of disability other urban areas in 
Placer County, including Rocklin and Roseville, but is similar to Auburn, Sacramento, and other 
metropolitan jurisdictions in the greater Sacramento region. Currently, the primary service for 
individuals with disabilities in Colfax is Placer County’s In-Home Supportive Services (IHSS), which 
provides assistance to lower-income seniors to allow them to stay in their homes. The City will work 
with service providers in the region to expand access to services for individuals with disabilities of all 
ages to Colfax residents (Implementation Measure 6.4). 

Access to Opportunity 

In a statewide ranking of 2016 California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP) 
test scores listed on School-Ratings.com, Colfax High was ranking in the 80th percentile compared to 
other similar schools across the state and Colfax Elementary was ranked in the 60th percentile. As 
shown in Figure 7, all residents of Colfax live within 1-mile of a school. While both Colfax High and 
Colfax Elementary are located just northwest of the city and is more than a mile from some residential 
areas, all households are within 3 miles of the school. Additionally, Mid-Placer Transportation and 
Colfax School District provide transportation for all students from home to school. The quality and 
access to school facilities offers all residents of Colfax access to proficient school opportunities. 

Colfax residents are served by the Colfax / Alta Route operated by Placer County Transit (PCT) that 
provides connections from Alta to the Auburn Station, allowing riders to then access additional routes 
to the City of Roseville and City of Sacramento, in addition to other stops. The general public one-
way fare is $1.25 for the Colfax / Alta Route, or $0.60 for seniors, youth, Medicare holders, and 
individuals with a disability. The route runs only on weekdays, once in each direction during the 
morning and evening commute hours. The Placer County Transportation Planning Agency (PCTPA) 
conducts an annual assessment of unmet housing needs for all of Placer County, including Colfax. 
The Annual Unmet Transit Needs Report for Fiscal Year 2021 did not identify any unmet needs for 
Colfax. However, given the limited number of routes throughout Colfax, the City will annually review 
PCTPA’s assessment and will coordinate with transit agencies to expand transit routes and frequency 
if the need arises (Implementation Measure 6.20). 

As shown in Figure 8, residents of Colfax are not proximate to a major employment hub, like much of 
rural and semi-rural Placer County. The nearest employment centers are in Grass Valley and Auburn. 
However, according to the 2015-2019 ACS, the mean travel to work for Colfax residents (23.9 minutes) 
is shorter than the County average (27.0 minutes) and has decreased from 25.3 minutes in 2010. The 
mean commute time in Colfax is even with, or shorter than, most surrounding suburban communities 
including Auburn, Loomis, and Newcastle and is shorter than Alta and other rural communities. 
Additionally, the unemployment rate in Colfax has decreased significantly from 16.7 percent in 
December 2010 to 9.5 percent in December 2020, or 5.1 percent in January 2020 prior to the national 
unemployment surge as a result of the COVID-19 Pandemic. Given the relatively low unemployment 

Item 5A

88



JULY 2021 

Page 6-54 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

rate and mean commute times compared to the region, it appears that all residents of Colfax have 
similar access to job opportunities as other residents within the City and across the region. 

To meet the needs of the older population and individuals with disabilities, there is one licensed adult 
residential care facility and one residential care facility for the elderly located throughout the City. 
Additionally, Placer County Transit offers “Dial-A-Ride”, a reservation based, curb-to-curb paratransit 
service, to residents of Colfax. Placer Independent Resource Services (PIRS) and Placer County Adult 
System of Care (ASOC) provide services for individuals with disabilities and advocate for improvements 
for them. Both organizations have offices nearby in North Auburn that can be accessed using PCT’s 
route from Colfax to the Auburn Station and transferring to Auburn Transit routes, and ASOC provides 
in-home care to clients in need. During consultations, stakeholders also emphasized a need for 
smaller, affordable housing for seniors in Colfax to downsize to without risking displacement from the 
community. A current shortage of small, affordable housing units has made this transition difficult for 
seniors. To address this need, the City has included Implementation Measures 6.1, 6.12, and 6.20 to 
incentivize the development of housing for special needs groups, construction of ADUs which are 
typically smaller and more affordable, and work with developers to encourage the construction of a 
variety of housing types. Increasing the supply of smaller housing units paired with ASOC’s in-home 
care program will aid in the ability of seniors, and other special needs groups, to remain in Colfax in 
accessible housing. 

In February 2021, the California Office for Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (COEHHA) 
released the fourth version of CalEnviroScreen, a tool that uses environmental, health, and 
socioeconomic indicators to map and compare community’s environmental scores. A community with 
a high score, is one with higher levels of pollution and other negative environmental indicators. Figure 
9 demonstrates that healthy environmental conditions are prevalent throughout the City of Colfax 
scores relatively low in COEHHA’s assessment, indicating that there are no areas of the city with more 
limited access to healthy living conditions as a result of environmental issues. Figure 9 also shows that 
Colfax has a better environmental score than the City of Grass Valley, however Colfax does reflect 
conditions in most of Placer County. 

 

  

Item 5A

89



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-55 

6 

Housing 

FIGURE 6 
POPULATION WITH A DISABILITY 

 

Item 5A

90



JULY 2021 

Page 6-56 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

FIGURE 7 
PROXIMITY TO SCHOOLS 

 

Item 5A

91



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-57 

6 

Housing 

FIGURE 8 
PROXIMITY TO JOBS 

 

Item 5A

92



JULY 2021 

Page 6-58 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

FIGURE 9 
ACCESS TO HEALTHY PLACES 

   Source: CalEnviroScreen 4.0, February 2021. 

Item 5A

93



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-59 

6 

Housing 

Disproportionate Housing Need and Displacement Risk 

As discussed in the Community Profile of the Housing Element, overcrowding is not a significant issue 
in the City of Colfax, with approximately 3.1 percent of households living in an overcrowded situation 
and no areas of the City where there is a concentration of overcrowded households. However, 
overcrowding is more common among renter households (4.8 percent in 2018) than owner 
households (1.2 percent) and has increased in both since 2010. According to California Health and 
Human Services (CHHS), the rate of overcrowding is relatively similar across the City of Colfax, with 
no areas with households at greater risk of displacement risk due to overcrowding or severe 
overcrowding. The rate of overcrowding in Colfax, for both owners and renters, is similar to Placer 
County as a whole and significantly lower than across the State. While there are no areas of greater 
overcrowding, any household that is experiencing overcrowding has a disproportionate need for 
affordable, larger housing units and is at risk of displacement from their housing unit or community 
without it. 

As shown in Figures 10 and 11, there is a greater share of renters than owners overpaying for housing 
in Colfax, a trend that exists throughout much of the region. However, this has not always been the 
case. In 2014, overpayment was more widespread among homeowners than in 2019. Over time, the 
percent of homeowners has decreased in Colfax and much of unincorporated Placer County while 
the percent of renters overpaying for housing has stayed relatively constant across the region. The 
trends of overpayment in Colfax reflect the region, but also reflect the notable lack of affordable 
housing identified by stakeholders during consultations. Overpayment increases the risk of 
displacement for residents who are no longer able to afford their housing costs. While overpayment 
among both renters and owners does not vary notably throughout the City, the risk of displacement 
is still present for those households whose income does not meet their housing costs. The City has 
included Implementation Measure 6.17 to develop a targeted program to connect lower-income 
residents with affordable homeownership and rental options within the City and implement incentive 
programs to encourage construction of affordable housing. 

In addition to extensive overpayment, just over half of the of the housing stock in Colfax is older than 
30 years and may need repairs. While it is likely that some homeowners have conducted ongoing 
maintenance to maintain the value of their homes, the City estimates that approximately 25 percent 
of the housing stock is in need of some degree of repairs. In some cases, the cost of repairs can be 
prohibitive, resulting in the owner or renter living in substandard housing conditions or being 
displaced if the house is designated as uninhabitable or during rehabilitation. To prevent either of 
these situations, the City will assist homeowners to identify and apply for rehabilitation funding and 
will develop a code enforcement to identify areas of the city with greater rehabilitation needs and will 
target marketing of rehabilitation programs to these residents to reduce the risk of displacement 
(Implementation Measure 6.17). 

 

Item 5A

94



JULY 2021 

Page 6-60 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

FIGURE 10 
RENTERS OVERPAYING FOR HOUSING 

 

Item 5A

95



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-61 

6 

Housing 

FIGURE 11 
HOMEOWNERS OVERPAYING FOR HOUSING 

 

Item 5A

96



JULY 2021 

Page 6-62 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Environmental Health 

CalEnviroScreen assesses environmental conditions and access to environmentally healthy places to 
live, but environmental conditions can also increase risk of displacement, such as displacement due 
to wildfire and flood risk. The Safety Element of the City’s General Plan assesses potential risk property 
damage, economic hardship, and social displacement resulting from fires, floods, earthquakes, 
landslides, and other hazards to identify goals, policies, and programs to mitigate these risks. The 
Safety Element is being updated concurrently with the Housing Element to provide a current 
assessment of disaster displacement risk and policies to address it. As fire seasons have lengthened 
and become more severe in recent years, the threat of displacement as a result of a disaster becomes 
more pressing. As discussed in the Constraints section of the Housing Element, wildfires present a 
threat to infrastructure and housing affordability due to high fire insurance rates. Given Colfax’s 
location at the Wildland-Urban Interface (WUI), disasters present a displacement risk for all 
households, but particularly those at the edges of the City and for those unable to afford the cost of 
insurance for these hazards. While disasters are outside of the City’s control, the City will continue to 
enforce its defensible space ordinance and has included an action in Program 6.20 to promote 
organizations and programs that assist landowners to protect their home from fires such as the 
National Fire Protection Association’s Firewise USA program, CalFire’s Landowners Assistance and 
wildfire preparedness informational tools, and Placer County’s Chipper Program that provides curb-
side chipping service to help landowners meet defensible space goals, and other programs. 

Enforcement and Outreach Capacity 

The City enforces fair housing and complies with fair housing laws and regulation through a twofold 
process: review of City policies and code for compliance with State law and referring fair housing 
complaints to appropriate agencies.  

The City conducted a comprehensive review of the City’s zoning laws and policies in 2012 for 
compliance with fair housing law, and has since amended individual zoning districts as necessary, in 
2020, to ensure that land use policies, permitting practices, and building codes continue to comply 
with state and federal fair-housing laws. In addition, when considering development proposals, the 
City will endeavor to ensure that all persons have equal access to sound and affordable housing 
(Policies 6.1.3 and 6.2.1). 

In addition to assessing fair housing issues related to development standards, fair housing issues can 
include disproportionate loan rates by race, housing design that is a barrier to individuals with a 
disability, discrimination against race, national origin, familial status, disability, religion, or sex when 
renting or selling a housing unit, and more. In order to address these issues preventatively during the 
development process, the City will endeavor to ensure that all persons have equal access to sound 
and affordable housing when considering development proposals, including Specific Plans or other 
policy documents (Policies 6.1.3 and 6.2.1). In order to address issues not related to development 
standards, the City has, and will continue to, enforce fair housing laws by referring discrimination 
complaints to the Planning Director, who works with complainants to file complaints with the State 
Department of Fair Employment and Housing (Implementation Measure 6.20). To date, no complaints 

Item 5A

97



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-63 

6 

Housing 
have been referred to the Planning Director through this process. In addition to the referral process, 
the City has made brochures with information regarding fair housing laws available at City Hall to 
educate tenants, landlords, and property managers on updates to fair housing laws and outlines 
enforcement processes, including referrals to fair housing organizations.  

Legal Services of Northern California (LSNC), the only civil legal aid office for Placer County, assists 
low-income and senior residents in the City of Colfax who face housing discrimination and other 
issues. In August 2020, the Auburn office of LSNC provided information on fair housing issues in Placer 
County. LSNC staff expressed that the most common complaint they receive across Placer County is 
regarding a lack of affordable housing. Paired with a surge in suburban development, these factors 
result in segregated communities due to a lack of accessibility for many low-income residents. Other 
complaints they receive regarding fair housing include refusal to rent, discriminatory treatment, and 
termination of tenancies by landlords, predominantly due to the residents’ income class and income 
source (i.e., Section 8 Vouchers). While income is often a driving factor in many fair housing cases, 
LSNC also reports that they receive a significant number of disability discrimination cases, often 
alleging a refusal to grant reasonable accommodation requests. LSNC was unable to provide the 
number of cases of each type in Colfax but confirmed that they have worked with Colfax residents on 
a variety of issues related to fair housing.  

In their 2019 Annual Report, the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH) 
reported that they received eight housing complaints for residents of Placer County, less than 1 
percent of the total number of cases in the state that year (934). As part of the Fair Housing Assistance 
Program (FHAP), DFEH dual-files fair housing cases with HUD’s Region IX Office of Fair Housing and 
Equal Opportunity (FHEO), which is able to identify the specific jurisdiction from which the complaint 
originates. HUD FHEO reported that just one case was filed by a resident of the City of Colfax between 
January 1, 2013 and August 31, 2020, and this case was reported directly to HUD, rather than through 
FHAP. This HUD case alleged discrimination based on disability but resulted in a no cause 
determination. 

None of these fair housing agencies, LSNC, DFEH, or FHEO, were able to provide specific location 
information for cases either because they do not track the geographic origin of complaints or due to 
confidentiality concerns. Therefore, the City was unable to conduct a spatial analysis of fair housing 
cases to identify any patterns or concentrations of fair housing issues in the city. Implementation 
Measure 6.20 has been included to work with fair housing enforcement organizations and agencies 
to track issues and identify patterns in the city. 

Sites Inventory 

The City examined the opportunity area map prepared by the TCAC and HCD (Figure 2). The 
opportunity area map identifies areas in every region of the state whose characteristics have been 
shown by research to support positive economic, educational, and health outcomes for low-income 
families—particularly long-term outcomes for children. 

Item 5A

98



JULY 2021 

Page 6-64 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Using the statewide opportunity area map and indicators of segregation, displacement risk, and access 
to opportunity as overlays to the City’s sites inventory, the City was able to identify if the sites identified 
in the inventory to accommodate the lower-income RHNA disproportionately concentrate these units 
or increase patterns of segregation. The four sites identified to meet the lower-income RHNA (Table 
38) are located within a half mile of the PCT stop at the Depot or a Greyhound Bus stop to provide 
residents access to existing transit and are located near employment opportunities and other 
resources. The sites are integrated with other sites identified to meet moderate- and above moderate-
income, thus promoting mixed-income neighborhoods that will likely consist of a variety of housing 
types to meet the needs of both family and non-family households. Additionally, these sites have been 
identified in the block group with a slightly higher median income and without a disproportionately 
higher rate of over payment. No sites are located in areas identified as having concentrated poverty. 

As found in this assessment of fair housing issues, while a need for affordable and accessible housing 
exists in Colfax, there are not any segregated areas of concentrated, disproportionate need. Therefore, 
identifying sites for lower-income units in the center of the city presents an opportunity to provide 
housing close to resources and promote integration of affordable housing with market-rate housing. 
Based on the findings of this assessment, the City is confident that the sites identified will combat any 
emerging patterns of income segregation or disproportionate need. Additionally, the program actions 
identified throughout the assessment will result in proactive measures to ensure that all residents of 
Colfax are provided equal access to safe, affordable housing near jobs, schools, and other resource 
needs. 

Contributing Factors to Fair Housing 

Discussions with community members, fair housing advocates, and the assessment of fair housing 
issues identified several factors that contribute to fair housing issues in Colfax. Many of the primary 
concerns identified through the assessment of fair housing include a limit in the range of existing 
housing unit sizes resulting in increased displacement risk for families in need of 2 or more bedrooms 
as well as seniors seeking smaller housing units, a shortage of affordable housing, and difficulty 
accessing services. The City has identified the implementation measures that will address the 
contributing factors to fair housing issues in Table 35. 

  

Item 5A

99



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-65 

6 

Housing 

TABLE 35 
FAIR HOUSING ISSUES IN COLFAX 

AFH Identified 
Fair Housing 

Issues 
Contributing Factors Meaningful Actions 

Displacement of 
residents due to 
access to 
services 

Insufficient number of accessible 
housing units. 
Proximity to services for persons 
with a disability. 
Proximity to homeless services. 
Frequency of public transit. 

Support development of housing for special 
needs groups (Measure 6.1) 
Work with service providers to connect 
residents with available services (Measure 6.4) 
Work with PCTPA to assess unmet transit 
needs (Measure 6.20) 

Displacement of 
residents due to 
economic 
burden 

Lack of subsidized housing units. 
Unaffordable rents and home 
prices. 
Cost of rehabilitation or repair. 
Lack of partnerships with 
affordable housing developers. 
Low vacancy rates for existing 
housing. 

Provide assistance to first time homebuyers to 
be able to stay in their community and 
facilitate housing mobility (Measure 6.3) 
Incentivize the development of affordable 
housing (Measure 6.6) 
Expand the allowed types of extremely low-
income housing units per State law (Measure 
6.11) 
Incentivize construction of ADUs (Measure 
6.12) 
Provide assistance with rehabilitation costs 
(Measure 6.17) 
Develop a program to connect residents to 
affordable rental and ownership options to 
increase economic mobility (Measure 6.20) 

Limited variety 
of housing 
types. 

Dominance of low- and medium- 
density zones. 
Shortage of small, affordable 
housing units for seniors. 
Growing demand for larger 
housing units for families. 

Encourage higher density development 
through density bonuses (Measure 6.1) 
Incentivize construction of ADUs (Measure 
6.12) 
Meet with multifamily developers to 
encourage a variety of housing types 
(Measure 6.20) 

 

  

Item 5A

100



JULY 2021 

Page 6-66 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

As identified in the assessment there is a discrepancy between housing type and household size that 
has resulted in overcrowding and overpayment, particularly for large families and lower-income 
households. Therefore, the City has identified the lack of affordable housing and access to services 
and transit as the primary contributing factors to fair housing issues in Colfax. These factors increase 
the risk of displacement for residents who cannot afford housing in Colfax or need additional support 
that they cannot access with existing infrastructure. Therefore, the City has included actions to address 
these factors, and all issues identified in this assessment, throughout the Housing Element 
implementation measures and policies. In addition to including fair housing actions in all 
implementation measures, Implementation Measure 6.20 has been included to affirmatively further 
fair housing, per AB 686, and take meaningful actions that, taken together, address significant 
disparities in housing needs and in access to opportunity for all groups protected by state and federal 
law. Regional coordination efforts outlined in several implementation measures will ensure that the 
City of Colfax furthers patterns of integration and development of affordable housing in such a way 
that it will have a positive impact on residents of the city and region. 

   

Item 5A

101



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-67 

6 

Housing 

6.3 Housing Resources Inventory 
6.3.1 Regional Housing Needs Allocation 

California law requires that each city and county, when preparing its state-mandated Housing Element, 
develop local housing measures to meet its “fair share” of existing and future housing needs for all 
income groups. This fair share concept seeks to ensure that each jurisdiction provides housing for its 
residents with a variety appropriate to their needs. The fair share is allocated to each city and the 
county by HCD. One of the major goals of the Housing Element is to develop policies and 
implementation measures to meet the goals established through the fair share allocation.  

The State of California (Government Code Section 65584) requires regions to address housing issues 
and needs based on future growth projections for the area by developing a Regional Housing Needs 
Plan (RHNP) to distribute the RHNA as determined by HCD. HCD provides the County’s total RHNA 
to SACOG, and then develops the RHNP, which allocates to each of the cities and the unincorporated 
county their fair share of the total county RHNA. The principal use of the allocations in the RHNP is 
inclusion in local Housing Elements as the shares of regional housing need. 

The intent of the RHNP is to ensure that local jurisdictions address not only the needs of their 
immediate areas but the needs for the entire region. Another major goal of the RHNP is to ensure 
that every community provides opportunity for a mix of housing affordable to all economic segments 
of its population. The RHNP process requires local jurisdictions to be accountable for ensuring that 
projected housing needs can be accommodated and provides a benchmark for evaluating the 
adequacy of local zoning and regulatory actions to ensure that sufficient, appropriately designated 
land and opportunities for housing development address population growth and job generation. The 
current RHNA projection period for Colfax is June 30, 2021, through August 31, 2029. SACOG housing 
needs figures are limited to new housing construction. That number is then allocated to income 
groups. 

State law requires local governments to provide adequate sites for the construction of housing to 
meet their RHNA. Table 36 presents the City’s fair share allocation, as published in the SACOG RHNP; 
for the period of 2021 through 2029, the City of Colfax has been given a construction need of 97 new 
housing units. The specific identified need by income group is depicted in the following table. 
Annualized over the eight years of the Housing Element, the City has an annual construction need of 
approximately 12 units per year. 

  

Item 5A

102



JULY 2021 

Page 6-68 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

TABLE 36 
REGIONAL HOUSING NEEDS ALLOCATION (2021–2029) 

Income Category Number Percentage 
Extremely Low 91 9.3% 
Very Low 8 8.2% 
Low 11 11.3% 
Moderate 21 21.7% 
Above Moderate 48 49.5% 
Total 97 100.0% 
Source: Sacramento Area Council of Governments, Regional Housing Needs Plan, March 2020 
1 It is assumed that approximately 50 percent of the very low-income household need is extremely low-

income household need. 

6.3.2 Available Sites 

In addressing the estimated housing needs identified in the 2021–2029 RHNA, State law requires that 
this element contain “An inventory of land suitable for residential development, including vacant sites 
and sites having potential for redevelopment….” This inventory must identify adequate sites that will 
be made available through appropriate zoning and development standards and with public services 
and facilities needed to facilitate and encourage the development of a variety of housing types for 
households of all income levels. 

The analysis of the relationship of suitable sites to zoning provides a means for determining the 
realistic number of dwelling units that could be constructed on those sites within the current planning 
period. The analysis also identifies the zoning districts the City believes can accommodate its share of 
the regional housing needs for all income levels. 

Realistic Capacity 

The City considered and evaluated the implementation of its current residential development 
standards and on-site improvement requirements (e.g., setbacks, building height, parking, and open 
space requirements), and looked at recent developments to determine an approximate density and 
unit capacity. To calculate the realistic capacity for each of the zoning classifications, the City used the 
assumptions in Table 37 as well as the projects examples listed in Table 37A. The City conservatively 
assumed that sites for lower-income housing would be developed at approximately 40 percent 
capacity to account for setbacks and other development standards, parking requirements, and 
potential amenities and services. For sites to accommodate moderate-income housing, the City 
assumed development at 70 percent capacity to accommodate development standards, and at 
approximately 56 percent capacity for above moderate housing to meet development standards and 
to reflect market-rate development trends for larger lots in Colfax.  

Item 5A

103



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-69 

6 

Housing 
These estimates were also based on past project capacity (Table 37A) and while the City does not 
have affordable project examples to include, the City has taken an extremely conservative approach 
and is only assuming a 40 percent realistic capacity on sites meeting the lower income RHNA.   

TABLE 37 
REALISTIC DENSITIES 

Zoning Allowed Units/Acres Assumed Units/Acres 
R-1-5, R-1-10, R-1-20 1 – 4 2.25 
RM-1 4 – 10 7 
RM-2 10 – 29* 12 

Source: City of Colfax, 2020 
Program 16.1 has been included to address the zoning and general plan density inconsistencies.  

TABLE 37A 
SAMPLE PROJECT DENSITIES 

Project Name Zoning Gross Acreage Units Per Acre Lot Capacity 
Shadow Wood RM-2 1.61 12.42 42.8% 
Sierra Oaks R-1-10 18.5 1.83 42.5% 
Village Oaks R-1-10/RM-1 12.9 2.94 67.8% 

Source: City of Colfax, 2020 

Available Residentially Zoned Land 

Housing Element law requires jurisdictions to provide a requisite analysis showing that zones identified 
for lower-income households are sufficient to encourage such development. The law provides two 
options for preparing the analysis: (1) describe market demand and trends, financial feasibility, and 
recent development experience; or (2) utilize default density standards deemed adequate to meet the 
appropriate zoning test. According to state law, the default density standard for the City of Colfax is 
20 dwelling units per acre. Table 38 lists each residential land use designation, the allowable density, 
and which land use designation accommodates each of the four required income levels. As part of 
the 2021–2029 Housing Element update, an analysis of the residential development potential of vacant 
land in the City of Colfax was completed in September 2020. The inventory of land began with the list 
of vacant parcels identified in the prior housing element. Table 38 provides a summary of the currently 
available residentially zoned land throughout the City of Colfax, the allowable density, and which land 
use designation accommodates each of the five required income levels. A total of 73.51 acres of vacant 
land are currently zoned residential in the City of Colfax, as summarized in Table 38. 

  

Item 5A

104



JULY 2021 

Page 6-70 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

TABLE 38 
VACANT LAND BY ZONING 

General Plan Land Use Zones Allowed 
Density Acres Realistic 

Capacity 
Income 

Category 

Low-Density Residential 
(LDR) 

R-1-5 
R-1-10  
R-1-20 

1–4 60.75 137 Above 
Moderate 

Medium-Density Residential 
(MDR) RM-1 4–10 9.88 69 Moderate 

Medium High-Density 
Residential (MHDR) RM-2 10–29 5.22 63 

Extremely Low 
Very Low 

Low 
Total 73.51 269  

Source: City of Colfax, 2020 

Table 39 shows the City’s capacity as compared to the RHNA. The City has identified sites to 
accommodate a realistic capacity of 63 lower-income units, 69 moderate units, and 137 above-
moderate units, for a total of 269. The sites identified have capacity for a surplus of 172 units more 
than the City’s RHNA. 

Table 40 lists all sites that the City has identified to accommodate their RHNA, including their realistic 
capacity and target income category and Figure 12 provides a map of the sites.  

In accordance with Government Code Section 65583.2 (c)(3)(B), the City is able to demonstrate the 
suitability of the higher-density zones for the development of affordable housing, i.e., housing in the 
lower-income categories. The RM-2 Zone allows 10 to 29 units per acre; the City has used 12 units per 
acre to calculate a realistic unit capacity. The 5.22 acres in the RM-2 Zone consists of four parcels, two 
of which are less than 0.5 acre and are not being used to meet the City’s RHNA.  

The two MHDR sites that are being used to meet the City’s lower-income RHNA include one parcel 
that is 6.58 acres; however, 2.4 of the acres have a slope of 30 percent or more and are therefore 
undevelopable (due to the City’s Hillside guidelines). Therefore, the calculated unit capacity is based 
on the remaining 4.18 acres, for a total of 50 units. This parcel is in eastern Colfax and is therefore not 
constrained by the City’s existing traffic deficiencies on the west side of Interstate 80. The second site 
being used (0.56 acres) has a slope of less than 30 percent and would be able to accommodate 
multifamily residential to provide affordable housing. The capacity of these two parcels will exceed 
the City’s very low- and low-income RHNA requirement of 17 units.  

In accordance with Government Code Section 65583.2(c)), a non-vacant site identified in the previous 
planning period and a vacant site that has been included in two or more previous consecutive 
planning periods cannot be used to accommodate the lower income RHNA unless the site is subject 
to a program in the housing element requiring rezoning within three years of the beginning of the 

Item 5A

105



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-71 

6 

Housing 
planning period to allow residential use by right for housing developments in which at least 20 percent 
of the units are affordable to lower income households.  

Table 40 indicates (denoted in bold) whether inventoried sites are subject to Government Code 
Section 65583.2(c) and have been included in the past two Housing Element cycles. One site (site 3) 
included in the inventory for lower-income housing was included in both the 4th and 5th cycle Housing 
Elements. Although site 3 already allows housing by-right, the Housing Element includes Policy 6.3.2 
to ensure housing developments in which at least 20 percent of the units are affordable to lower 
income households will be allowed by-right.   

TABLE 39 
SUMMARY OF RHNA AND SITES CAPACITY  

RHNA Category 2021–2029 RHNA Sites Inventory 
Capacity Unit Surplus 

Very Low 17 
63 35 

Low 11 
Moderate 21 69 48 
Above Moderate 48 137 89 
Total 97 269 172 

Source: City of Colfax, 2020 

Item 5A

106



JULY 2021 

Page 6-72 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

TABLE 40 
VACANT LAND INVENTORY 

Key  
No. APN Zoning General Plan  

Land Use Address Acres Allowable 
Density 

Realistic 
Capacity 

Income 
Category 

1 006-062-005-000 RM-2 MHDR 56 Colfax Ave. 0.111 10–29 1 Lower 
2 100-160-002-000 RM-2 MHDR Unassigned/Railroad St. 0.371 10–29 4 Lower 
3 101-080-003-000 RM-2 MHDR Unassigned/Siems Ave. 4.18 10–29 50 Lower 
4 100-160-008-000 RM-2 MHDR Unassigned/Railroad St. 0.56 10–29 7 Lower 
Lower Total 5.22  63  

5 101-080-029-000 RM-1 MDR Unassigned/Siems Ave. 2.88 4–10 20 Moderate 
6 101-170-013-000 RM-1 MDR Unlisted 7 4–10 49 Moderate 
Moderate Total 9.88  69  

7 100-110-027-000 R-1-5 LDR 133 Hunter Rd. 0.79 1–4 2 Above 
Moderate 

8 101-080-009-000 CH,  
RM-1 LDR Unassigned/Canyon Way 

& Siems Ave. 6.13 1–4 14 Above 
Moderate 

9 006-030-033-000 R-1-10 LDR Unassigned/Parkhill Dr. 1.16 1–4 3 Above 
Moderate 

10 006-030-035-000 R-1-10 LDR Unassigned/Ben Taylor Rd. 0.96 1–4 2 Above 
Moderate 

11 100-100-027-000 R-1-10, 
R-1-20 LDR Unassigned/Officer Bill C. 

Bean, Jr. Memorial Hwy 8.63 1–4 19 Above 
Moderate 

12 100-090-041-000 R-1-10, 
R-1-20 LDR Unassigned/Officer Bill C. 

Bean, Jr. Memorial Hwy 13.95 1–4 31 Above 
Moderate 

13 100-090-039-000 R-1-20 LDR Unassigned/Sierra Sky Ct. 3.07 1–4 7 Above 
Moderate 

Item 5A

107



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-73 

6 

Housing 

Key  
No. APN Zoning General Plan  

Land Use Address Acres Allowable 
Density 

Realistic 
Capacity 

Income 
Category 

14 006-104-015-000 R-1-5 LDR Unassigned/Marvin Ave. 0.28 1–4 1 Above 
Moderate 

15 006-080-016-000 R-1-5 LDR Unassigned/Oak St. 0.33 1–4 1 Above 
Moderate 

16 006-080-003-000 R-1-5 LDR Unassigned/Quinns Ln. 0.45 1–4 1 Above 
Moderate 

17 100-100-005-000 R-1-10 LDR Unassigned/Pleasant St. 1.43 1–4 3 Above 
Moderate 

18 100-100-030-000 R-1-10, 
R-1-20 LDR 80 Sierra Sky Dr. 8.72 1–4 20 Above 

Moderate 

19 100-120-053-000 R-1-20 LDR Unassigned/Old Tokayana 
Way 5.08 1–4 11 Above 

Moderate 

20 006-044-008-000 R-1-5 LDR 161 Dinky Ave. 0.4 1–4 1 Above 
Moderate 

21 006-121-007-000 R-1-5 LDR Unassigned/Rose Ave. 0.28 1–4 1 Above 
Moderate 

22 100-240-014-000 R-1-5 LDR 525 Pine St. 3.24 1–4 7 Above 
Moderate 

23 006-080-001-000 R-1-5 LDR Unassigned/Rising Sun Rd. 0.92 1–4 2 Above 
Moderate 

24 006-051-007-000 R-1-5 LDR Unassigned/Rising Sun Rd. 0.34 1–4 1 Above 
Moderate 

25 006-080-002-000 R-1-5 LDR Unassigned/Quinns Ln. 0.41 1–4 1 Above 
Moderate 

26 101-131-040-000 R-1-5 LDR Unassigned/S. Auburn St. 4.18 1–4 9 Above 
Moderate 

Item 5A

108



JULY 2021 

Page 6-74 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Key  
No. APN Zoning General Plan  

Land Use Address Acres Allowable 
Density 

Realistic 
Capacity 

Income 
Category 

Above Moderate Total 60.75  137  
Total Lower 5.22  63   
Total Moderate 9.88  69  
Total Above Moderate 60.75  137  
TOTAL 73.51  269  

Source: City of Colfax, November 2020 
1 These sites are not being used to meet the City’s RHNA.  

 

 

 

Item 5A

109



JULY 2020 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-75 

6 

Housing 
FIGURE 12 

VACANT SITES MAP 
  

Item 5A

110



JULY 2021 

Page 6-76 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Due to the topography of the City, parcels that have gradients of more than 10 percent are subject to 
the City’s Hillside guidelines (discussed in Section 6.4). Developments in these areas are encouraged 
to use innovative design concepts, such as clustering, split pads, and underground or below-grade 
rooms to provide energy-efficient and environmentally desirable spaces. Cluster development is when 
structures are built grouped close together to preserve open spaces, larger than the individual yard, 
for common recreation for the purpose of protecting and preserving natural landforms, and/or 
environmentally sensitive areas. In these design areas, the maximum number of residential dwelling 
units shall be as determined by environmental assessment, unless such development constraints can 
be shown to have been eliminated or mitigated to the satisfaction of the Planning Commission, or of 
the City Council sitting as the Planning Commission. 

The realistic capacity of each site presented in Table 40 assumes a reduction in unit capacity, as 
defined in Table 38, for planning purposes due to the Hillside guidelines. Even with this reduction, the 
City continues to have more than enough vacant residential land to meet its Moderate and Above 
Moderate RHNA requirement of 69 units. 

Available Non-Residentially Zoned Land 

The City has the capacity to see the construction of some residential units in non-residentially zoned 
areas of the City. Single-family and two-family housing are allowed in the retail commercial and 
highway commercial zones, with a Conditional Use Permit (CUP); multifamily housing is allowed in the 
retail commercial zones with a CUP. Caretaker/employee housing is allowed in the industrial zone 
with an administrative use permit. The City of Colfax also encourages mixed-use 
residential/commercial, particularly in the downtown. While the City is not relying on potential unit 
capacity in the commercial or highway zones to satisfy the City’s RHNA requirement, the City does 
expect that over the course of the Housing Element period, that residential units can and will be built 
in the non-residential zones, adding incrementally to the housing supply in Colfax. 

During the previous planning period, the City approved Administrative Use Permits for two mixed-
use projects on non-residentially zoned land in the historic downtown. The first, in 2018, was a 
residential unit constructed in conjunction with retail at the rear of the structure and the second, in 
2019, was a live-in unit added to a commercial use. The City also issued Conditional Use Permits to 
allow single-family development in the Commercial Highway zone in 2019 and the Commercial Retail 
zone in 2014. Development trends suggest that residential development is feasible and desired on 
non-residentially zoned land, with proper conditions in place to ensure compatibility. 

Item 5A

111



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-77 

6 

Housing 

6.4 Housing Constraints  
The purpose of this section is to analyze potential and actual governmental and non-governmental 
constraints on the maintenance, improvement, and development of housing in the City of Colfax. A 
discussion of the City’s efforts to remove constraints and to promote energy conservation is included. 

6.4.1 Governmental Constraints  

Local governments exercise a number of regulatory and approval powers that directly impact 
residential development within their respective jurisdictional boundaries. These powers establish the 
location, intensity, and types of units that may or may not be developed. The City's General Plan, 
zoning regulations, project review and approval procedures, development and processing fees, utility 
infrastructure, public service capabilities, and development attitudes all play important roles in 
determining the cost and availability of housing opportunities in Colfax. 

Land Use Controls 

The General Plan is the primary land use control document. This policy document not only establishes 
the location and amount of land that will be allocated to residential development, but also establishes 
the intensity of development (in terms of unit densities and total number of units) that will be 
permitted. While nearly all components or elements of the General Plan contain goals and policies 
that influence residential development, it is the Land Use Element that has the most direct influence. 
The residential designations and their corresponding densities include the following: 

» Low-Density Residential (LDR) – 1–4 units per acre 
» Medium-Density Residential (MDR) – 4–10 units per acre 
» Medium High-Density Residential (MHDR) – 10–29 units per acre 

Zoning Standards 

The City of Colfax’s Development Standards were amended in 2012 to remove any unduly restrictive 
provisions. Building height, setbacks, lot areas, and parking requirements are generally within the 
range of other similar sized cities in California. Table 41 identifies the City’s residential zoning districts. 
The City’s zoning and development standards are summarized in Table 41 and are available on the 
City’s website.  The City encourages mixed use in the downtown under the CR designation. 

  

Item 5A

112



JULY 2021 

Page 6-78 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

TABLE 41 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS BY RESIDENTIAL ZONE 

Zone 
District 

Building 
Height 
(feet) 

Yard Setback 
(feet) Minimum 

Lot Area 
(square 

feet) 

Lot Area 
Per 

Dwelling 
Unit (DU) 
(square 

feet) 

Parking 
Spaces 

Open 
Space Front Side Rear 

R-1-5 30’ 20’ 6’ 20’ 5,000 5,000 2 NA 
R-1-10 30’ 20’ 8’ 30’ 10,000 10,000 2 NA 
R-1-15 30’ 20’ 8’ 30’ 15,000 15,000 2 NA 
R-1-20 30’ 30’ 10’ 40’ 20,000 20,000 2 NA 
R-1-40 30’ 30’ 15’ 40’ 40,000 40,000 2 NA 
R-M-1 30’ 20’ 6’ 20’ 6,000 3,000 1.5/du1 400/du 
R-M-2 30’ 20’ 6’ 20 6,000 1,500 1.5/du1 200/du 
C-R 30’ -2 -2 10 5,000 N/A 4 N/A 
C-H 35’ 25 -3 -3 5,000 N/A 4 N/A 
NA = Not applicable 
1 Multifamily Zone districts require 1.5 spaces per unit for studios and one-bedroom units, 2 spaces per 2+ 
bedroom unit, plus guest parking as follows: 1 additional space per 10 units or portion thereof (applies only to 
projects with 10+ units). 
2 No front or side yard setbacks are required in the C-R district except where the abutting side lot line is in a 
residential district, in which case the yard setback will not be less than that required for such residential 
district. 
3 No side or rear yard setbacks are required in the C-H district except where abutting a residential district, in 
which case the yard setback shall not be less than 20 feet and the rear setback not less than 25 feet. 
4 The number of residential parking spaces required in the C-R and C-H districts shall be equal to the 
requirements in residential districts based on the dwelling type., per section 17.108.020 of the City of Colfax 
Municipal Code. 
Source: City of Colfax Zoning Ordinance, 2012 

Residential Zoning Districts 

Title 17 of the Colfax Municipal Code, Zoning, provides the zoning provisions for the City. The Colfax 
City Council adopted the Zoning Code in 1967, which, until recently, had been amended in piecemeal 
fashion through City ordinances. In 2012, the City undertook a comprehensive administrative update 
of the Zoning Code. Zoning Districts for the City of Colfax are defined as follows: 

Item 5A

113



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-79 

6 

Housing 
Agricultural District (A) - The purpose of this district is to promote and preserve in appropriate areas 
of the City conditions favorable to agricultural use. Along with agricultural uses, farmworker/employee 
housing, single-family homes, public parks, playground, schools, libraries, and churches are permitted. 

Single-Family Residential District (R-1, R-1-5, R-1-10, R-1-15, R-1-20, R-1-40) - The purpose of this 
district is to provide for areas in appropriate locations where quiet, low-density residential 
neighborhoods may be established, maintained, and protected. Single-family uses are allowed in this 
zone, including public and quasi-public uses. 

Multifamily Residential District (R-M-1, R-M-2) - The purpose of the multifamily residence district (R-
M) is to provide for areas in appropriate locations where apartment house neighborhoods of varying 
degrees of density may be established, maintained, and protected. The regulations of this district are 
designed to promote and encourage an intensively developed residential environment suitable 
primarily for adult living. To this end, the regulations permit, in accordance with the respective density 
district, multiple dwellings ranging from garden apartments to multi-story apartment houses and 
necessary public services and activities subject to proper controls. Along with multifamily uses, single-
family dwellings, duplex or two-family dwellings, public parks, playgrounds, schools, libraries, and 
churches are permitted. 

Residential Mobilehome Subdivision District (R-MHS) - The purpose of the residential mobilehome 
subdivision district (R-MHS) is to permit and regulate the development of mobilehome parks within 
the city, as well as the design and placement of mobile homes within such mobilehome parks. The 
provisions of this article shall apply to new mobilehome parks and to the expansion of existing 
mobilehome parks and shall be in addition to the applicable rules and regulations of the state for 
mobilehome parks. 

Commercial Districts - The purpose of these districts is to provide appropriately located areas for a 
full range of office, retail commercial, and service commercial uses, to strengthen the City’s economic 
bases, to minimize the impact of commercial development on residential districts, and to provide 
opportunities for residential development on the site of commercial development or on separate sites 
in certain districts, including the Retail Commercial (CR) district, and the Highway Commercial (CH) 
district. Single-family and two-family dwelling units are allowed in both the CR and CH zones with a 
CUP and multifamily is permitted in the CR zone with a CUP. 

Industrial Districts - The purpose of these districts is to permit appropriate industrial uses and to 
minimize the impact industrial uses have on residential and commercial districts. Residential uses are 
not permitted in the Industrial districts. The Light Industrial District is the district in which the City has 
approved an emergency shelter use by right. 

  

Item 5A

114



JULY 2021 

Page 6-80 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Typical Densities for Development 

The City of Colfax is a small city located on the western slope of the Sierra Nevada foothills with few 
relatively level locations for development. The city is bounded by Bear River to the northwest and the 
North Fork of the American River on the southeast. The single-family lots currently undergoing 
development were approved in the prior planning period and will result in 93 new single-family 
residences. Single-family residential lots in the City can range in size from approximately 5,000 square 
feet to 40,000 square feet and are zoned to support one single-family home each. As stated in the 
City of Colfax General Plan, typical single-family densities are 1 to 4 dwelling units per acre and typical 
multifamily densities are 4 to 29 dwelling units per acre. In the previous planning period, no sites 
identified to accommodate the RHNA in the inventory were developed below the minimum allowable 
density of the zone in which the site is located. 

Provisions for a Variety of Housing 

Housing Element law specifies that jurisdictions must identify adequate sites to be made available 
through appropriate zoning and development standards to encourage the development of various 
types of housing for all economic segments of the population. This includes single-family housing, 
multifamily housing, manufactured housing, mobilehomes, emergency shelters, and transitional 
housing. Table 42 summarizes the permitted housing types. 

TABLE 42 
HOUSING TYPES PERMITTED BY ZONING DISTRICT 

Housing Types Permitted R-1 R-M R-MHS C-R C-H 
Single-Family Dwelling1 P P P CUP CUP 
Two-Family Dwelling1  P  CUP CUP 
Multifamily Dwelling1  P  CUP  
Community Care Facilities, Small P P P   
Community Care Facilities, Large2  P  AP  
Family Day Care Homes, Small P P P P  
Family Day Care Homes, Large3 AP AP AP CUP  
Mobile Home Park   CUP   
Rooming and Boarding House   P    
Second Dwelling Unit4 AP P    
Mobile/Manufactured Homes P4 P5 P   
Emergency Shelters6 - - -   
Employee Housing7 - -  CUP CUP 

Source: City of Colfax Municipal Code. 

Item 5A

115



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-81 

6 

Housing 
Refer to the City of Colfax Zoning Code for specific details.  
Notes: P = Principally Permitted Use; AP = Administratively Permitted Use; CUP = Conditionally Permitted Use  
1 Supportive and transitional housing are considered residential use types and are treated the same as any other 
use in the same zoning district. 
2 The City has included Implementation Measure 6.13 to establish a ministerial permit process for residential care 
facilities for seven or more persons and remove the 12-person maximum. 
3 See Chapter 17.160 of the Colfax Zoning Code for large family daycare home regulations.  
4 See Chapter 17.196 of the Colfax Zoning Code for second dwelling unit regulations. 
5 Mobile/manufactured homes are permitted in R-1 and R-M zones when on a permanent foundation. 
6 Emergency shelters are permitted by right in the City’s Light Industrial zone if they meet the requirements set 
forth in Chapter 17.140. They are allowed with a CUP or Administrative Permit in commercial zones. 
7 The City has included Implementation Measure 6.10 to amend the Zoning Ordinance consistent with Health and 
Safety Code Sections 17021.5 and 17021.6). 

Emergency Shelters 

In 2012, the City revised its Zoning Code, as required by SB 2, to allow emergency shelters by right in 
the Light Industrial zone district, if it meets the development and management standards outlined in 
Chapter 17.140.030 of the City’s Municipal Code. The City updated its Zoning Code accordingly 
(Chapter 17.140) and has identified the Light Industrial zone district as appropriate for emergency 
homeless shelters by right and without discretionary action. Emergency shelters are permitted with a 
CUP or Administrative Permit in commercial zones on a project-by-project basis with appropriate 
conditions and meeting standards outlined in Chapter 17.140.  

The following development standards are required in addition to the general development standards: 

» Distance Separation Requirements. No emergency shelter shall be located within two hundred 
fifty (250) feet of any other emergency shelter. 

» Occupancy. An emergency shelter shall not exceed forty (40) residents, excluding staff. 

» Length of Occupancy. Any single resident's stay shall not exceed six consecutive months. 

» Zone Specific Development Standards. An emergency shelter shall comply with all 
development standards of the applicable zoning district in which it is located. 

» Parking Requirements. Emergency shelters shall provide one parking space for every staff 
member and one parking space for every ten (10) temporary residents. The City has included 
Measure 6.14 to ensure consistency with Government Code Section 65583(a)(4 (A)(ii)). 

» Management. An emergency shelter must adequately comply with the management 
standards: 

Item 5A

116



JULY 2021 

Page 6-82 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

 There shall be space inside the building so that prospective and current residents are 
not required to wait on sidewalks or any other public rights-of-way. 

 Security shall be provided on site during hours of operation. 

 On-site management shall be provided by at least one emergency shelter staff 
member at all times while residents are present at the shelter. 

Emergency shelter lighting shall be consistent with the City of Colfax's adopted building code. 
According to data obtained from the City’s Planning Department, one parcel is zoned Light Industrial 
and could be suitable for an emergency homeless shelter, as the site is currently vacant (see Table 
43).  This parcel has sufficient capacity to accommodate the unmet need for homeless individuals. 

The Light Industrial uses in the City pursuant to the Zoning Ordinance consist of the following types 
of uses: light manufacturing, research and development, warehousing, business parks and offices, 
supporting retail, financial and restaurants, personal services, and similar types of uses. The vacant 
Light Industrial parcel is centrally located and accessible to major transportation, schools, the 
downtown area, and other services. 

TABLE 43  
VACANT INDUSTRIAL LAND 

APN Number Acres 
100-230-061-000 2.63 
Source: City of Colfax, 2020 

Government Code 65662 requires the City to permit low-barrier navigation centers by right in areas 
zoned for mixed use and nonresidential zones permitting multifamily uses. A low-barrier navigation 
center is a service-enriched shelter focused on moving people into permanent housing that provides 
temporary living facilities while case managers connect individuals experiencing homelessness to 
income, public benefits, health services, shelter, and housing. The City has included Implementation 
Measure 6.8 to comply with State Law. 

Single-Room Occupancy Units  

Residential occupancy or single-room occupancy (SRO) hotels can be an important component of the 
special needs housing picture. SRO’s can provide low-cost housing for those in the extremely low- 
and very low-income categories and can also play a role in the transitioning process from 
homelessness to more permanent housing. 

Currently, the City does not explicitly define or permit SRO units but has included Implementation 
Measure 6.11 to comply with State Law.  

  

Item 5A

117



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-83 

6 

Housing 

Transitional and Supportive Housing 

Transitional housing is defined in Section 50675.2 of the Health and Safety Code as rental housing for 
stays of no less than six months but where the units are recirculated to another program recipient 
after a set period. It may be designated for a homeless individual or family transitioning to permanent 
housing. This housing can take many structural forms, such as group housing and multifamily units, 
and may include supportive services to allow individuals to gain necessary life skills in support of 
independent living. 

Supportive housing is defined by Section 50675.14 of the Health and Safety Code as housing with 
linked on-site or off-site services with no limit on the length of stay and that is occupied by a target 
population as defined in Health and Safety Code Section 53260 (i.e., low-income person with mental 
disabilities, AIDS, substance abuse, or chronic health conditions, or persons whose disabilities 
originated before the age of 18). Services linked to supportive housing usually focus on retaining 
housing, living and working in the community, and/or health improvement. 

The City allows transitional and supportive housing as residential uses subject to only those restrictions 
that apply to other residential uses of the same type in the same zone without any discretionary action. 
The City’s current zoning does not act as a constraint to the provision of transitional or supportive 
housing.  

Government Code Section 65651, requires the City to further permit supportive housing as a use by 
right in zones where multifamily and mixed uses are permitted, including nonresidential zones 
permitting multifamily uses, if the proposed housing development allows for the approval of 100% 
affordable developments that include a percentage of supportive housing units, either 25% or 12 units, 
whichever is greater. The City has included Implementation Measure 6.9 to comply with State Law.  

Manufactured Homes 

Currently, manufactured homes (commonly referred to as “mobilehomes”) are recognized as an 
approved alternative housing type, which are allowed in residential zones. Manufactured homes are 
subject to the National Manufactured Housing Construction and Safety Act of 1974 and are required 
to conform to foundational regulations per Government Code Section 65852.3. Manufactured/mobile 
homes are permitted by right in the R-MHS zone and in all other residential zones when on a 
permanent foundation. 

Persons with Disabilities  

Specifically, compliance with SB 520 (Article 10), regarding providing housing accessibility to persons 
with disabilities, is met by permitting supportive multifamily or single-family housing for the disabled 
in any residential zone that permits non-designated single or multifamily housing. 

Applications for retrofit are processed the same as for improvements to any single-family home. 
Handicapped Accessibility is made available by contacting City Hall 24 to 48 hours in advance of 
Public Meetings. The City reconstructed the sidewalk street corners in downtown Colfax for 

Item 5A

118



JULY 2021 

Page 6-84 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

handicapped accessibility and all new private sidewalks, curbs, and gutters are required to comply 
with California Title 24 standards for accessibility. For new public sidewalks, curbs and gutters, the City 
applies Placer County standards for accessibility, which meet or exceed Federal Guidelines for ADA. 
In both private and public areas, exceptions are made, as allowed by these codes, where such 
improvements are not feasible or not practical. All multifamily complexes are required to provide 
handicapped parking as per California standards. 

The City of Colfax continually reviews its codes, policies, and practices for compliance with fair housing 
laws. A review during the writing of the last Housing Element resulted in a broadened and revised 
definition of “family” to include State and Federal definitions relating to unrelated adults living together 
as a household unit. The revised definition of “family” is “one or more persons occupying a premise 
and living as a single housekeeping unit as distinguished from a group occupying a hotel, club or 
fraternity or sorority house.” 

The City continues to offer incentives that can be used to encourage the development of housing 
opportunities for specialized housing needs (Implementation Measure 6.1). Implementation Measures 
6.20 and 6.21 address fair housing.  

The City permits State licensed and unlicensed group homes, foster homes, residential care facilities, 
and similar facilities, by right, group homes with six or fewer persons in any residential zone district, 
and allow with administrative approval group homes with greater than six persons in the multifamily 
zone district. The City currently allows community care facilities for seven or more persons as a 
commercial use in the R-M zone by-right and with an administrative permit in the C-R zone. Measure 
6.13 has been included in this Housing Element to amend the Zoning Ordinance to establish a 
ministerial permit process for residential care facilities for seven or more persons and remove the 12- 
person maximum. 

The City adopted Chapter 17.192 entitled “Reasonable Accommodation” during the 2012 revision to 
the Zoning Code. The Reasonable Accommodation Ordinance provides a process for individuals with 
disabilities to make requests for reasonable accommodation regarding relief from the various land 
use, zoning, or rules, policies, practices and/or procedures of the City. When a request for reasonable 
accommodation is filed with the Planning Department, it will be referred to the Planning Director for 
review and consideration as a ministerial action unless determined otherwise by the Planning Director. 
The decision to grant, grant with modification, or deny a request for reasonable accommodations is 
based on the following findings: 

a. The housing, which is the subject of the request for reasonable accommodation, will be used 
for an individual protected under the Act. 

b. The request for reasonable accommodation is necessary to make specific housing available 
to an individual protected under the Act. 

c. The requested reasonable accommodation does not impose an undue financial or 
administrative burden on the city, and does not fundamentally alter city zoning, development 
standards, policies or procedures of the city. 

Item 5A

119



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-85 

6 

Housing 

Employee (Farmworker) Housing 

The City permits caretaker/employee housing in the Agricultural zone district as a permitted use. 
Employee housing is deemed an agricultural land use designation that does not require a CUP, zoning 
variance, or other zoning clearance other than that required of any other agricultural activity in the 
same zone. The City has included Implementation Measure 6.10 to amend the Zoning Ordinance to 
treat employee/farmworker housing that serves six or fewer persons as a single-family structure and 
permit it in the same manner as other single-family structures of the same type within the same zone 
across all zones that allow single-family residential uses and to treat employee/farmworker housing 
consisting of no more than 12 units or 36 beds as an agricultural use and permit it in the same manner 
as other agricultural uses in the same zone, in compliance with the California Employee Housing Act 
(Health and Safety Code Sections 17021.5 and 17021.6). 

Density Bonus 

When a developer proposes a housing development, state law requires that the city provide incentives 
for the production of low-income housing. A density bonus agreement between the developer and 
city is used to set forth the incentives to be offered by the city (i.e., allowing increased density over 
that typically allowable in the respective zoning district) and the requirements of the developer. The 
City Density Bonus ordinance allows for a range of density bonuses of up to 35 percent for which 
applicants would be eligible based on a sliding-scale percentage of affordable units provided in a 
development. The ordinance also offers a range of one to three other incentives (such as a reduction 
in site development standards) based on how much affordable housing has been provided. The 
ordinance requires that the units remain available for low-income persons for a period of 30 years. 
To comply with current State Law, the City has included Implementation Measure 6.7. 

Local Entitlement Fees and Exactions 

Part of the cost associated with developing residential units is related to the fees or other exactions 
required of developers to obtain project approval and the time required to conduct project review 
and issue land use entitlements. Critics contend that lengthy review periods increase financial and 
carrying costs, and that fees and exactions increase expenses. These costs are in part passed onto the 
prospective homebuyer or renter in the form of higher purchase prices or rents. 

Table 44 illustrates the average cost in planning fees charged by the City of Colfax, compared to 
neighboring jurisdictions. For example, Colfax requires a fee of $4,000 for a general plan amendment, 
while in the City of Rocklin, Grass Valley, and Placer County, fees are all greater. The cost for a zone 
change in Colfax is similar to Grass Valley and Placer County but a zone change in Rocklin is 146% 
greater than Colfax. The complete list of the City’s development review fees can be seen in Table 45 
and are available on the City’s website.  
  

Item 5A

120



JULY 2021 

Page 6-86 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

TABLE 44 
PLANNING APPLICATION FEES – SURROUNDING JURISDICTIONS 

Jurisdiction General Plan 
Amendment 

Zone 
Change 

Tentative 
Subdivision Map Variance*** 

Colfax $4,000* $4,000* $8,000 & $100/Parcel $3,000 

Auburn $1,481 $1,323 
$748 and 

$27/lot 1-25 lots 
$6/ lot over 25 

$514 

Grass Valley $6,571 $4,519 $311** $1,807 

Rocklin $14,351 $13,661 $15,167 ($11,912 for 
modification) $6,372 

Placer County $4,185* $3,557* $1,611 + $110 per lot $1,593 
*Deposit (charges are at cost). The fee for the City of Colfax is for either a text or map general plan 
amendment. ($4,000 for each). 
**Varies from $259 (4 or fewer lots) to $519 (10+ lots). The value above is for 5–9 lots. 
***Where applicable, the highest fee (major variance) was given.  
Source: City and County Planning Departments June 2020 
 

TABLE 45 
COLFAX DEVELOPMENT REVIEW FEES 

Action/Request Fee 
Environmental Impact Report $20,000 deposit—charges at cost 
Negative Declaration $3,660 
General Plan Amendment $4,000 deposit—charges at cost 
Zone Change $4,000 deposit—charges at cost 
Tentative Parcel Map (< 4 lots) $3,000 & $100/parcel 
Subdivision Map $8,000 & $100/parcel 
Variance $3,000 
Administrative Use Permit $500–1,500 
Conditional Use Permits $2,000-minor, $4,000-major 

Design review $1,500 administrative or minor, $2,400 major 
Site plan review Administrative or minor- $1,600, major- $3,600 
Appeal $1,200 

Source: City of Colfax, 2020 

  

Item 5A

121



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-87 

6 

Housing 
Fees, land dedications, or improvements are required as part of the development of property, 
including housing developments, in order to provide an adequate supply of public parkland and to 
provide necessary infrastructure (streets, sewers, and storm drains) to support the new development. 
While such costs are charged to the developer, ultimately additional costs are passed to the product 
consumer in the form of higher home prices or rents. 

The significance of the necessary infrastructure improvements in determining final costs varies greatly 
from project to project. The improvements are dependent on the amount and condition of existing 
infrastructure, the location of the project, and the nature of the project. Table 46 describes the fees 
assessed to residential development for both single-family development projects and for multifamily 
development projects. 

TABLE 46 
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT FEES 

Fee Description Single-Family 
Fee Per DU 

Multifamily 
Fee Per DU 

Roads $1,802 $1,301 
Drainage Study $74 $48 
Drainage (East–West culverts) $3,416 $2,216 
Trails $1,125 $787 
Park & Recreation $5,731 $4,011 
City Buildings $684 $494 
City Vehicles $130 $94 
Downtown Parking $581 $420 
Sewer Impact Fee $9,300* $9,300* 
Landfill Equity Fee $47 $47 
TOTAL $22,540 $18,368 
Source: City of Colfax, 2019 Mitigation/Impact Fee Schedule Summary for New Construction 
*The sewer impact fee is adjusted on July 1stt of each year by the City Engineer by a percentage equal to the 
annual percentage of increase or decrease in the San Francisco Bay Area Construction Cost Index. 
Does not include a Residential Construction Tax of 1.0% of the build value Does not include Colfax Elementary 
or Colfax High School Fees (see below). Does not include Placer County Water Agency water connection fee; 
varies based on connection size and building type. 
Building permit fees are based on building valuation taken strictly from the Uniform Building Code. 

The Placer Union High School District and the Colfax Elementary School District serve the City of Colfax 
education system. The Placer Union High School District has a school impact fee of $3.19 per square 
foot and the Colfax Elementary School District has an impact fee of $1.78 per square foot. Even though 
the aforementioned development impact fees may add significantly to the cost of development, the 

Item 5A

122



JULY 2021 

Page 6-88 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

fees are consistent with the amount established by California Government Code Section 65995 et seq. 
There are no exemptions to the school impact fees at this time. 

Processing and Permit Procedures 

The time required to process a project varies greatly from one project to another and is directly related 
to the size and complexity of the proposal and the number of actions or approvals needed to 
complete the process. Table 47 identifies the most common steps in the entitlement process. It should 
be noted that each project does not necessarily have to complete each step in the process (e.g., small-
scale projects consistent with General Plan and zoning designations do not generally require 
Environmental Impact Reports [EIRs], General Plan Amendments, Rezones, or Variances). Also, certain 
review and approval procedures may run concurrently. EIRs are frequently prepared in response to a 
General Plan Amendment/Rezoning request, so these two actions are often processed simultaneously. 
Colfax also practices concurrent processing, or joint processing of related applications for a single 
project. Such procedures save time, money, and effort for both the public and private sector. However, 
it is important to note that processing timelines, such as that required for public noticing, could not 
be made any shorter without violating State laws, and compliance with the California Environmental 
Quality Act.  

When developers have a project proposal, the Planning Director meets with the developers to 
strategize about project design, City standards, necessary public improvements, and funding 
strategies (where appropriate). In addition, the City staff assists the developer throughout the permit 
processing to ensure a rapid processing time. 

To clarify approval procedures, timing, and fees for the entire approval and building permit process, 
the City has compiled a Standard Application package that is given to each developer. Included in 
this package is an explanation of the planning application permit process and timing, and an 
application form where all requested action for the project regarding both the planning and 
engineering departments can be checked. Additionally, the package includes an environmental 
evaluation form, a complete checklist for the application, and a copy of the planning fee schedule and 
impact fee schedules. After this packet is received, the staff conducts a check for packet completeness, 
a code applicability check, and an initial environmental review. 

Based on City Staff review, a decision is made whether the project is ministerial (processed at staff 
level) or if it requires discretionary entitlement processing (at Planning Commission level).  

After the City approves a project, such as at Planning Commission or City Council hearing, it becomes 
the applicant’s responsibility to initiate the steps to secure building permits and construct the 
project.  These steps include obtaining additional City clearances and paying fees as outlined in a 
project’s conditions of approval. Other necessary actions include:   

 Completing construction drawings   

 Recording subdivision (final) maps (applies to ownership projects)   

Item 5A

123



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-89 

6 

Housing 
 Retaining contractors   

 Obtaining utility approvals, required easements and rights of entry. 

A few of the bulleted items, such as the construction drawings, require city review prior to issuance of 
a building permit.   

The length of time between a project’s approval and building permit issuance in many cases is 
determined by the applicant. The City’s initial review for both civil plan and building permit approval 
is typically 3 to 4 weeks with a subsequent review, if corrections are necessary, to be completed within 
1 to 3 weeks. The time the applicant takes to make corrections between these reviews varies, however 
once a project begins the construction plan review process, the following general timelines can 
typically be achieved with responsive applicants: 

 Civil plan approval (e.g., grading, water, sewer, streets): 3-6 months   

 Building permit approval: 1-3 months 

Review of Local Ordinances 

The City does not have any locally adopted ordinances that hinder the development of housing. 

Development Guidelines 

The Hillside Development Guidelines were adopted by Ordinance in 1993 to ensure the appropriate 
use, development, or alteration of land in hillside areas; and provide direction to encourage 
development, is sensitive to the unique characteristics common to hillside properties. Specific 
standards apply to that topography that exceeds a 10-percent gradient. For projects in that category, 
the following must be submitted with the project proposal: 

» A natural features map, based on photograph file mapping, a field survey to establish 
vertical and horizontal control and a site visit; 

» A conceptual grading plan; 
» A slope analysis map with minimum of three slope profiles. 

The Hillside Development Guidelines define grading, drainage, parking, and access standards. The 
goals of the standards are to: 

» Preserve and protect hillside areas in order to maintain the identity, image, and natural 
quality. 

» Ensure development in hillside areas is concentrated on the most level portions of the site in 
locations with the least environmental impact; when designed to fit the existing landforms, 
consideration shall be given to clustered structures. 

Item 5A

124



JULY 2021 

Page 6-90 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

» Preserve significant features of the natural topography, including swales, canyons, knolls, 
ridgelines, and rock outcrops. Development may necessarily affect natural features by, for 
example, roads crossing ridgelines. Therefore, a major design criterion shall be the 
minimization of such impacts. 

» Provide a safe means of ingress and egress for vehicular and pedestrian traffic to and within 
hillside areas, with minimum disturbance to the natural terrain. 

» Correlate land use intensity and density of development with the steepness of terrain in 
order to minimize grading, removal of vegetation, land instability and fire hazards. 

» Provide alternative approaches to conventional flat land development practices that are 
compatible with the natural characteristics of landforms, vegetation, and scenic quality. 

» Encourage the planning, design, and development of home sites that provide maximum safety 
with respect to fire hazards, exposure to geological and geotechnical hazards, drainage, 
erosion and situation. Provide the best use of natural terrain and prohibit development that 
will create or increase fire, flood, slide, or other safety hazards. 

These standards are not meant to reduce density, but to protect and preserve the natural features; 
however, innovative designs may increase costs, thus reducing the ability to provide affordable 
housing. Developments in these areas are encouraged to use innovative design concepts such as 
clustering, split pads, and underground or below-grade rooms to provide energy-efficient and 
environmentally desirable spaces. Cluster development is when structures are built grouped close 
together to preserve open spaces larger than the individual yard for common recreation for the 
purpose of protecting and preserving natural landforms and/or environmentally sensitive areas. In 
addition, the City will work with developers to create site plans that both satisfy the requirements of 
the Hillside Development Standards and maximize land use. 

Design Review  

If permitted uses are subject to design review, the City processes the application through its design 
review process. The design review process has been established by the City as part of the Municipal 
Code, Section 17.32.010.C and Chapter 17.116. In addition to the overall approval process, each zoning 
district contains additional more specific regulations. Residential uses in the Agricultural District are 
not subject to design review, nor are single-family dwellings in the single-family residential districts. In 
the Multifamily Residence District, all multifamily housing projects are subject to design review; lone 
single-family and lone duplex dwelling units are exempt.  

The Planning Director is the approval authority for administrative design review permits, or those that 
are not forwarded to the City Council. Design reviews that are subject to council review are those that 
City Council action is required as a result of location, size, or design; modifications to the zoning 
ordinance, zoning map, or general plan; concurrent submission with tentative subdivision map, 
conditional use permit, or planned development; or demolition of a significant building. Administrative 
design review permits are only subject to the findings that a) the proposed improvement is 
substantially compatible with the existing structure and complimentary to the adjacent land uses, and 

Item 5A

125



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-91 

6 

Housing 
b) the proposed improvement substantially complies with all applicable standards and requirements 
of this title, with the applicable goals, policies and objectives set forth in the general plan, building 
code and the applicable community design guidelines. 

During City Council design review for zones other than the Historic District, the Council shall make the 
following findings when determining whether to approve, deny, or approve with conditions: 

 The project as approved allows beneficial use to be made of the site for development, 
preserves and accentuates the natural features of the property, such as open space, 
topography, trees, wetlands and water courses, and provides adequate drainage for the 
project. 

 The project site design as approved provides access, vehicle parking, vehicle, pedestrian and 
bicycle circulation, loading areas, landscaping and irrigation and lighting which results in a 
safe, efficient, and harmonious development and which is consistent with the applicable goals, 
policies and objectives set forth in the general plan and the design guidelines established for 
that zone district. 

 The building design, including the materials, colors, height, bulk, size and relief, and the 
arrangement of the structures on the site, as approved is harmonious with other development 
and buildings in the vicinity and which is consistent with the applicable goals, policies and 
objectives set forth in the general plan and the design guidelines established for that zone 
district. 

 The design of the public services, as approved, including, but not limited to trash enclosures 
and service equipment are located so as not to detract from the appearance of the site, and 
are screened appropriately and effectively using construction materials, colors and 
landscaping that are harmonious with the site and the building designs. 

In the Historic Zone District, the approval authority shall make the following design review findings: 

 The project will maintain the small town character that makes Colfax a desirable place to live. 

 The project will maintain and enhance the city's character and visual appearance in order to 
create a quality future community. 

 The project will maintain and enhance the historic resources, qualities, and character of the 
City of Colfax. 

While the use of design guidelines may be considered a detriment to housing development in some 
communities, the City’s design review process would have minimal impact and promote sustainable 
housing by encouraging quality of design and pedestrian-friendly neighborhoods. Additionally, most 
design review permits are subject only to administrative design review, thus expediting the process to 
remove constraints. To ensure design review of larger projects does not add additional time 
constraints, the review process is typically conducted concurrently with the various required processes 

Item 5A

126



JULY 2021 

Page 6-92 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

including tentative subdivision map review, building permit application, and any requests for financial 
assistance from the City. 

Consistent with Senate Bill (SB) 330, housing developments for which a preliminary application is 
submitted that complies with applicable general plan and zoning standards are subject only to the 
development standards and fees that were applicable at the time of submittal.  This applies to all 
projects unless the project square footage or unit count changes by more than 20 percent after the 
preliminary application is submitted.  The developer must submit a full application for the 
development project within 180 days of submitting the preliminary application.  

The City currently defers to HCD for the required application process but will consider creating a City 
specific process during the planning period.   

The Planning Director is the approval authority via an administrative review and approval process for 
projects subject to design review. However, the Planning Director may refer the project to City Council 
if he or she determines that the project is not in substantial compliance with the adopted design 
guidelines or if, because of location, size, or design that the City Council should be the approval 
authority and hold a duly noticed public hearing to consider overall design and appearance of the 
project. Project approval is discretionary; and findings are made regarding architecture and site design 
issues that the applicant incorporates into the project. Generally, if the project is found to be in 
compliance with relevant local codes, compatible in use and consistent in design with the 
neighborhood, the Planning Director or the City Council approves the project based on findings and 
subject to conditions of approval.  

The City’s intent is not to add cost to a project, but to maintain high standards on a uniform basis and 
to provide certainty to all projects; therefore, the City does not consider design review to be a 
constraint on development. The City remains mindful of projects working within tight budgets. Bearing 
this in mind, in 2012, the City revised its Zoning Code to allow for administrative-level review by the 
Planning Director, not just for projects subject to design review, but also for other types of permits 
(such as use permits and sign permits). In this Housing Element, the City has included Implementation 
Measure 6.5 that will require review as needed of the design review process; if any undue constraints 
are determined to be present, the City will identify policies or actions that will reduce the cost and 
time involved for the development of affordable housing. 

The City recognizes that discretionary approvals may have the tendency to act as a constraint on the 
development of housing. The City does not require a CUP for multifamily projects in the City, 
regardless of density, when located within the RM-1 or RM-2 zones. A multifamily project may also be 
allowed within the Commercial-Retail (CR) zone with the issuance of a CUP. Design review is done for 
the purpose of maintaining high-quality development and not used to consider housing unit density. 

  

Item 5A

127



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-93 

6 

Housing 

TABLE 47 
COLFAX DEVELOPMENT REVIEW AND APPROVAL PROCEDURES 

Action/Request Processing 
Time Comments 

Environmental Impact 
Report 6 to 12 Months 

Processing and review time limits controlled 
through the California Environmental Quality Act 

(CEQA). Certified City Council. 

Negative Declaration 3 to 6 Months 
Processing time can be extended if the project has 
a longer review and approval period. Adopted by 

City Council. 

General Plan Amendment 90 days 
Gov. Code Section 65358 limits the number of 
times any element of the General Plan can be 
amended each calendar year. Requires a City 

Council public hearing. 
Zone Change 90 days Requires a City Council public hearing. 
Tentative Parcel Map (< 4 
lots) 3 Months Requires a City Council public hearing. 

Subdivision Map 4–6 months Requires a City Council public hearing. 

Variance 60 days Considered by Planning Director (administrative 
variance) or the City Council. 

Administrative Use Permit 30 days Considered by Planning Director. 

Conditional Use Permits  
30 days for minor 
projects, 45–90 
days for major 

projects 
Requires a City Council public hearing  

Design review 4–6 months Considered by Planning Director (administrative) 
or the City Council (minor/major). 

Site plan review 4–6 months Considered by Planning Director (administrative) 
or the City Council. 

Appeal 90 days Requires City Council Hearing. 
Source: City of Colfax, 2020. 
Note: The City Council acts as the City’s Planning Agency. 

Table 48 provides the typical time frames for both single-family and multifamily projects. Additional 
information regarding the design review process can be found in Table 47.  

  

Item 5A

128



JULY 2021 

Page 6-94 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

TABLE 48 
TYPICAL PROCESSING PROCEDURES BY PROJECT TYPE  

 Single-Family or 
Two-Family Unit Subdivision Multifamily Units 

Typical Approval 
Requirements 

Site Plan Tentative Map Review 
(< 4 lots) Site Plan 

— Subdivision Map Design Review 
Est. Total Processing Time 4–6 months 4–6 months 8–12 months 

Source: City of Colfax, 2020. 

Building Codes and Enforcement 

Compliance with Building Code standards protects public health, safety, and welfare and is a necessary 
cost of construction. 

Government Code Section 65583(c)(3) requires the Housing Element to provide a program to 
“address and where appropriate and legally possible, remove governmental constraints to the 
maintenance, improvement, and development of housing for persons with disabilities. The program 
shall remove constraints to and provide reasonable accommodations for housing designed for, 
intended for occupancy by, or with supportive services for, persons with disabilities.” 

The City administers the 2019 edition of the California Building Standards Code (CBC), Title 24 of the 
California Code of Regulations (CCR), Parts 1, 2, 2.5, 3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 11, and 12, relating to electrical, 
plumbing, mechanical, energy compliance, non-structural, disabled access, and abatement of 
dangerous buildings. Implementation of these codes ensures structural integrity and facilitates the 
City’s efforts to maintain a safe housing supply. The City has not adopted any amendments to the 
CBC.  

In addition, the City continues to enforce an Ordinance regulating demolition review and demolition 
permit process and procedures. The City’s Building Department is responsible for enforcing both state 
and city regulations governing maintenance of all buildings and property. Colfax Code Enforcement 
responds to quality-of-life matters on a complaint basis and health and safety matters on both a 
proactive and complaint basis. The City will proactively enforce building and development codes and 
will mitigate or prevent displacement through assistance with relocation costs for lower-income 
households when funding is available (Measure 6.18).  

On- and Off-Site Improvements 

For residential projects, the City requires both on- and off-site improvements. These include 
curb/gutter and drainage facilities, sidewalks, paved streets, telephone, cable, electricity, landscaping, 
and water and sewer service. Such improvements are required as a condition of the subdivision map, 
or if there is no required map, improvements are required as part of the building permit. These on- 
and off-site improvements promote the health, safety, and general welfare of the public. 

Item 5A

129



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-95 

6 

Housing 
Curbs/gutters and drainage facilities direct stormwater and runoff water out of residential 
developments. City roadways are required to be paved to create all-weather roadways, facilitate 
roadway drainage, and reduce dust. Pavement also produces a high-speed circulation system and 
facilitates relatively safe traffic movement. Roadway standards are included in the City’s Municipal 
Code, Title 16, Chapter 16.56. 

There is an additional right-of-way along Interstate 80, and State Route 174 that runs along parts of 
South Auburn Street within the City limits, all of which is maintained by the California Department of 
Transportation (Caltrans). Arterials and collectors are designated on the General Plan according to 
existing and projected needs. Developers are responsible for the development of roadways associated 
with the residential project. 

Sidewalks are for movement of pedestrian traffic. Where sidewalks are available, safety of pedestrian 
traffic is enhanced, particularly for school-age children, the elderly, and the physically impaired. 

Landscaping is often required depending on the development proposal and location. Such 
landscaping would include, but not be limited to, shrubbery, trees, grass, and decorative masonry 
walls. Landscaping contributes to a cooler and more aesthetic environment in the City by providing 
relief from developed and paved areas. All landscaping is installed by the developer and must be 
approved prior to occupancy of any building. Landscaping in areas that fall under the Hillside 
Development Guidelines require native or naturalized plants or other plant species that blend with 
the landscape, fire-retardant plant materials, and a permanent irrigation system, for purposes of 
establishing and maintaining required planting. 

Development of and connection to municipal water and sewer services are required as a condition of 
approving tract maps, unless location of public services is not available. For example, wells and/or 
private sewage disposal systems may be allowed depending on lot size, relative location to existing 
service systems, and proposed land use. Water service is necessary for a constant supply of potable 
water. Sewer services are necessary for the sanitary disposal of wastewater. These off-site 
requirements allow for the development of much higher residential densities. 

Infrastructure Availability  

Most parcels within the City of Colfax have good infrastructure availability. Wastewater treatment 
capacity is discussed herein, as is the availability of water. Other utilities, including gas, electricity, and 
cable television, are available to areas within the City through the extension of laterals and feeder 
connections. 

In accordance with the requirements of SB 1087 (Florez), the City will establish written procedures to 
give priority in the sewer connection pool to affordable housing development projects 
(Implementation Measure 6.16) and will coordinate with Placer County Water District and other service 
providers to make sewer and water connections available to affordable housing projects on a priority 
basis. Further, this Housing Element will be forwarded to the wastewater treatment manager, upon 
adoption by the City. 

Item 5A

130



JULY 2021 

Page 6-96 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Wastewater 

Wastewater Treatment Plant 

The City of Colfax (City) owns and operates a Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) which treats 
wastewater collected from the City. Wastewater infrastructure is available to all parcels within the City 
of Colfax. Due to high levels of inflow and infiltration into the collection system, wet season in-flow 
rates to the WWTP can exceed the design capacity. The WWTP incorporates three ponds to assist in 
balancing flows into, within, and out of the WWTP. Pond 3 is a storage pond providing approximately 
60 million gallons (MG) of additional storage capacity. This is generally necessary in the wet season to 
handle excess infiltration and inflow.  

According to the City’s 2014 Wastewater Treatment Plant Storage Capacity Evaluation, current dry 
weather flows are under 0.16 million gallons per day (MGD) and the City currently has 1,192.75 EDUs, 
resulting in approximately 0.000134 MGD/EDU. The future contribution from EDUs could be up to 
0.245 MGD, with 0.030 MGD infiltration and inflow during dry weather (to combine to the 0.275 MGD 
permit limitation.) Assuming the flows per EDU are equal in the future for both current and new 
development, the total capacity of the WWTP is 1,826 EDUs; therefore, the WWTP’s remaining 
available capacity for future development is approximately, 633 EDU.   

The City’s wastewater treatment ability is not a constraint to the development of housing planned 
during this Housing Element planning period. As sufficient capacity exists to support the development 
of an additional approximately 633 equivalent dwelling units (EDUs), including both commercial and 
residential), which far exceeds the City’s RHNA of 97 housing units.  

Collection System Capacity Study 

A SECAP was completed by the City in 2010. The study analyzed the dry-weather and wet-weather 
flow in the wastewater collection system. The report identified I&I during rain events as the 
overwhelming sources of demand on the collection system capacity. Through two I&I mitigation 
projects completed in 2011 and 2013, the City eliminated numerous sources of I&I. Continued 
evaluation of system flow will identify the impact that these projects had on reducing I&I. 

Dry-weather flows, which represent the demand on the collection system from its residential, 
commercial, and industrial users, was found to be insignificant relative to the wet-weather flows. The 
system capacity is sufficient to handle current and future usage based on 20-year growth assumptions. 

  

Item 5A

131



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-97 

6 

Housing 

Sewer Equivalent Dwelling Units and Usage Fees 

On January 1, 2009, the City implemented a new sewer usage fee structure. The fees have been 
increased annually by 2.5 percent. These fees are used to pay down debt from past wastewater facility 
improvement projects, fund ongoing operations and maintenance, and fund short-term asset 
replacements. 

The EDU demand on the system is approximately 1,193 EDUs. An EDU is equal to 200 gallons per day 
of wastewater discharge to the collection system. 

The City’s wastewater treatment ability is not a constraint to the development of housing planned 
during this Housing Element planning period. Sufficient capacity exists to support the development of 
an additional approximately 633 EDUs (including both commercial and residential), certainly sufficient 
to support the development of 97 housing units identified in the City’s RHNA. 

Placer County Water Agency 

The City of Colfax is served by the Placer County Water Agency. The Placer County Water Agency has 
indicated that there is sufficient water available to meet the needs of the Colfax RHNA through the 
term of the 2021-2029 Housing Element. 

Available Dry Utilities 

Dry utilities, including refuse collection, electricity, and telephone service, are available to all areas 
within the City. There is sufficient capacity to meet the current need and any future need. Service 
providers are as follows: 

» Electricity: Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) 
» Telephone: AT&T 
» Fiber Cable: Suddenlink  

6.4.2 Non-Governmental Constraints  

The ability to address the underserved needs of the citizens of the City of Colfax is challenging, 
especially since so many of the impediments to providing services are beyond the scope of municipal 
governments. The responsibility for identifying, responding to, and mitigating these needs rests with 
the variety of agencies providing services. Funding limitations exist at all levels. 

The private market influences the selling and rental prices of all types of housing. This includes existing 
and new dwelling units. While actions within the public sector play important parts in determining the 
cost of housing, the private sector affects the residential markets through such mechanisms as supply 
costs (e.g., land, construction, financing) and value of consumer preference. 

  

Item 5A

132



JULY 2021 

Page 6-98 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Availability of Financing 

The cost of borrowing money to finance the construction of housing or to purchase a house affects 
the amount of affordably priced housing in Colfax. Fluctuating interest rates can eliminate many 
potential homebuyers from the housing market or render a housing project infeasible that could have 
been successfully developed or marketed at lower interest rates. Over the last two years, interest rates 
have declined to 3 percent and began to increase back toward 5 percent before dropping again to 
nearly 3 percent in 2020. Table 49 illustrates interest rates as of June 2020. The table presents both 
the interest rate and the annual percentage rate (APR) for different types of home loans. 

TABLE 49 
INTEREST RATES 

Conforming Interest APR 
30-Year Fixed 3.125% 3.218% 
15-Year Fixed 2.5% 2.721% 
5-Year ARM 2.5% 2.867% 
Jumbo 
30-Year Fixed 3.375% 3.41% 
7-Year ARM 2.625% 2.824% 
Source: www.wellsfargo.com, June 2020. 

Housing prices in the City remain too high for persons of lower incomes, even with the lower interest 
rates. The cost of housing in Colfax has increased dramatically over the past few years, despite only a 
less than 10 percent increase in population since 2010. The constraint on homeownership in Colfax is 
not the availability of financing, but the high-cost housing, much of which is unaffordable to lower-
income households. Nor is the constraint on homeownership related to the availability of land. 

Cost of Land 

The cost of raw, developable land has a direct impact on the cost of a new home and is, therefore, a 
potential non-governmental constraint. The higher the raw land costs, the higher the price of a new 
home. Normally, developers will seek to obtain City approvals for the largest number of lots obtainable 
on a given parcel of raw land. This allows the developer to spread the costs for off-site improvements 
(e.g., streets, water lines, etc.) over the maximum number of lots. Currently, residentially zoned land 
ready for development is valued at approximately $45,000 per acre. 

As the availability of vacant residential land diminishes over time, the cost of vacant land will increase 
in the City of Colfax. However, with the amount of currently vacant residentially zoned land, it is 
anticipated that it may be several years before availability adversely affects land costs. 

  

Item 5A

133



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-99 

6 

Housing 

Cost of Construction 

The costs of labor and materials have a direct impact on the price of housing and are the main 
components of housing cost. Residential construction costs vary greatly depending upon the quality, 
size, and the materials being used. According to construction cost data provided by Craftsman Book 
Company at www.building-cost.net, a wood-framed single-story, four-cornered home in Colfax is 
estimated to cost approximately $269,627, excluding the cost of buying land.1 This estimate is based 
on a 2,000-square-foot house of good quality construction, including a two-car garage and forced-
air heating, resulting in construction costs of approximately $134.81 per square foot. 

Environmental Constraints 

Given the City’s location at the wildland-urban interface (WUI), the threat of wildfires presents a 
constraint on housing development, particularly affordable housing, due to the cost of fire insurance 
rates. As wildfires present a larger and more frequent issue in California, homeowners in WUIs across 
the state face increasing fire insurance rates. While insurance premiums can vary significantly based 
on several factors, including homes size, building material, and location, the Insurance Information 
Institute reports that annual premiums have spiked by as much as 190 percent in some areas in recent 
years. The lack of affordable insurance rates can present a barrier affordable housing, especially for 
homeowners. 

6.4.3 Opportunities for Energy Conservation  

Two basic and interrelated approaches to creating energy conservation opportunities in residences 
are conservation and development. 

Conservation 

Conservation can be accomplished by reducing the use of energy-consuming items, or by physically 
modifying existing structures and land uses. The California Energy Commission first adopted energy 
conservation standards for new construction in 1978. These standards, contained in Title 24 of the 
California Administrative Code, contain specifications relating to insulation, glazing, heating and 
cooling systems, water heaters, swimming pool heaters, and several other items. Specific design 
provisions differ throughout the State depending upon local temperature conditions. Building code 
standards for heating and cooling requirements, for things like insulation, are stringently maintained 
in Colfax. 

The California Energy Commission revised the standards for new residential buildings in 1981. These 
“second generation” standards were then delayed until 1983 when AB 163 was passed, which provided 
options for complying with the standards. 

Although the energy regulations establish a uniform standard of energy efficiency, they do not ensure 
that all available conservation features are incorporated into building design. Additional measures 

 
1. Craftsman Book Company, 2020, Construction cost data. www.building-cost.net. Accessed October 2020.  

Item 5A

134



JULY 2021 

Page 6-100 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

may further reduce heating, cooling, and lighting loads, and overall energy consumption. While it is 
not suggested that all possible conservation features be included in every development, there are 
often a number of economically feasible measures that may result in savings in excess of the minimum 
required by Title 24. 

Development 

Approximately 55.1 percent of the City’s housing stock has been built since 1980 and most of these 
units benefit from Title 24 and other energy conservation measures. Some conservation opportunities 
will come from remodeling existing residences. Major opportunities for residential energy 
conservation include insulation and weatherproofing, landscaping, and maximizing orientation and 
lowering appliance consumption. With the energy crisis of 2001, and the surge in energy prices 
beginning in 2006/2007, many new residential structures are incorporating energy conservation 
equipment and design, as well as technological advances (such as automatic timers to control air 
conditioning, lighting, etc.) to help reduce energy dependence. 

PG&E provides gas and electric service to Colfax residents. This company offers a variety of energy 
conservation programs and information services that are available to residents. In addition, Domestic 
Water is furnished to the area by the Placer County Water Agency. The Placer County Water Agency 
has provided water conservation devices to help retrofit older homes and facilities. 

The City has adopted and enforces the 2019 edition of the CBC, Title 24 of the CCR regarding energy 
conservation. 

  

Item 5A

135



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-101 

6 

Housing 

6.5 Review of Previous Housing Element 
This component of the Housing Element examines goals, policies, implementation measures 
(programs), included in the 2013–2021 Housing Element to determine their effectiveness. The 
following is a summary of the City’s progress in meeting priorities identified in the 2013–2021 Housing 
Element: 

While the City continuously promotes housing for special needs groups by posting information on 
the City’s website, no developers were interested in developing this type of housing. However, the 
Section 8 contract for Canyon View Senior Apartments was renewed in 2020, and therefore this 
continues to provide housing for low-income households. The City also continues to monitor the 
contract to ensure it is maintained. 

Item 5A

136



JULY 2021 

Page 6-102 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Program Implementation Status Action 
Program (1): The City, upon request, will assist 
interested affordable housing developers to 
pursue available funding sources for affordable 
housing, including applications for HOME and 
CDBG funds, Low Income Housing Tax Credits 
and tax-exempt bonds for the construction or 
rehabilitation of lower income housing, including 
extremely low-income renter occupied housing. 
The City will market its rehabilitation programs by 
providing an information packet regarding the 
program at City Hall and on the City’s website. 
This information will be available by April 1, 2014. 

Responsibility: Planning 
Director/City Manager 
Time Frame: Ongoing 2013-
2021; April 1, 2014 for website 
and brochures on the 
rehabilitation programs. 
Financing: California State 
Department of Housing and 
Community Development 
(HCD); California Tax Credit 
Allocation Committee (CTCAC); 
California Debt Limit Allocation 
Committee (CDLAC); CalHFA 

To date, this program has 
been developer driven. 
Developers have not 
requested assistance to 
pursue available funding. 
The City will continue to 
offer this service, upon 
request, to interested 
developers. 

Combine 
programs 1, 2, 
5, and 6. 

Program (2): Every 4 years, the City will update its 
list of non-profit developers who would be 
interested in developing affordable housing in the 
City. Upon request, the City will send these 
providers a development packet including 
multifamily vacant land inventory, services, and 
housing incentives. 

Responsibility: Planning Director  
Time Frame: March 15, 2017 
Financing: Department budget 

The City has not received 
any requests or interest in 
developing affordable 
housing in the City in over 5 
years; therefore, the City has 
not updated the list of 
interested non-profit 
developers in that time. 

Combine 
programs 1, 2, 
5, and 6. 

Program (3): Continue to offer a streamlined 
application package to be given to each 
developer containing: an explanation of the 
planning application permit process and timing; 
an application form where all requested actions 
for the project in regards to both the planning 
and engineering departments can be checked; an 
environmental evaluation form; a complete 

Responsibility: Planning /Building 
Official 
Time Frame: Ongoing 2013-2021 
Financing: Department budget 

The City reviews all 
applications for discretionary 
approval against a checklist 
of requirements that is 
tailored to each project to 
ensure streamlined 
processing and avoid extra 
submittal material that 

Modified. 

Item 5A

137



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-103 

6 

Housing 

Program Implementation Status Action 
checklist for the application; a copy of the fee 
schedule, where the applicant can check which 
Planning, Engineering, and Building fees they are 
responsible for; and a list of incentives. 

would result in a longer 
review process. 

Program (4): Continue to promote the Placer 
County First-Time Home Buyers Program, which 
is available to all Placer County residents, by 
maintaining brochures at City Hall and on the 
City’s website. 

Responsibility: Planning 
Director/City Manager 
Time Frame: Ongoing 2013-2021 
Financing: City General Fund 

The City provides a brochure 
on the program that is 
available to all residents at 
City Hall and the local 
library. The City will make 
this information available to 
residents on the City’s 
website. 

Continue.  

Program (5): Continue to offer incentives that can 
be used to encourage the development of 
housing opportunities for specialized housing 
needs. Incentives will include reduced site 
development standards, reduced permit fees, and 
accelerated application and plan processing. The 
City will continue to support emergency shelter 
programs as proposed by neighboring 
jurisdictions. 

Responsibility: Planning / 
Building  
Time Frame: Ongoing 2013-2021  
Financing: City General Fund 

The City offers incentives for 
housing for persons with 
special needs, including 
expedited processing and 
possible fee reductions with 
approval by City Council. 
The City also supports 
applications to agencies 
including CDBG and HCD to 
provide specialized housing. 

Combine 
programs 1, 2, 
5, and 6. 

Program (6): The City will provide residents who 
have questions regarding affordable housing 
options with contact information for the Placer 
County Health and Human Services Department, 
including links on the City’s web site. 

Responsibility: City Manager 
Time Frame: Ongoing 2013-2021 
Financing: Administrative cost 
only 

On the City’s website, they 
provide a link to the 
County’s website for 
residents interested with 
questions about affordable 
housing options. The City 
continues to work with 

Combine 
programs 1, 2, 
5, and 6. 

Item 5A

138



JULY 2021 

Page 6-104 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Program Implementation Status Action 
Placer County Health and 
Human Services Department 
in providing current 
information on affordable 
housing options in the City 
and throughout the County. 

Program (7): Continue to allow developers to 
"piggyback" or file concurrent applications (e.g., 
rezones, tentative tract maps, conditional use 
permits, variance requests, etc.) if multiple 
approvals are required, and if consistent with 
applicable processing requirements. 

Responsibility: Planning / 
Building  
Time Frame: Ongoing 2013-2021  
Financing: City General Fund 

The City continues to allow 
concurrent applications for 
new development projects 
that require more than one 
discretionary permit. 

Combine 
programs 7, 8, 
9, and 10. 

Program (8): Continue to promote a coordinated 
City review process among affected City 
departments to reduce delays and processing 
time. 

Responsibility: Planning / 
Building  
Time Frame: Ongoing 2013-2021  
Financing: City General Fund 

The City’s development 
review committee reviews 
projects with new housing or 
economic development 
potential early in their 
submittal and review 
process. The committee 
identifies any potential issues 
or concerns, and designs 
solutions that help reduce 
delays and keep the project 
moving through approval 
and permitting. 

Combine 
programs 7, 8, 
9, and 10. 

Program (9): Continue the City’s policy of 
stressing the importance of “flexibility” in review 
and processing of permit and other application 
processing. 

Responsibility: Planning / 
Building  
Time Frame: Ongoing 2013-2021  

The City fast-tracks projects 
with new housing or 
economic development 
potential through the 

Combine 
programs 7, 8, 
9, and 10. 

Item 5A

139



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-105 

6 

Housing 

Program Implementation Status Action 
Financing: City General Fund entitlement review process. 

Where feasible, projects are 
approved at the staff level 
through the administrative 
permit process. 

Program (10): Continue to monitor the average 
process times for discretionary development 
permits and Design Review process to ensure 
they do not constrain residential development 
including multifamily and housing affordable to 
low- and moderate-income households. 

Responsibility: Planning / 
Building  
Time Frame: Ongoing 2013-2021  
Financing: City General Fund 

The City fast-tracks projects 
with new housing or 
economic development 
potential through the 
entitlement review process 
to ensure that residential 
development is not 
constrained by processing 
times. Where feasible, 
projects are approved at the 
staff level through the 
administrative permit 
process. 

Combine 
programs 7, 8, 
9, and 10. 

Program (11): Continue to review current Planning 
Fees on an as-needed basis, and where 
appropriate make changes to reflect the 
affordability of multifamily development. 

Responsibility: Planning / 
Building  
Time Frame: Ongoing 2013-2021  
Financing: City General Fund 

The City established an ad 
hoc committee to review for 
potential fee savings on a 
project-by-project basis, as 
warranted and fees are 
reviewed against project 
viability to ensure that they 
reflect the affordability of 
multifamily development. 

Delete.  

Item 5A

140



JULY 2021 

Page 6-106 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Program Implementation Status Action 
Program (12): Monitor the inventory of vacant 
land every four years to ensure an adequate 
amount of land zoned for both single family and 
multifamily development is available. 

Responsibility: Planning / 
Building 
Time Frame: March 2017 
Financing: City General Fund 

A vacant land inventory was 
completed in the spring of 
2019 and is available by 
request through the City’s 
Planning Department.  

Combine with 
13. 

Program (13): Annually review the housing 
element for consistency with the general plan as 
part of its Annual Housing Element Progress 
Report process. File the Annual Housing Element 
Progress Report with HCD. 

Responsibility: Planning / 
Building 
 Time Frame: To submit yearly 
on April 1  
Financing: City General Fund 

The City annually reviews the 
housing element for 
consistency with the general 
plan and files progress 
reports with HCD; the last 
Annual Housing Element 
Progress Report was 
submitted to HCD in May 
2020. 

Combine with 
12. 

Program (14): Continue to monitor new 
developments for compliance with City design 
standards. Revise current Zoning Code to reflect 
the City’s evolving goals, as necessary. 

Responsibility: Planning / 
Building  
Time Frame: Ongoing 2013-2021  
Financing: City General Fund 

The City monitors new 
development projects 
through the conditions of 
approval and site inspections 
completed both during and 
after development. 

Delete.  

Program (15): The City will endeavor to make 
residents aware of the benefits of incorporating 
energy saving measures into residential 
construction. If City resources allow, brochures 
providing such information will be made available 
at City Hall. 

Responsibility: Planning / 
Building  
Time Frame: Ongoing 2013-2021  
Financing: City General Fund 

The City Building Inspector 
implements and enforces 
the Title 24 Building Energy 
Efficiency Standards. The 
City provides handouts 
providing information on 
energy saving measures that 
are available at City Hall. 

Combine with 
10. 

Item 5A

141



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-107 

6 

Housing 

Program Implementation Status Action 
Program (16): Continue to require that, at a 
minimum, all residential development complies 
with the energy conservation requirements of 
Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations. 

Responsibility: Planning / 
Building  
Time Frame: Ongoing 2013-2021  
Financing: City General Fund 

The City Building Inspection 
staff implements and 
enforces the Title 24 Building 
Energy Efficiency Standards. 

Delete. 

Program (17): Continue to coordinate housing 
rehabilitation programs with code enforcement 
efforts and combine both targeted and citywide 
participation. 

Responsibility: Planning / 
Building  
Time Frame: Ongoing 2013-2021  
Financing: City General Fund 

The City’s Code 
Enforcement and Building 
Inspection staff coordinate 
inspections and compliance 
efforts to coordinate 
housing rehabilitation with 
code enforcement. 

New Program 
6.18. 

Program (18): The City of Colfax will continue to 
monitor Canyon View Senior Apartments, which 
has an expiring Section 8 contract in 2017. 
Renewal of the Section 8 contract in 2017 will 
depend upon the availability of HUD financing 
and the current owner’s decision to renew. With 
the assistance of the California Housing 
Partnership, the City will annually monitor the 
status of the Section 8 renewal. 

Responsibility: Planning / 
Building  
Time Frame: Annually 2015-2021  
Financing: City General Fund 

The Section 8 contract for 
Canyon View Senior 
Apartments was renewed, 
and the City continue to 
monitor the contract to 
ensure it is maintained. 

Modify. 

Program (19): The City will continue to maintain 
information on fair housing law from the 
California Department of Fair Employment & 
Housing and have copies of information available 
for the public at City Hall. 

Responsibility: Planning / 
Building  
Time Frame: Ongoing 2013-2021  
Financing: City General Fund 

The City has made 
brochures that provide 
information regarding fair 
housing laws free to the 
public available at City Hall 

Combine 
programs 19 
and 20.  

Item 5A

142



JULY 2021 

Page 6-108 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Program Implementation Status Action 
Program (20): Continue to refer all housing 
discrimination referrals to the Planning Director 
who will work with the complainant and refer 
complaints to the State Fair Employment and 
Housing Commission. 

Responsibility: Planning 
Time Frame: Ongoing 2013-2021 
Financing: Administrative 

The City has made 
brochures that provide 
information regarding fair 
housing laws free to the 
public available at City Hall. 
To date, no housing 
discrimination cases have 
been referred to the 
Planning Directory. The 
State Fair Employment and 
Housing Commission reports 
8 fair housing complaints 
were referred from Placer 
County but does not report 
at the city-level. 

Combine 
programs 19 
and 20. 

Item 5A

143



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-109 

6 

Housing 

6.6 Housing Goals, Policies, and Implementation Measures 
GOAL 6.1  Provide housing opportunities and accessibility for all community residents 

Policy 6.1.1:  Seek assistance under federal, state, and other programs for eligible activities 
within the City that address affordable housing needs. 

Policy 6.1.2:  Provide home ownership opportunities whenever possible. 

Policy 6.1.3:  Encourage the development of housing and programs to assist special needs 
groups, including homeless; seniors; female-headed households; large 
households; farmworkers; low-income households, including extremely low-
income households; persons with disabilities, including developmental 
disabilities; and persons and households in need of emergency shelter. 

Implementation Measures 
6.1:  Support Affordable Housing Development. The City shall work with housing 

developers to expand opportunities for affordable lower-income housing and special 
needs groups including seniors, persons with disabilities, persons with developmental 
disabilities, extremely low-income households, female headed households, 
farmworkers, and homeless persons, by creating partnerships, providing incentives, 
and pursuing funding opportunities. Specifically, the City shall: 

 Provide technical assistance with site identification, site acquisition, and permit 
processing procedures; 

 Reach out annually to for-profit and nonprofit housing developers, local and 
regional funding agencies, and other organizations to review and promote 
available housing programs; 

 Meet annually with developers to identify barriers to construction of housing for 
special needs groups including senior housing and units with two or more 
bedrooms for large families; provide incentives as needed to reduce construction 
costs including fee waivers or deferrals or reduced parking requirements. 

 Promote the use of the density bonus ordinance, application processing fee 
waivers, impact fee waivers, and fee deferrals to encourage affordable housing 
with City Council approval;  

 Partner with nonprofit and for-profit affordable housing developers to support 
their financing applications for State and federal grant programs, tax-exempt 
bonds, and other programs that become available;  

 Pursue federal, State, and private funding for low- and moderate-income housing 
by applying for State and federal monies for direct support of lower-income 

Item 5A

144



JULY 2021 

Page 6-110 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

housing construction and rehabilitation, specifically for development of housing 
affordable to extremely low-income households.  

Responsibility:  Planning/Building  

Time Frame:  Annually reach out to housing developers, provide support as requested.  

Funding:  General Fund, HOME funds, CDBG funds, Technical Assistance Grants 

Quantified Objective:  2 extremely low-income; 2 very low-income; 2 low-income units – of these, 
2 lower-income in areas of high opportunity and 2 in areas of concentrated lower-
income households 

6.2:  Streamlined Approval (SB 35). The City will establish a written policy or procedure 
and other guidance as appropriate to specify a streamlining approval process and 
standards for eligible projects, as set forth under Government Code Section 65913.4.  

Responsibility:  Planning/Building  

Time Frame:  Annually review, develop a streamlining approval process by December 2021 

Financing:   Permit fees, General Fund, SB 2 Funding 

Quantified Objective:  3 low-income units 

6.3:  First-Time Homebuyer Program. Continue to promote the Placer County First-Time 
Homebuyers Program, which is available to all Placer County residents, by 
maintaining brochures at City Hall and on the City’s website to improve housing 
mobility for young families and low-income households. The City will also coordinate 
with the Placer County Housing Authority to broaden the City’s marketing efforts of 
this program. 

Responsibility:  Planning Director/City Manager 

Time Frame:  Ongoing, refer interested residents and provide information regarding the program, 
as requested. Coordinate with the Placer County Housing Authority at least twice a 
year.  

Financing:  City General Fund 

Quantified Objective:  2 low-income households 

  

Item 5A

145



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-111 

6 

Housing 
6.4:  Developmental Disability Services. Work with the Alta California Regional Center to 

implement an outreach program that informs families within the City about housing 
and services available for persons with developmental disabilities. The program could 
include the development of an informational brochure, including information on 
services on the City’s website, and/or providing housing-related training for 
individuals/families through workshops. 

Responsibility:  Planning/Building 

Time Frame:  Development of an outreach program within one year of adopting the Housing 
Element 

Financing:   City General Fund 

GOAL 6.2  Remove constraints that discourage the production of affordable housing 

Policy 6.2.1:  Provide residents with reasonably priced housing opportunities within the 
financial capacity of all members of the community. 

Policy 6.2.2:  Develop City policies that help to lower the cost and time to build affordable 
housing. 

Policy 6.2.3: Continue to evaluate the impact on housing affordability of all regulations, 
fee changes, policies, and development projects. 

Implementation Measures 

6.5:  Permit Streamlining and Priority Processing. Continue to monitor and improve, as 
needed, the design review and processing times to ensure they do not constrain the 
development of housing. To further promote this, the City will continue to allow 
developers to file concurrent applications (e.g., rezones, tentative tract maps, 
conditional use permits, variance requests, etc.). If multiple approvals are required, 
and if consistent with applicable processing requirements, the City will coordinate 
review processes between departments to reduce processing times and minimize 
delay.  

Responsibility:   Planning/Building 

Time Frame:  Review and evaluate design review process twice during the planning 
period. Implement as affordable projects are processed through the 
Planning Department 

Financing:    City General Fund 

Quantified Objective:  5 moderate- income units, 15 market rate units   

Item 5A

146



JULY 2021 

Page 6-112 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

6.6:  Incentives for the Development of Affordable Housing. Allow flexibility in 
development standards to facilitate affordable housing development by offering fast-
track/priority processing, density bonuses, flexibility in development standards, and 
fee subsidies (when feasible) to developers proposing new housing, mixed-use, or 
infill projects affordable to extremely low-income households, low-income 
households, farmworkers, seniors, and persons with disabilities, persons with 
developmental disabilities, and female headed households.  

Responsibility:  Planning 

Time Frame:  Ongoing, as projects are processed through the Planning Department 

Financing:   City General Fund 

Quantified Objective:  3 low-income units – of these, at least 1 in an area of high opportunity, 1 in 
an area of concentrated lower-income households 

6.7:  Density Bonus. Amend the Zoning Ordinance to comply with State density bonus law 
(Government Code Section 65915, as revised). Promote the density bonus through 
informational brochures that will be displayed at the City’s Planning Department. 

Responsibility:  Planning 

Time Frame:  Amend the Zoning Ordinance within one year of adopting the Housing Element, 
create brochures by May 2023. 

Financing:   City General Fund 

6.8:  Low-Barrier Navigation Centers. Amend the Zoning Ordinance and make revisions, if 
necessary, to allow low-barrier navigation centers for the homeless, per Government 
Code Section 65662. 

Responsibility:  Planning/Building 

Time Frame:  Amend the Zoning Ordinance within one year of adopting the Housing Element 

Financing:   City General Fund 

6.9:  Supportive Housing. Amend the Zoning Ordinance to allow for the approval of 100 
percent affordable developments that include a percentage of supportive housing 
units, either 25 percent or 12 units, whichever is greater, to be allowed without a 
conditional use permit or other discretionary review in all zoning districts where 
multifamily and mixed-use development is permitted, consistent with Government 
Code Section 65651. 

Responsibility: Planning/Building 

Item 5A

147



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-113 

6 

Housing 
Time Frame:  Amend the Zoning Ordinance within one year of adopting the Housing Element 

Financing:   City General Fund 

6.10:  Employee Housing. Amend the Zoning Ordinance to treat employee/farmworker 
housing that serves six or fewer persons as a single-family structure and permit it in 
the same manner as other single-family structures of the same type within the same 
zone across all zones that allow single-family residential uses. Treat 
employee/farmworker housing consisting of no more than 12 units or 36 beds as an 
agricultural use and permit it in the same manner as other agricultural uses in the 
same zone, in compliance with the California Employee Housing Act (Health and 
Safety Code Sections 17021.5 and 17021.6). 

Responsibility: Planning/Building 

Time Frame:  Amend the Zoning Ordinance within one year of adopting the Housing Element 

Financing:   City General Fund 

6.11:  Housing for Extremely Low-Income Households. Amend the Zoning Ordinance to 
define and allow single-room occupancy units (SRO) in the R-M zone with a 
conditional use permit. In addition, to help meet the needs of extremely low-income 
households, the City will prioritize funding and/or offer financial incentives or 
regulatory concessions to encourage the development of housing types affordable to 
extremely low-income households, such as SROs, multifamily units, and supportive 
housing, to reduce their displacement risk.   

Responsibility: Planning/Building 

Time Frame:  Ongoing as projects are processed through the Planning Department. Amend the 
Zoning Ordinance within one year from adoption. 

Financing:   City General Fund 

Quantified Objective: 1 extremely low-income households  

6.12:  Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs). ADUs are a mechanism through which smaller, 
more affordable housing units can be added to the housing stock to reduce 
displacement risk for low-income households, seniors, and other special needs 
groups. The City will amend the Zoning Ordinance to comply with Government Code 
Section 65852.2, concerning ADUs.  The City shall also incentivize and encourage 
ADUs through public education, development fee reductions and/or waivers, and 
construction resource tools with an emphasis on promoting ADU construction in 
areas of high opportunity to encourage housing mobility options. 

Item 5A

148



JULY 2021 

Page 6-114 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Responsibility:  Planning/Building 

Time Frame:  Ongoing as projects are processed through the Planning Department. Amend the 
Zoning Ordinance within one year from adoption. 

Financing:   City General Fund 

Quantified Objective:  2 low-income units, 2 moderate- income units – 1 each in an area of high 
opportunity 

6.13:  Residential Care Facilities. Amend the Zoning Ordinance to establish a ministerial 
permit process for residential care facilities for seven or more persons and ensure 
these facilities are only subject to those restrictions that apply to other residential 
uses of the same type in the same zone. The City will also remove the 12- person 
maximum capacity requirement and ensure all requirements are consistent with State 
Law. Residential care facilities are still subject to state licensing requirements.  

Responsibility: Planning/Building 

Time Frame: Amend the Zoning Ordinance within one year of adopting the Housing Element 

Financing:  City General Fund 

6.14:  Parking Standards. The City will review and revise as needed, current requirements 
for parking requirements for emergency shelters to ensure that parking standards are 
sufficient to accommodate all staff, provided standards do not require more parking 
for emergency shelters than other residential or commercial uses. 

Responsibility: Planning/Building 

Time Frame: Evaluate and modify by 2023. 

Financing:  City General Fund 

GOAL 6.3  Provide and maintain an adequate supply of sites for the development of 
new affordable housing 

Policy 6.3.1: Provide information to for-profit and non-profit developers and other 
housing providers on available vacant land. Monitor and update the 
inventory of vacant land. 

Policy 6.3.2:  Allow housing developments with at least 20 percent affordable housing by-
right on lower-income housing sites that have been counted in previous 
Housing Element cycles, consistent with Government Code Sections 65580, 
65583, and 65583.  

Item 5A

149



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-115 

6 

Housing 
Implementation Measures 

6.15  Housing Inventory. Annually monitor the City’s housing sites inventory to ensure 
there is adequate land to meet the City’s Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA). 

Responsibility:  Planning/Building 

Time Frame:  Annually as part of the Housing Element Annual Progress Report, and as sites 
develop.  

Financing:   City General Fund 

6.16:  Wastewater Priority. The City will develop and adopt written policies and procedures 
that grant a priority for service hook-ups to developments that help meet the 
community’s share of the regional need for lower-income housing. Additionally, the 
City shall provide a copy of the adopted Housing Element to the Placer County Water 
Agency. 

Responsibility:  Planning/Building 

Time Frame:  Adopt a written policy and procedure by December 2022. 

Financing:   City General Fund 

6.17:  Zoning and General Plan Consistency. To ensure maximum General Plan Land Use 
densities are obtainable, the City will review and revise the land area per unit 
requirement to be 3,000 square feet in the RM-1 zone and 1,500 square feet in the 
RM-2 zone.  

Responsibility:  Planning/Building 

Time Frame:  Amend the Zoning Ordinance within one year of adoption of the Housing Element. 

Financing:   City General Fund 

GOAL 6.4  Preserve, rehabilitate, and enhance existing housing and neighborhoods 

Policy 6.4.1:  Protect existing stabilized residential neighborhoods from the encroachment 
of incompatible or potentially disruptive land uses and/or activities. 

Policy 6.4.2:  Code enforcement shall continue to work with property owners to preserve 
the existing housing stock and require the abatement of unsafe housing 
conditions while giving property owners adequate time to correct 
deficiencies.  

Item 5A

150



JULY 2021 

Page 6-116 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Implementation Measures 

6.18:  Housing Rehabilitation Program. The City will annually apply for rehabilitation funds 
to provide housing rehabilitation services and weatherization services to very low- 
and low-income households and facilitate place-based revitalization in areas of 
targeted rehabilitation need. To improve effectiveness of this program, the City will 
advertise rehabilitation and weatherization programs on the City’s website and 
provide brochures available at City Hall. 

Responsibility:  Planning/Building 

Time Frame:  Apply for CDBG and HOME funds through the State’s annual funding cycle as 
Notices of Funding Availability are released, public information on the program on the 
City’s website within 1 month of securing funding for the program. 

Financing:   CDBG and HOME funding 

Quantified Objective:  5 very low- income households, 5 low-income households – of these, 3 lower-
income households in an area of concentrated need to facilitate place-based 
revitalization 

6.19:  Code Enforcement. The City will continue proactive code enforcement of health and 
safety matters to ensure compliance with health and safety code violations. The City 
will also develop an enforcement program to prevent displacement or mitigate 
through assistance with relocation costs for lower-income households as funding is 
available. 

Responsibility:    Planning/Building 

Time Frame: Ongoing code enforcement efforts as health and safety code violations are 
identified. Apply for funding annually as NOFAs are released.    

Financing: City General Fund 

6.20:  Monitor At-Risk Units. Maintain and update the City’s affordable housing database 
as a mechanism to monitor and identify units at risk of losing their affordability 
subsidies or requirements. For complexes at risk of converting to market rate, the City 
may: 

 Contact property owners of units at risk of converting to market-rate housing 
within one year of affordability expiration to discuss the City’s desire to preserve 
complexes as affordable housing.  

 Coordinate with owners of expiring subsidies to ensure the required notices to 
tenants are sent out at 3 years, 12 months, and 6 months.  

 Reach out to agencies interested in purchasing and/or managing at-risk units. 

Item 5A

151



JULY 2021 
 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-117 

6 

Housing 
 Work with tenants to provide education regarding tenant rights and conversion 

procedures pursuant to California law.  

Responsibility:  Planning/Building 

Time Frame:  Annually monitor units at risk of converting. Coordinate noticing as required per 
State Law. 

Financing:   City General Fund 

GOAL 6.5  Promote and affirmatively further fair housing opportunities throughout 
the community for all persons regardless of age, race, religion, color, 
ancestry, national origin, sex, marital status, disability, familial status, or 
sexual orientation. 

Policy 6.5.1:  Promote housing opportunities for all persons regardless of race, religion, 
color, ancestry, national origin, sex, marital status, disability, family status, 
income, sexual orientation, or other barriers that prevent choice in housing. 

Policy 6.5.2:  Enforce the policies of the State Fair Employment and Housing Commission 

Implementation Measures 

6.21:  Develop a Plan to Affirmatively Further Fair Housing (AFFH). The AFFH Plan shall take 
actions to address significant disparities in housing needs and in access to 
opportunity for all persons regardless of race, religion, sex, marital status, ancestry, 
national origin, color, familial status, or disability, and other characteristics protected 
by the California Fair Employment and Housing Act (Part 2.8, commencing with 
Section 12900, of Division 3 of Title 2), Section 65008, and any other State and federal 
fair housing and planning law. 

Specific actions will include: 

 Implement Measures 6.3, 6.17, and 6.18 to affirmatively further fair housing 
including targeting community revitalization through place-based programs, 
enhancing mobility between neighborhoods, and developing strategies to 
reduce displacement risk for special needs groups and lower income households. 
Focus particularly in areas of concentrated overpayment (Measures 6.1, 6.4, and 
6.11) and facilitate affordable housing in high opportunity areas (Measures 6.6, 
6.11, and 6.12) 

 Maintain information on fair housing law from the California Department of Fair 
Employment & Housing and have copies of information available for the public 
at City Hall. Annually work with Legal Service of Northern California to provide 

Item 5A

152



JULY 2021 

Page 6-118 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

at least two trainings during the planning period with landlords and tenants on 
state and federal fair housing laws.  

 As housing discrimination inquiries are received, refer cases to the Planning
Director who will work with the complainant and refer complaints to the State
Department of Fair Employment and Housing, HUD’s Office of Fair Housing and
Equal Opportunity, and Legal Services of Northern California.

 Work with Legal Services of Northern California on an annual basis to track fair
housing complaints, identify patterns, and to enforce fair housing laws.

 Provide biannual training to landlords and property owners on avoiding
discriminatory practices based on income or other protected classes and their
requirement to grant reasonable accommodation requests.

 Maintain information on organizations and programs that are available to
landowners to assist them in meeting defensible space goals and taking other
steps that may decrease fire insurance rates to reduce disaster displacement risk.
These programs may include the National Fire Protection Association's Firewise
USA program, CalFire's Landowners Assistance and wildfire preparedness
informational tools, and Placer County's Chipper Program. Provide links to these
resources on the City's website and update as programs change.

 Annually review the results of Placer County Transportation Planning Agency’s
annual assessment of unmet transit need and, if needed in Colfax, work with
transit agencies to expand routes and frequency.

 Beginning in May 2022 and biannually thereafter, hold a community workshop
to facilitate discussions with the community on housing and homelessness
issues; brainstorm solutions; raise community awareness of the critical housing
needs of local residents; and educate the public on the myths and realities of
multifamily housing, affordable housing, and encourage community members
to apply for committee and commission positions.

 By July 2022, develop a targeted program to connect lower-income residents
with affordable homeownership and rental options to improve economic and
housing mobility to higher opportunity areas within the City and implement
incentive programs to encourage construction of affordable housing. Provide
assistance locating housing opportunities to at least 2 households annually after
the program has been developed.

 Meet with multifamily developers by May 2022, and biannually thereafter, to
identify potential sites for higher density housing in areas near resources and
services and address barriers to development.

 As part of the APR process in year 2025, evaluate the City’s fair housing
objectives and adjust as appropriate.

Item 5A

153



JULY 2021 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page 6-119 

6 

Housing 
Responsibility:  Planning 

Time Frame:  Create Plan by June 2022 and implement strategies as outlined in the program. 

Financing:   City General Fund 

Quantified Objective: 10 low-income households 

6.22:  Environmental Justice. Each time a housing project is proposed that may have an 
effect on a particular group or neighborhood, the City will make efforts to distribute 
information on the project to ensure that the group or neighborhood is made aware 
of the project and the process and has the opportunity to respond. 

Responsibility:  Planning  

Time Frame:  As projects are proposed. 

Financing:  Project fees, City General Fund 

GOAL 6.6  Encourage energy efficiency and conservation into residential development

Policy 6.6.1:  Promote energy conservation activities. 

Implementation Measures 

6.23:  Energy Conservation. Attempt to make residents aware of the benefits of 
incorporating energy-saving measures into residential construction. Information will 
be made available on the City’s website. 

Responsibility:  Planning/Building 

Time Frame:  Ongoing, as programs are available. 

Financing:   City General Fund 

Item 5A

154



JULY 2021 

Page 6-120 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Quantified Objectives 

Table 50 summarizes the City’s quantified objectives for the 2021–2029 planning period. These 
objectives represent a reasonable expectation of the maximum number of new housing units that 
could potentially be constructed and households that could potentially be assisted by the City’s 
housing implementation measures. 

TABLE 50 
2021–2029 QUANTIFIED OBJECTIVES 

 Extremely 
Low 

Very  
Low Low Moderate Above 

Moderate 
RHNA 9 8 11 21 48 
New Construction     10 7 15 
Rehabilitation   5 5     
Conservation/Preservation3 3 2 4     
Total  3 7 19 7 15 

Source: City of Colfax, November 2020 
1 Objectives based off measures 6.2, 6.3, 6.5, 6.6, 6.12, 6.18 
2 Objectives based off measure 6.15 
3 Objectives based off measures 6.1, 6.11, 6.18 
 
 

Item 5A

155



 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page A-1 

6 

Housing 

Appendix A – Public Outreach 
The responses from each stakeholder that participated in one-on-one consultations are as follows. All 
feedback gathered during the drafting of the Housing Element, including fair housing data, helped to 
inform the 8-year action plan as well as strengthen the overall analysis in the document.  

Placer Community Foundation, August 4, 2020 

Thanks for reaching out to us regarding our thoughts on affordable housing and the upcoming 
housing element process.  We are concerned that the process for the housing element update is 
being rushed.  We need to know that the proper outreach is being conducted and that stakeholders 
are given ample time to review and analyze background reports so we can provide you with 
appropriate feedback. We need at least thirty days to review the background reports. 

Can you tell us when will the background reports for each jurisdiction be available as it is very difficult 
to respond to these questions without having this information? We also need to recognize that things 
are different today because of the pandemic and its potential impact on the current and future 
housing markets. Some opportunities have presented themselves, such as COVID related funding for 
housing the homeless thru acquisition of hotels. This creates an opportunity for a permanent housing 
asset beyond the pandemic and should be considered. How will these opportunities be addressed in 
the process?  

Once the opportunities for affordable housing are determined, the question remains, how do you get 
affordable housing built?  Site identification is one aspect, but we need more.  We need all jurisdictions 
to implement the construction of sites that have been identified. 

We would like to discuss the proposed housing policies before the public draft comes out. Oftentimes 
it seems that once the policies are in a printed public document they rarely change, and we want to 
be involved in early housing policy development. 

With all of this said, here is a first and by no means, complete response to your inquiry along with 
some thoughts and suggestions: 

1. Opportunities and Concerns: What the 3 top opportunities do you see for the future of 
housing in Colfax?  What are your 3 top concerns for the future of housing in Colfax? 
Inclusionary construction on-site and eliminate the in-lieu fee loopholes which have not 
worked to increase affordable housing.  Affordable units need to be integrated into the 
moderate housing new construction and not segregated. 

A local nonprofit housing development corporate needs to be created. A trust fund is not 
enough. 

Surplus government land should be considered for affordable housing before designating 
the land for other uses. The policy should reflect the intent of the Surplus Land Act. 

Item 5A

156



JULY 2021 

Page A-2 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Consider underutilized commercial sites  

Form-based codes – consider size of the structure 

Modify single family zoning for up to a four-plex where lots are large enough to 
accommodate four units. 

Encourage more by-right housing on transportation cores 

Use of overlay zoning – allows higher density  

ADU and Duplexes 

Environmental impact - higher cost housing causes longer commutes for lower wage jobs  

Lower wage jobs are not work remote jobs 

2. Housing Preferences: What types of housing types do your clients prefer?  Is there adequate
rental housing in the Colfax?  Are there opportunities for home ownership?  Is there accessible
rental units for seniors and persons with disabilities?
There is imbalance between housing needs for workers and the housing they are building
for above moderate households – many of which are moving from the bay area

Almost all housing is single family housing in the suburbs, we need higher density multi-
family housing

There are few opportunities for affordable home ownership for families with low income

Very few rental properties available – low vacancy rate in all jurisdictions

There is an insufficient number of units for people with seniors and disabilities

Younger generations in their 20-30s are being hit hard and won’t likely be home buyers

Placer County

We need affordable development for teachers, workforce, service workers, etc.

Some jurisdictions count houses that sell or rent at a rate affordable to households with low
or moderate income, but we need a formal program to show how the units are occupied by
low- and moderate-income earners.  We also need deed restrictions or covenants to keep
them affordable over time (30 years)

Increased traffic on 65 for folks who have to commute from Yuba county- you can ask
SACOG for this data

Not sure how this fits with this the housing element questions, however, it is important to
note that the lack of affordable housing is resulting in secondary environmental impacts as a
result of increased commutes.  The primary impacts are associated with traffic and air

Item 5A

157



JULY 2021 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page A-3 

6

Housing  

quality. In the past it seems affordable housing was considered a social impact and not 
subject to CEQA. This is no longer the case.  Somehow, we need to acknowledge that lack 
of affordable housing has an impact on the environment. 

3. Housing Barriers/Needs: What are the biggest barriers to finding affordable, decent housing
in each jurisdiction?  What are the unmet housing needs in each jurisdiction?
The biggest barrier is there is not enough affordable housing stock

Lower wage jobs are being created and only market rate housing is being developed.

Each jurisdiction should list the unmet housing needs in the background report so we can
analyze the findings.

We are confident there are unmet housing needs in every category except for above
moderate. This can be found in the annual reports by each jurisdiction

Local businesses need to be interviewed. What challenges are they experiencing?   What
were the hiring difficulties before the pandemic? Certainly, lack of affordable housing for
lower wage jobs will come up.

It would be helpful to see an analysis of policies from the past. Some should be revisited and
considered.

Clients say the waiting list for section 8 are incredibly long and only open for short periods
of time.  For example, some jurisdictions open the application period for only a week at a
time and then they have to use a lottery because so many people have applied.

It would be helpful if to see a report on the last time RHNA numbers were established
(2013?) and how many developments were approved (# of units and how they were
classified by income level of the purchaser) and then look at how many units were actually
built for the very low- and low-income earners.  We need a clearer picture of how housing
element policies have impacted growth in affordable units.

The jurisdictions need more stringent controls with accountability and consequences, or we
won’t make much progress toward meeting the housing needs at all income levels.

4. Housing Conditions: How would you characterize the physical condition of housing in each
jurisdiction?  What opportunities do you see to improve housing in the future?
Overall, we do not feel qualified to answer this question. We don’t have access to all of the
data on housing conditions – again this should be in the background report.  It might make
sense to look at census tracts that were identified as “harder to count” for the 2020 census.

Interviews should be conducted with Health and Human Services and Safety net
providers.  Good data can be found on the website:  placerdashboard.org

Item 5A

158



JULY 2021 

Page A-4 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Interviews should be conducted with managers of all of the deed restricted affordable 
housing projects in the jurisdictions to determine what specific needs they are meeting and 
how long the wait list is. 

5. Fair and Equitable Housing Choice: What factors limit or deny civil rights, fair housing choice
or equitable access to opportunity? What actions can be taken to transform racially and
ethnically concentrated areas of poverty into areas of opportunity (without displacement)?
What actions can be taken to make living patterns more integrated and balanced?
Affordable housing and fair housing are one and the same in our market

Lack of affordable housing is the number one limitation on fair housing, civil rights and
equitable access.

Lack of affordability creates segregation.

Your background report should identify where this segregation occurs

AB686 – mandates each jurisdiction look at impediments to fair housing. Some
considerations are:

 A program for furthering fair housing
 A needs analysis for barriers or constraints
 A land inventory to overcome impediments
 Need to have policies that help address fair housing

Government’s refusal to plan and regulate and instead it defers to a market driven situation 
which doesn’t address the needs of the community.    

There is growing concerned about displacement and loss of housing. We anticipate there is 
going to be a tsunami of eviction cases coming down- should consider rent stabilization, 
rent control and good cause eviction protections for renters 

In closing, once we see your background reports, we should be able to provide you with 
more feedback. We hope these early comments are helpful to you has you begin your work 
on this important project. 

Legal Services of Northern California, August 11, 2020 

My office is the only civil legal aid office for Placer County.  We assist low income and senior clients. 
Housing is the priority case type for my office.  Virtually all of our clients are persons who fall within a 
protected category protected by the federal and state fair housing laws.  These answers will apply to 
all of the government jurisdictions within Placer County, as well as the unincorporated county.  These 
answers are based on my personal experience, the cases that are presented to my office, and our 
collaboration with a number of county social service organizations. 

Item 5A

159



JULY 2021 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page A-5 

6

Housing  

In response to your specific questions. 

1. We keep records on all housing cases and track them by communities or jurisdictions.
However, we do not track cases by whether they present fair housing issues.

2. We do not track specifically the types of complaints or how many fair housing complaints we
receive from each jurisdiction or from residents of each jurisdiction.

3. I do not think that there is a difference between the types of cases that we and DFEH
handle.  I would describe the types of complaints that we handle as follows:
A. The number one complaint that we receive from our clients and community partners is

that there is an appalling lack of affordable housing everywhere in Placer County and
that the vast majority, if not totality, of the new housing being built is single family
homes for above- moderate income households, most of which is built in the suburbs.
These two factors impact our clients who fall within the protected categories of the fair
housing laws, create segregated communities, and are the greatest impediments to fair
housing in Placer County.  Until this crisis is addresses, there will be no significant
movement to address the fair housing issues in the county.

B. We receive a significant number of complaints from tenants who claim that they are
being discriminated against by their landlords for many different reasons.  These include
refusal to rent, discriminatory treatment, and termination of tenancies.

C. We see a significant amount of discrimination based upon the income status of the
clients.

D. Discrimination based upon racial composition of the household.
E. Discrimination based upon the source of income of the household.  This includes

discrimination against individuals receiving Housing Choice Vouchers (Section 8).
Landlords may refuse to accept voucher holders, or charge higher rents.  This issue has
been specifically identified by the Placer County Housing Authority.  Some landlords also
refuse to take third party checks.  Some landlords require triple the rent as deposits,
especially when they see that a social service agency is contributing.

F. Discrimination against persons with disabilities, especially in the area of refusal to afford
reasonable accommodations for disabilities.  Many clients complain that they are not
given accessible units, such as ground floor units, or the right to relocate to accessible
units.

G. Discrimination against youths, ages 18-21.  This is said to be the most difficult group to
find housing for.

H. We raise a substantial number of discrimination defenses in unlawful detainer cases.  The
most common is disability discrimination alleging that the landlord refuses to respond to
or grant a reasonable accommodation request.

Thank you for your consideration of these important issues.   Please contact me if you have further 
questions.  

Item 5A

160



JULY 2021 

Page A-6 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

Rural Community Assistance Corporation, August 18, 2020 
1. Opportunities and Concerns:  What the 3 top opportunities do you see for the future of 

housing in Colfax?  What are your 3 top concerns for the future of housing in Colfax? 

- Location of Colfax along a major corridor - not a remote rural area, in essence it’s 
almost a suburb of the Sacramento area. Proximity is a benefit. 

- Untapped market. It’s a marketplace that developers and people that are looking for 
opportunity to buy/live in housing - demand could be significant.  

Concerns: 
- Lack of developable land in the community - sites that are available have physical 

restrictions, topography. There are subdivisions within the city limits already. Little or 
no land zoned properly. Overall, sites. Older town - some of the sites would be 
pretty small. 

- Political support issues for affordable housing in the community. Colfax has a history 
of being fairly conservative. Takes time to overcome the barriers and opposition to 
affordable housing. 

- Transient nature of the community. Lots of business are based on people coming in 
and out of the community. Barrier or concern about the long term development of 
the community.  

2. Housing Preferences:  What types of housing types do your clients prefer?  Is there adequate 
rental housing in the Colfax?  Are there opportunities for home ownership?  Is there accessible 
rental units for seniors and persons with disabilities?   

General experience in the community - low income households in the community. In a typical 
community. Most residents would be on the side of homeownership as opposed to housing. 
Economies of scale - it’s hard to attract developers into town. Some pent-up demand for 
rental housing, but it trends towards single family rentals. Homeownership has barriers - but 
stronger demand and greater political support for it. Manufactured housing has opportunities. 
Single Family.  

3. Tourism:  What effects have you seen on housing because of the growing tourism 
industry/short term rentals?  From your perspective, what are some of the most positive 
impacts? From your perspective, what are some of the most negative impacts?  What do you 
see as the top 3 priorities for the Colfax in addressing negative impacts (if any)? 

Not Truckee or Lake Tahoe. Second homes probably exist because of the proximity. Not really 
going to find Airbnbs though. People who come through are just “passing through.” No really 
physical attractions nearby. There is Rollins Dam Lake, with some trails nearby but not a lot. 
Creates a lot of low-wage jobs. There is probably a demand for affordable housing below 50% 
AMI. 

4. Housing Barriers/Needs:  What are the biggest barriers to finding affordable, decent 
housing?  Are there specific unmet housing needs in the community? 

Item 5A

161



JULY 2021 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page A-7 

6

Housing  

Barriers - housing condition would probably be the main issue. The Housing stock is probably 
pretty old. Infrastructure/layout of the community, streets and curbs, gutters, and sidewalks. 
Political barrier - will to do things that are necessary to facilitate affordable housing.  

Doesn’t know if there are specific unmet needs in the community. Go back to the workforce 
housing - grocery workers, fast food workers, restaurants. Suspect that there is opportunity - 
the housing stock is not super expensive.  

5. Housing Conditions:  How do you feel about the physical condition of housing in
Colfax?  What opportunities do you see to improve housing in the future?

Doesn’t have enough information to base an opinion, but guess is that the housing stock is
old and housing rehab is going to be important for how the city wants to develop.

The community providing infrastructure will always be amenable to helping the community
develop more housing. Extend a sewer system and make it so that the site is economically
feasible for housing to be developed. Job creation - doesn’t know if there is an economic
development program, but workforce is probably fairly low income. If Housing authority for
placer county could provide housing for Section 8, that works. Strange county because
population is concentrated in western placer county. Huge benefit is project-based Section 8.

Incentivizing live/work spaces or trying to attract a developer that is going to build housing
specifically. If there are people that are going to work from home due to COVID and post
COVID. Very attractive place to live, a little bit cheaper, but able to be proximate.

Placer County Health and Human Services, August 27, 2020 
1. Opportunities and Concerns: What are the 3 top opportunities do you see for the future of

housing in each jurisdiction? What are your top 3 concerns for the future of housing in each
jurisdiction?

Opportunities -
 Kathie - provides services in the cities. Shawna asked - are there services in Colfax?

Kathie - full-service partnership in Colfax. Landlords/houses that participate in Colfax.
Homeless numbers for Colfax.

 Mobile home parks - one untapped area in regards to housing. Been in Colfax to look
at building to be converted to housing. Taking buildings and rehab them - Studios
and small bedrooms meets the need the most.

 Workforce housing having the proximity to the Dewitt Campus with a relatively short
commute time would be an opportunity. More affordable workforce housing
developed there. Very expensive even.

Item 5A

162



JULY 2021 

Page A-8 City of Colfax 2020 General Plan 

6 

Housing 

 Concerns -  
 Fire danger and insurance. Concerns with power shutoffs.  
  Access to services is a big problem and - internet - Colfax could be a better location 

to serve workforce.  
 In the homeless count within the City Limits of Colfax - only counted 3 individuals. 

Feeding opportunities are there. They draw people living in the woods.  
 You have landowners that have a lot of miner's cabins - becoming dilapidated and 

run-down. The housing stock is dissipating, so the individuals are selling and can get 
out. 

 3 people up there that have small cottages that have been a good resource to people 
looking for housing. 

 Difficulty in getting to Colfax physically. Geographic location is hard - the bus only 
runs once in the morning and once in the afternoon for people to access services. 
Could be an opportunity if more people are building there.  

2. Housing Preferences: What types of housing types do your clients prefer?  Is there adequate 
rental housing in each community?  Are there opportunities for home ownership?  Are there 
accessible rental units for seniors and persons with disabilities? 

 Housing authority customers need 2-BR housing. Guidelines dictate number of 
bedrooms that you have to size for a family. Preferred work program participants 
require 2-3 bedrooms. 

 Kathie - recipients of homeless and mental health services - 1 BR and studios are ideal. 
A place of their own and small unitarian to keep up. If developments are considered, 
having a community room is always a good thing. Having access to services on site is 
a great asset.  

 Not adequate rental   
 There are opportunities for home ownership in Colfax particularly for Workforce 

Housing. County-wide they are developing a regional plan for housing.  
 No rental units for seniors and persons with disabilities. - Older buildings causes ADA 

issues. 

3. Housing Barriers/Needs: What are the biggest barriers to finding affordable, decent housing in 
each jurisdiction?  What are the unmet housing needs in each jurisdiction? 

 Housing Stock.  
 Small affordable family-size housing that can be rented. Needs development with 

resource rooms. Ownership of rentals. Reasonable priced workforce housing. All 
needs to be located near center of town - infill type areas. 

  

Item 5A

163



JULY 2021 

City of Colfax 2020 General Plan Page A-9 

6

Housing  

4. Housing Conditions: How would you characterize the physical condition of housing in each
jurisdiction?  What opportunities do you see to improve housing in the future?

Older housing Stock
Opportunities - small projects that still fit within the community. Not one large 
building, but smaller complexes. 4-plexes with multi/lower levels that are successful, 
unless there was a subdivision designed for workforce housing. Understand that it’s 
hard for developers. Roads and treachery and lack of internet cause issues.  

5. Fair and Equitable Housing Choice: What factors limit or deny civil rights, fair housing choice or
equitable access to opportunity? What actions can be taken to transform racially and ethnically
concentrated areas of poverty into areas of opportunity (without displacement)? What actions
can be taken to make living patterns more integrated and balanced?

Housing equity issues - a lot of what was discussed above. Colfax is already a place that is very
remote, but Colfax is already lower-income than the rest of the county. Already have
disadvantaged communities are living in Colfax.

Specific to racial demographics - culture of Colfax is not welcoming to people of color.
Remote, rural, and conservative area of the county. The fact that are lower-income individuals
there will make it harder to live in Colfax. Bringing in workforce housing would bring more
people and more income there.

Only thing that would hope to see in all of the housing elements in Placer, including Colfax, is
policies related to conversion of older structures, adaptive re-use. Any policies allowing
infrastructure - water, sewer. City has more of a chance in competing for some of those
dollars.

Other Notes:
Look into Veterans advisory groups

Item 5A

164



Item 5A

165



Item 5A

166



101 Parkshore Drive, Suite 112
Folsom, California 95630

 t 916.245.7500

www.placeworks.com

Item 5A

167



City Council Hearing
July 28, 2021

Attachment 2

Item 5A

168



Housing Element Overview

One of eight mandated General Plan elements 
Includes:

• Assessment of existing and projected housing needs

• Analysis of land availability, resources and constraints 

• Evaluation of the effectiveness and appropriateness of the prior Housing 
Element

• Policies and actions to meet housing needs

Timeframe:
• Planning period: 2021-2029

• Required to adopt by May 15, 2021

• SB 375 provides 120 day grace period – September 10, 2021

Item 5A

169



2021 – 2029 Housing Element Update

Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA)

State

Housing and Community 
Development

Region

Sacramento Area Council of 
Governments (SACOG) --

153,512 units

Local Jurisdiction

Placer County – 31,181 units 

City of Colfax – 97 units

Item 5A

170



2021 – 2029 Housing Element Update

Meeting the RHNA

Income category RHNA (Units) Site Capacity Unit Surplus

Very Low Income 17
63 35

Low Income 11

Moderate Income 21 69 48

Above Moderate 
Income

48 137 89

TOTAL 97 269 172

Item 5A

171



2021 – 2029 Housing Element Update

HCD Process

• Submitted Draft Housing Element to HCD – April 7, 2021

• Call with HCD – May 19, 2021

• Revisions were submitted 

• City received a findings letter – May 28, 2021

• Additional revisions are needed

• Call with HCD – July 20, 2021

• Revisions were discussed

Item 5A

172



2021 – 2029 Housing Element Update

Key Changes to Address HCD Comments
• Clarification on sites that were included in the 4th and 5th cycle Housing Elements

• Clarification that the zoning code and development standards are available on the City’s website

• Included a discussion on typical densities of existing or approved residential developments at a 
similar affordability level in that jurisdiction

• Revising the realistic capacity to use current projects as a way of calculating 

• Added a new program to address the density inconsistencies between the RM-2 zone and the 
Medium High-Density Residential (MHDR) land use designation

• Revised the Fair Housing Assessment to include information to meet state law which included:

• Fair housing enforcement process

• Outreach

• Linkage between analysis and to actions

• Information on displacement risk

Item 5A

173



2021 – 2029 Housing Element Update

Addendum to the General Plan EIR

An Addendum was appropriate:

•No rezones were needed

• All housing is part of the General & Specific Plans

• Impacts from development are addressed by City policies

Item 5A

174



2021 – 2029 Housing Element Update

Addendum to the General Plan EIR

• Adoption of the 2021-2029 Housing Element and submit to HCD for final 
90-day certification review.  

• Adopt the Addendum to the General Plan EIR

Item 5A

175



Minutes 6/23/2021 

City Council Minutes 
Regular Meeting of Colfax City Council 
Wednesday, June 23, 2021 
City Hall Council Chambers 
33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA  

1 CLOSED SESSION (No Closed Session) 

2 OPEN SESSION 

2A.  Call Open Session to Order 
Mayor Lomen called the open session to order at 6:01 PM 

2B.  Pledge of Allegiance 
City Manager Wes Heathcock led the Pledge of Allegiance 

Councilmember Mendoza asked for a moment of silence for Tony Hesch, former Mayor. 

2C.  Roll Call 
Present: Mendoza, Ackerman, Fatula, Burruss, Lomen 
Absent: None 

2D.  Approval of Agenda Order 
By motion, accept the agenda as presented. 

MOTION made by Councilmember Fatula and seconded by Councilmember Ackerman and 
unanimously approved by voice. 

3 AGENCY REPORTS 

3A.  Colfax Station Commander Sgt. Kevin Griffiths provided a report on additional staffing in place for 
        3rd of July event. 
3B.  California Highway Patrol Public Information Officer Chris Nave provided a report on recent activity. 
3B.  CAL Fire Battalion Chief Eagan provided a report on recent activity. 

4 PRESENTATION 

4A.  PG&E PSPS Wildfire Season Update 
Brandon Sanders, Sierra Division Public Affairs, PG&E, provided a presentation regarding their 
Community Wildfire Safety Program.  

4B.  Placer County Fire and Emergency Preparedness Update 
Chief Brian Estes provided a presentation on the 2020 fire season both statewide 2020 and in 
Placer County. He also reviewed 2021 fire season, forecasted conditions, preparedness, and fuel 
reduction efforts.  

Item 6A

176



Minutes 6/23/2021 
 

Public Comment from Facebook, Dave Selvy, and on Zoom Caroline Glenn.  
5 PUBLIC HEARING  
 

5A. Delinquent Sewer Service Charges and Refuse Collection Fees 
 Laurie Van Groningen presented this item.  
 
 The Public Hearing was opened, no public comment was received.  
 Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing to consider public and staff comments and 

adopt separate Resolutions 28-2021 and 29-2021 requesting collection of delinquent sewer and 
refuse collection fees on the Placer County Tax Roll for Tax Year 2021-2022. 
MOTION made by Councilmember Fatula and seconded by Councilmember Mendoza and 
approved by the following vote: 

 AYES:  Mendoza, Ackerman, Fatula, Burruss, Lomen 
 NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

 
6 CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Interim City Clerk Lind read a public comment received for item 6E from Medich Electric. 
 

6A. Cash Summary - May 2021 
Recommendation: Accept and file.  

 
6B. Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Rate Adjustments 

Recommendation: Information Only.  
 

6C. Memorandum of Understanding with the Stationary Engineers Union Local 39 
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution No. 30-2021, authorizing the Mayor and City Manager to 
execute the updated Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Colfax and IOUE, 
Stationary Engineers, Local 39 Representing General Employees July 1, 2021 through June 30, 
2026. 

 
6D. Animal Control Contract 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution 31-2021 authorizing the City Manager to execute an 
agreement with Placer County Department of Health and Human Services for Animal Control 
and Care Services for a three-year term in an amount not to exceed $75,901. 
 

6E. Wastewater Backup Diesel Powered Generator Replacement Project – Rosendin Electric 
Removed from the consent calendar.  
 

6F. Wastewater Treatment Plant Construction Grant Final Design and Construction Support – 
Wood Rodgers Agreement 

Item 6A

177



Minutes 6/23/2021 
 

Recommendation: By Resolution 33-2021, authorize the City Manager to enter into an 
agreement with Wood Rodgers to perform the final design and construction support tasks 
outlined in the attached proposal in an amount not-to exceed $555,560. 
 

6G. Minutes 
Recommendation: By Motion, approve the Colfax City Council minutes of 6/9/2021.  
*** End of Consent Calendar *** 

 
 By MOTION, approve the consent calendar, excluding item 6E. 

MOTION made by Mayor Pro Tem Burruss and seconded by Councilmember Ackerman and 
approved by the following vote: 

 AYES:  Mendoza, Ackerman, Fatula, Burruss, Lomen 
 NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT:   
  

6E. Wastewater Backup Diesel Powered Generator Replacement Project – Rosendin Electric 
 
 Public comment by Jason Medich, Medich Electric. Council pulled this item for further  
 Discussion. 
 Council member questions followed to City Manager Heathcock. 

By Resolution 32-2021 authorize the City Manager to execute a Construction Services 
Agreement with Rosendin Electric to replace five existing backup diesel generators at the sewer 
collection lift stations and Wastewater Treatment Plant in an amount not to exceed $447,569, 
which includes a 10% contingency. 
MOTION made by Councilmember Fatula and seconded by Councilmember Mendoza and 
approved by the following vote: 
AYES:  Mendoza, Ackerman, Fatula, Burruss, Lomen 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

 
7 PUBLIC COMMENT  
    
  Foxy McCleary of Colfax, spoke about a veteran who recently passed, Jerry Hagman.  
 
   Swend Miller of Colfax, spoke about traffic concerns with the 3rd of July event.  
   
 
8 COUNCIL AND STAFF  
 

  8A.  Mayor Lomen spoke about the Placer Sierra Fire Safe Council Meeting tomorrow night.  
 
 8B. City Manager Heathcock reported on the SACOG Sustainability Transportation Planning Grant. 
 Councilmember Fatula also addressed this project. 

 
 

Item 6A

178



Minutes 6/23/2021 
 
 
9 COUNCIL BUSINESS 

 
9A.  Cooperative Fire Services Agreement with Placer County and Amendment of Colfax 

Municipal Code Chapter 2.28 (Fire Department) 
Mick Cabral, City Attorney, presented this item. He explained the proposed agreements before 
Council tonight. He addressed concerns brought up prior to the meeting.  
 
Public comment by Brian (Zoom, last name not provided), Caroline Glenn (Zoom), Rhonda (last 
name inaudible), Steve Harvey, Will Stockwin, Dave Gard, Caroline McCully on Facebook, Phil 
Begin, (former fire volunteer), Matt Christensen (volunteer), Foxy McCleary, Zach Haslett 
(former fire volunteer), Todd Leopold, Placer County CEO, Joshua Alpine of Colfax, and Tom 
Parnham of Colfax. 
 
Brian Estes addressed questions and comments brought up in public comment.  
 
Council comments followed regarding the volunteer fire department, fire safety, and appreciation 
of public input. Mayor Lomen spoke in opposition of this change to fire services. 
 
By Resolution 34-2021 authorize the City Manager to execute a 3-year Cooperative Agreement 
with Placer County to Provide Fire Protection, Fire Prevention, Rescue, Fire Marshal and 
Medical Emergency Services for the City of Colfax. 
(2) Introduce By Title Only, Waive the First Reading and Continue for Public Hearing, Second 
Reading and possible adoption at the July 14, 2021, Regular Meeting an Ordinance amending 
Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 2.28 (Fire Department). 
 
MOTION made by Councilmember Mendoza and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Burruss and 
approved by the following vote: 
AYES:  Mendoza, Ackerman, Fatula, Burruss 
NOES:  Lomen 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 
 

9B. Mutual Threat Zone Agreement with CalFIRE 
Mick Cabral, City Attorney presented this item.  
 
Chief Estes explained this agreement with regards to wildland fires, state responsibility area vs 
local responsibility areas.  
 
By Resolution 35-2021 authorize the City Manager to execute a Mutual Threat Zone Agreement 
with CalFIRE Nevada – Yuba – Placer Unit. 
MOTION made by Mayor Pro Tem Burruss and seconded by Councilmember Mendoza and 
approved by the following vote: 
AYES:  Mendoza, Ackerman, Fatula, Burruss, Lomen 
NOES: 

Item 6A

179



Minutes 6/23/2021 
 

ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

 
9C. Council Committee Assignments – Pioneer Energy Board (Primary) and Placer 

County Transportation Planning Agency (Alternate) 
Wes Heathcock, City Manager, presented this item.  
 
By Motion, appoint City Manager Wes Heathcock to Pioneer Community Energy Board and 
Marnie Mendoza as Placer County Transportation Planning Agency (PCTPA) alternate.  
MOTION made by Mayor Lomen and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Burruss and approved by the 
following vote: 
AYES:  Ackerman, Fatula, Burruss, Lomen 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN:  Mendoza 
ABSENT: 

 
9 GOOD OF THE ORDER  
 

Councilmember Ackerman spoke of the fire service split vote and said he hopes it can be 
seen as a positive in the future.  

 
Mayor Lomen spoke on the same issue stating he was concerned the fire service was 
approved. 

 
10 ADJOURNMENT 
 

As there was no further business on the agenda, Mayor Lomen adjourned the meeting, by 
motion and without objection at 8:29 PM 

 
Respectfully submitted to City Council this 28th day of July, 2021. 

 
_______________________________________________ 
Amy Lind, Interim City Clerk 

 
 
 
  

Item 6A

180



Minutes 7/14/2021 
 

 
City Council Minutes 
Regular Meeting of Colfax City Council 
Wednesday, July 14, 2021 
City Hall Council Chambers 
33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA  

 

 

1 CLOSED SESSION (No Closed Session) 
 
2 OPEN SESSION 

 
2A.  Call Open Session to Order 
 Mayor Lomen called the open session to order at 6:06 PM 
 

2B.  Pledge of Allegiance 
 Councilmember Ackerman led the Pledge of Allegiance 

 
2C.  Roll Call 
 Present: Mendoza, Ackerman, Fatula, Burruss, Lomen  
 Absent: None 
 
2D.  Approval of Agenda Order 
 By motion, accept the agenda as presented. 
 

MOTION made by Councilmember Fatula and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Burruss and 
unanimously approved by voice.   

 
3 AGENCY REPORTS 
  

3A.  CAL Fire Chief Mike Rufenacht provided a report on recent activity including 3rd of July event, 
the transition process for Colfax, Mutual Treat Zone Agreement incorporation, fuels reduction, 
calls during the last month and the current extreme fire season. 

3B. Tim Ryan, Colfax Chamber of Commerce, reported that they are now open Tues-Sat 9am-2pm. 
He spoke about Coffee and Conversation meetings, mixers, and Board meetings. He thanked 
Mayor Pro Tem Burruss, Mayor Lomen, City Manager Heathcock for participating in the last 
board meeting.  

 
4 PRESENTATION  
 

4A.  Placer County Mosquito and Vector Control District Update 
Joel Buettner, District Manager and Meagan Luevano, Public Information Officer provided an 
update on current activities, including operations, outreach, statistics, treatments, 2021 outlook, 
public awareness, and general practices.  

 
 
 

Item 6A

181



Minutes 7/14/2021 
 
5 PUBLIC HEARING  
 

5A. Amendment of Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 2.28 (Fire Department) 
Alfred A. “Mick” Cabral, City Attorney introduced this item.  
There was no public comment.   
Recommendation: Conduct a Public Hearing And, By Motion, Waive the Second Reading and 
Adopt Ordinance 545 Amending Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 2.28 (Fire Department). 
MOTION made by Mayor Pro Tem Burruss and seconded by Mayor Lomen and approved by the 
following vote: 

 AYES:  Mendoza, Ackerman, Fatula, Burruss, Lomen 
 NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

 
6 CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

6A. Bureau Veritas 3-year Agreement (Building Inspection) 
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution 36-2021 authorizing the City Manager to inter into a 3- 
year contract with Bureau Veritas for building inspection services on an as needed basis not to 
exceed $355,453. 
 

6B. FY 2021/2022 SB 1 Funding Project List 
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution 37-2021 adopting a list of potential projects to be funded 
in full or in part by SB 1: The Road Repair and Accountability Act, ensuring eligibility for State 
of California Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) revenues. 

      *** end of consent calendar *** 
 
 By MOTION, approve the consent calendar. 

MOTION made by Councilmember Fatula and seconded Mayor Pro Tem Burruss and approved 
by the following vote: 

 AYES:  Mendoza, Ackerman, Fatula, Burruss, Lomen 
 NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT:   

 
7 PUBLIC COMMENT  
    

Tim Ryan, of Colfax, thanked the Volunteer Fire Department, Cal Fire, and Placer Hills for their 
response to a fire by his property.   
 
Diane Green, of Colfax, spoke in opposition of Fireworx Farms cannabis cultivation in Colfax. 
She also spoke in general opposition of marijuana. 
 
Joey Tanzi, spoke about a movie/production independent film he wants to do in Colfax. 
 
Caroline Presson, on Facebook, spoke about poor sound and video of the meeting.  

Item 6A

182



Minutes 7/14/2021 
 
   
8 COUNCIL AND STAFF  
 

8A.  Councilmember Mendoza reported on the Chinese monument and a possible presentation to 
Council. 

 
 Councilmember Fatula spoke about the effort to improve fire insurance for Colfax, and creation 

of a fire coverage map. 
 
 Mayor Pro Tem Burruss also spoke to fire insurance and the risk of being underinsured. She 

reported on City’s Subsistence Program, which can provide aide on resident’s utility costs.  
 She also spoke about the Arrangement Management Plan by PG&E for assistance.  
 
 Mayor Lomen reported on an upcoming Placer Sierra Fire Safe Council meeting. 

 
 8B. City Manager Heathcock introduced Martin Jones, the new Public Works Director.  

 
9 COUNCIL BUSINESS (none) 

 
 
9 GOOD OF THE ORDER  
 

Councilmember Mendoza reported further on the Chinese Monument and location and the 
Colfax Historic Society involvement.  
 
Councilmember Ackerman spoke about the successful 3rd of July event in Colfax.  

 
Mayor Pro Tem Burruss proposed having reoccurring weekly events in town, seasonally, 
and possibly partner with existing events in town.  
 
Mayor Lomen thanked Andrea Harrison, the Chamber of Commerce and the Green 
Machine, Placer County Sheriffs, Placer County Fire and Cal Fire, for their support at the 
3rd of July event.  

 
10 ADJOURNMENT 
 

As there was no further business on the agenda, Mayor Lomen adjourned the meeting, by 
motion and without objection at 7:11 PM. 

 
Respectfully submitted to City Council this 28th day of July 2021. 

 
_______________________________________________ 
Amy Lind, Interim City Clerk 

 
 

Item 6A

183



City of Colfax Cash Summary – June 2021 
Staff Report July 28, 2021 

Staff Report to City Council 
FOR THE JULY 28, 2021 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
Prepared by: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 
Subject: Cash Summary - June 2021 

   Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   √ Funded:  Un-funded: Amount:   Fund(s):   

Summary/Background 

The monthly financial report includes General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs and the City of Colfax 
Cash Summary Report (with supporting documentation).  The reports are prepared monthly on a cash basis and 
are reconciled to the General Ledger accounting system, previous reports, and bank statements.  Detailed budget 
comparisons are provided as a mid-year report and also as part of the proposed budget process each year. 

The purpose of these reports is to provide the status of funds and transparency for Council and the public of the 
financial transactions of the City. 

The attached reports reflect an overview of the financial transactions of the City of Colfax in June 2021.  Some 
monthly highlights are listed below: 

 June revenues included:

o Allocation for Sales Tax revenues reported/paid to the State for the month of April 2021 (two
month lag).

 June expenditures included:

o Quarterly sheriff and fire services contract payments

 Negative cash fund balances at the end of June are due to timing of funding allocations and
reimbursements:

o Fund 200 – Cannabis Application.  Balance is negative due to SCI services for assistance with
Council workshops and development of new ordinance.  It is anticipated that this fund will be
made whole with future application fees.

o Fund 203 – Cares Act Funding CDBG.  This is a reimbursable grant – funding is for City
Subsistence Assistance program.

o Fund 358 – CDBG Road Rehabilitation.  This is a reimbursable grant – final funding of grant
was anticipated in September but has been delayed into 2021 and is now anticipated to be
awarded before end of current quarter (September 30).  CDBG approved start date of
expenditures.  Any unfunded expenditures would require allocation from General Fund.

o Fund 367 – SB2 Planning Grant – this is a reimbursable grant.  First request for reimbursement
was submitted in April 2021.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and File. 

Item 6B

184



  
City of Colfax Cash Summary – June 2021 
Staff Report July 28, 2021 
  

o Fund 585 – Lift station #5 Force Main repair.  Current expenditures include design work being 
performed by GHD (approved $50K).  Funding to be allocated from Fund 564 – Sewer 
Connections – allocation of funds will be made at design project completion.  Future repair work 
estimated at $165K. 

 Anticipated revenues/expenditures for July include: 

o Revenues 

 First allocation of ARPA – American Rescue Plan Act funding in the amount of 239K. 

 Allocation for Sales Tax revenues reported/paid to the State for the month of May 2021 
(two-month lag).   

o Expenditures 

 No expenditures outside normal operating expenses forecasted. 

Attachments: 
1. General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs 

a. Cash Analysis – Balance 
b. Expenses by Month 
c. Revenues by Month 

2. Cash Activity Reports  
a. Cash Summary 
b. Cash Transactions Report – by individual fund 
c. Check Register Report - Accounts Payable 

d. Daily Cash Summary Report (Cash Receipts) 

Item 6B

185



*This is a recommended General Fund Reserve Target of 25% (3 months) of annual General Fund Revenues.  The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) recommends that 
general‐purpose governments establish unrestricted fund balance goals to be no less than two months of regular general fund operating revenues or regular expenditures.

Prev Yr Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Cash Balance FY2020‐21 $2,311 $2,392 $2,497 $2,386 $2,402 $2,463 $2,393 $2,688 $2,760 $2,612 $2,771 $3,023 $2,857

Cash Balance FY2019‐20 $2,013 $2,069 $2,169 $2,110 $2,170 $2,467 $2,373 $2,747 $2,730 $2,615 $2,627 $2,910 $2,311

Cash Balance FY2018‐19 $1,275 $1,398 $1,444 $1,447 $1,329 $1,420 $1,336 $1,672 $1,812 $1,760 $1,893 $2,151 $2,013

Cash Balance FY2017‐18 $1,086 $1,050 $828 $905 $954 $983 $962 $1,280 $1,212 $1,168 $1,250 $1,493 $1,396

Cash Balance FY2016‐17 $838 $829 $750 $835 $897 $802 $889 $1,133 $981 $1,022 $938 $1,034 $1,086

*Reserves (Ops, Cap, Pen) $695 $830 $830 $830 $830 $830 $830 $830 $830 $830 $830 $830 $830

Budget FY2020‐21 $2,311 $2,311 $2,311 $2,311 $2,311 $2,311 $2,311 $2,311 $2,311 $2,311 $2,311 $2,311 $2,311

 $(500)

 $‐

 $500

 $1,000

 $1,500

 $2,000

 $2,500

 $3,000

 $3,500

City of Colfax ‐ June 2021
General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis

(Dollars in Thousands)

Fiscal Year 2020‐21  >>

Item 6B

186



 $‐

 $50

 $100

 $150

 $200

 $250

 $300

 $350

 $400

 $450

 $500

 Jul  Aug  Sep  Oct  Nov  Dec  Jan  Feb  Mar  Apr  May  Jun

City of Colfax ‐ June 2021
General Fund Reserved Cash ‐ Revenues by Month

(Dollars in Thousands)

Franchises (WAVE, Recology, PGE) Motor Vehicle In Lieu Other

Property Tax Sales Tax Business Licenses/Taxes

Planning Fees Interest Income Building Permits

Item 6B

187



 $‐

 $50

 $100

 $150

 $200

 $250

 $300

 $350

 Jul  Aug  Sep  Oct  Nov  Dec  Jan  Feb  Mar  Apr  May  Jun

City of Colfax ‐ June 2021
General Fund Reserved Cash ‐ Expenses by Month

(Dollars in Thousands)

General Expenses Sheriff/Fire Animal Control Contract

Insurance Deposit to SCORE Risk Pool Audit, Grants, HR Consult City CARES Grants

Legal Expenses County Fees

Item 6B

188



 
Balance 

05/31/2021
Revenues In Expenses Out Transfers Balance 06/30/21

US Bank 103,282.32$          440,317.81$        (511,439.90)$       -$                      32,160.23$           
LAIF 7,907,399.67$       -$                    -$                      7,907,399.67$      
Total Cash - General Ledger 8,010,681.99$       440,317.81$        (511,439.90)$       -$                      7,939,559.90$      

Petty Cash (In Safe) 300.00$                 300.00$                

Total Cash 8,010,981.99$       440,317.81$        (511,439.90)$       -$                      7,939,859.90$      

 
Change in Cash Account Balance - Total (71,122.09)$          

 

Attached Reports:
   1.  Cash Transactions Report (By Individual Fund)  
   2.  Check Register Report (Accounts Payable) (335,398.44)$         
   3.  Cash Receipts -  Daily Cash Summary Report 158,517.64$        

Payroll Checks and Tax Deposits (67,748.08)$         
Utility Billings - Receipts 173,506.79$         
Check - Voided -$                    
LAIF Interest Quarterly -$                    

(71,122.09)$         -$                       

Prepared by: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director
Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director

Reviewed by: Wes Heathcock, City Manager
Wes Heathcock, City Manager

 

City of Colfax 
Cash Summary
June 30, 2021

Item 6B

189



 Beginning 
Balance 

 Debit    
Revenues 

 Credit 
(Expenditures) 

 Ending     
Balance 

Fund Type:  1.11 - General Fund - Unassigned
Fund:  100 - General Fund 2,933,113.17$     155,739.16$        (318,129.63)$       2,770,722.70$     
Fund:  120 - Land Development Fees 97,711.13$          286.19$               (2,142.50)$           95,854.82$          
Fund:  200 - Cannabis Application (7,594.64)$           -$                     (1,750.00)$           (9,344.64)$           
Fund Type:  1.11 - General Fund - Unassigned 3,023,229.66$     156,025.35$        (322,022.13)$       2,857,232.88$     

Fund Type:  1.14 - General Fund - Restricted
Fund:  205 - Escrow Funds 3,237.00$            -$                     -$                     3,237.00$            
Fund:  571 - AB939 Landfill Diversion 24,517.26$          -$                     -$                     24,517.26$          
Fund:  572 - Landfill Post Closure Maintenance 785,362.73$        750.00$               (8,970.06)$           777,142.67$        
Fund Type:  1.14 - General Fund - Restricted 813,116.99$        750.00$               (8,970.06)$           804,896.93$        

Fund Type:  1.24 - Special Rev Funds - Restricted
Fund:  201 - CARES Act Funding -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
Fund:  203 - CARES Act Funding - CDBG (750.00)$              -$                     -$                     (750.00)$              
Fund:  210 - Mitigation Fees - Roads 256,959.20$        -$                     -$                     256,959.20$        
Fund:  211 - Mitigation Fees - Drainage 5,383.60$            -$                     -$                     5,383.60$            
Fund:  212 - Mitigation Fees - Trails 74,232.55$          -$                     -$                     74,232.55$          
Fund:  213 - Mitigation Fees - Parks/Rec 188,702.85$        -$                     -$                     188,702.85$        
Fund:  214 - Mitigation Fees - City Bldgs 74,089.44$          -$                     -$                     74,089.44$          
Fund:  215 - Mitigation Fees - Vehicles 16,018.93$          -$                     -$                     16,018.93$          
Fund:  217 - Mitigation Fees - DT Parking 51,429.85$          -$                     -$                     51,429.85$          
Fund:  218 - Support Law Enforcement 25,000.00$          -$                     (25,000.00)$         -$                     
Fund:  244 - CDBG  Program Inc - ME Lending 2,002.17$            -$                     (2,002.17)$           -$                     
Fund:  250 - Streets - Roads/Transportation (74,252.43)$         85,697.88$          (11,445.45)$         -$                     
Fund:  253 - Gas Taxes 31,605.80$          8,624.67$            (40,230.47)$         -$                     
Fund:  258 - Road Maintenance - SB1/RSTBG 115,514.85$        3,090.16$            -$                     118,605.01$        
Fund:  270 - Beverage Container Recycling 19,063.68$          -$                     -$                     19,063.68$          
Fund:  280 - Oil Recycling 3,758.90$            -$                     -$                     3,758.90$            
Fund:  292 - Fire Department Capital Funds 93,085.20$          -$                     -$                     93,085.20$          
Fund:  342 - Fire Construction - Mitigation 75,485.18$          -$                     -$                     75,485.18$          
Fund:  343 - Recreation Construction 75,485.65$          -$                     -$                     75,485.65$          
Fund Type:  1.24 - Special Rev Funds - Restricte 1,032,815.42$     97,412.71$          (78,678.09)$         1,051,550.04$     

 
Fund Type:  1.34 - Capital Projects - Restricted
Fund:  300 - FY2021 ADA Project (11,017.50)$         11,017.50$          -$                     -$                     
Fund:  367 - SB2 - Planning Grant (76,170.83)$         -$                     (5,798.05)$           (81,968.88)$         
Fund:  358 - CDBG Pavement (92,644.64)$         -$                     -$                     (92,644.64)$         
Fund:  374 - Roundabout Monument (1,445.00)$           -$                     (1,445.00)$           (2,890.00)$           
Fund Type:  1.34 - Capital Projects - Restricted (181,277.97)$       11,017.50$          (7,243.05)$           (177,503.52)$       

Fund Type:  2.11 - Enterprise Funds 
Fund:  560 - Sewer 1,148,846.80$     110,818.89$        (59,328.90)$         1,200,336.79$     
Fund:  561 - Sewer Liftstations 265,293.78$        16,694.22$          (12,565.02)$         269,422.98$        
Fund:  563 - Wastewater Treatment Plant 1,284,499.70$     47,445.30$          (160.30)$              1,331,784.70$     
Fund:  564 - Sewer Connections 351,118.45$        -$                     -$                     351,118.45$        
Fund:  573 - WWTP Planning Grant (0.00)$                  -$                     -$                     (0.00)$                  
Fund:  574 - OES PSPS Grant 295,860.74$        -$                     (3,401.00)$           292,459.74$        
Fund:  576 - Phase II - Pond 3 Fissure Repair (4,241.01)$           -$                     (4,665.60)$           (8,906.61)$           
Fund:  585 - LS #5 Force Main Repairs (20,888.25)$         -$                     (14,405.75)$         (35,294.00)$         
Fund Type:  2.11 - Enterprise Funds - Unassign 3,320,490.21$     174,958.41$        (94,526.57)$         3,400,922.05$     

Fund Type:  9.0 - CLEARING ACCOUNT
Fund:  998 - PAYROLL CLEARING FUND 2,307.68$            153.84$               -$                     2,461.52$            
Fund Type:  9.0 - CLEARING ACCOUNT 2,307.68$            153.84$               -$                     2,461.52$            

Grand Totals:  8,010,681.99$     440,317.81$        (511,439.90)$       7,939,559.90$     

City of Colfax

Cash Transactions Report - June 2021

Item 6B

190



CITY OF COLFAX

Check Register Report

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Status Amount

June 2021 A/P Checks

BANK: 

Vendor 
Number

Vendor Name Check Description

US BANK 1Page:
 3:18 pmTime:

07/14/2021Date:

Void/Stop 
Date

Reconcile 
Date

US BANK Checks

6,653.41CALPERS03141Reconciled06/04/2157039 06/30/21 HEALTH PREMIUMS JUNE 2021 

54.47AMERIGAS - COLFAX01448Reconciled06/07/2157040 06/30/21 SHERIFF DEPT PROPANE 

141.47AMERIGAS - COLFAX01448Reconciled06/07/2157041 06/30/21 CITY HALL PROPANE 

444.08ANDERSON'S SIERRA01500Reconciled06/07/2157042 06/30/21 WWTP SUPPLIES 
649.60BLUE RIBBON PERSONNEL 

SERVICES
02829Reconciled06/07/2157043 06/30/21 TEMP LABOR THRU 05/23/21 

466.60CITY OF AUBURN03435Reconciled06/07/2157044 06/30/21 CITY CLERK SVCS MAY 2021 
64.29COLFAX FARM AND COUNTRY

STORE
06730Reconciled06/07/2157045 06/30/21 SUPPLIES 

420.76DE LAGE LANDEN FINANCIAL04234Reconciled06/07/2157046 06/30/21 COPY MACH LEASE JUNE 2021 
493.30HACH COMPANY08050Reconciled06/07/2157047 06/30/21 WWTP LAB SUPPLIES 

997.79HILLS FLAT LUMBER CO08170Reconciled06/07/2157048 06/30/21 STMT 5/25/21 

5.63INLAND BUSINESS SYSTEMS09455Reconciled06/07/2157049 06/30/21 COPY MACH LEASE 

1,133.25LARRY WALKER ASSOCIATES23101Reconciled06/07/2157050 06/30/21 NPDES PERMIT ASS APR 2021 
347.43MOBILE-MED WORK HEALTH13278Reconciled06/07/2157051 06/30/21 FIT FOR DUTY EXAM 

8,059.32PELLETREAU, ALDERSON & 
CABRAL

16011(2)Reconciled06/07/2157052 06/30/21 LEGAL SVCS MAY 2021 

167.84PITNEY BOWES16040AReconciled06/07/2157053 06/30/21 POSTAGE MACH LEASE 

195,404.00PLACER COUNTY SHERIFF 
DEPT.

16200Reconciled06/07/2157054 06/30/21 Q4 FY 20/21 SHERIFF CONTRACT 

5,000.00RETAIL STRATEGIES18295Reconciled06/07/2157055 06/30/21 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CONSULT 

248.33RIEBES AUTO PARTS18400Reconciled06/07/2157056 06/30/21 SUPPLIES 

91.88SIERRA SAW19397Reconciled06/07/2157057 06/30/21 WEEDEATER SUPPLIES/OIL 
5,355.00VAN GRONINGEN & 

ASSOCIATES
22106Reconciled06/07/2157058 06/30/21 FINANCIAL SVCS MAY 2021 

18.88WAVE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS23169Reconciled06/07/2157059 06/30/21 DEPOT PHONE 
27.28WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY18883Reconciled06/07/2157060 06/30/21 PW CLEANING SUPPLIES 

1,206.00WOOD RODGERS23451Reconciled06/07/2157061 06/30/21 INSTRUMENTATION SURVEY APR 

2,651.00WOOD RODGERS23451Reconciled06/07/2157062 06/30/21 GENERATOR REPLACEMENTS 

136.85ALHAMBRA & SIERRA 
SPRINGS

01414Reconciled06/15/2157063 06/30/21 WATER 

874.35ALL PRO BACKFLOW01424Printed06/15/2157064 BACKFLOW TESTING 
23.93AMERIGAS - COLFAX01448Reconciled06/15/2157065 06/30/21 FIRE DEPT PROPANE 

816.84AT&T MOBILITY01766Reconciled06/15/2157066 06/30/21 CITY CELL PHONE 

649.60BLUE RIBBON PERSONNEL 
SERVICES

02829Reconciled06/15/2157067 06/30/21 TEMP LABOR THRU 5/31/21 

4,760.00BUREAU VERITAS NORTH 
AMERICA

02901Reconciled06/15/2157068 06/30/21 BLDG OFFICIAL SVCS MAY 2021 

260.00CENTRAL VALLEY SALINITY3206Reconciled06/15/2157069 06/30/21 CV SALINITY PERMIT FEE 

539.92CHOICE BUILDER03401Reconciled06/15/2157070 06/30/21 PREMIUMS JULY 2021 

385.06CINTAS3425Reconciled06/15/2157071 06/30/21 UNIFORM/SUPPLIES 

1,162.50COASTLAND CIVIL 
ENGINEERING

03493Reconciled06/15/2157072 06/30/21 ENG SVCS MAY 2021 

28,191.35GHD INC.14859Reconciled06/15/2157073 06/30/21 ENG SVCS MAY 2021 
0.00GLAZNER, RYAN727806/21/21Void06/15/2157074 FIRE DEPT TRAINING/UNIFORMS 

74.00GOLD MINER PEST CONTROL07465Reconciled06/15/2157075 06/30/21 FIRE #36 PEST CONTROL 

75.00GOLD MINER PEST CONTROL07465Reconciled06/15/2157076 06/30/21 WWTP/LIFT STATION PEST CONTROL 

371.62HANSEN BROS. 
ENTERPRISES

08070Reconciled06/15/2157077 06/30/21 BARK 

181.47HANSEN BROS. 
ENTERPRISES

08070Reconciled06/15/2157078 06/30/21 PARK BARK 

226.83HANSEN BROS. 
ENTERPRISES

08070Reconciled06/15/2157079 06/30/21 PARK BARK 

90.73HANSEN BROS. 
ENTERPRISES

08070Reconciled06/15/2157080 06/30/21 BARK 

893.31HUNT AND SONS, INC.08660Reconciled06/15/2157081 06/30/21 FUEL 

225.00MUNICIPAL CODE 
CORPORATION

13560Reconciled06/15/2157082 06/30/21 MUNICODE SUPPORT 

120.01NORTHERN CALIFORNIA 
GLOVE

14356Reconciled06/15/2157083 06/30/21 WWTP SUPPLIES 

192.88NORTHERN CALIFORNIA 
GLOVE

14356Reconciled06/15/2157084 06/30/21 PW SUPPLIES 

Item 6B

191



CITY OF COLFAX

Check Register Report

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Status Amount

June 2021 A/P Checks

BANK: 

Vendor 
Number

Vendor Name Check Description

US BANK 2Page:
 3:18 pmTime:

07/14/2021Date:

Void/Stop 
Date

Reconcile 
Date

US BANK Checks

210.00PLACER COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
OFFICE

16161Printed06/15/2157085 REGIONAL HOMELESSNESS DINNER 

4,363.05PLACEWORKS16052Reconciled06/15/2157086 06/30/21 GEN PLAN UPDATE/HOUSING ELEM 
155.00SAFE SIDE SECURITY19037Reconciled06/15/2157087 06/30/21 CORP YARD SECURITY 

1,750.00SCI CONSULTING GROUP19065Reconciled06/15/2157088 06/30/21 CANNABIS MONITORING THRU MAR 

150.10SIERRA OFFICE PRODUCTS01790Reconciled06/15/2157089 06/30/21 OFFICE SUPPLIES 

300.00SIERRA PROFESSINAL AUDIO78462Reconciled06/15/2157090 06/30/21 COUNCIL SOUND SYSTEM RPR 
0.00SWANA1979706/24/21Void06/15/2157091 LEGISLATIVE TASK FORCE 

1,445.00THUMBLER20092Reconciled06/15/2157092 06/30/21 ROUNDABOUT MONUMENT 

7,735.00URSU, EMMANUEL21452Reconciled06/15/2157093 06/30/21 PLANNING SVCS MAY 2021 

541.63US BANK CORPORATE PMT 
SYSTEM

21560Reconciled06/15/2157094 06/30/21 STMT 5/24/21 

3,072.10VISION QUEST22134Reconciled06/15/2157095 06/30/21 TECH SUPPORT 

1,721.00VISION QUEST22134Reconciled06/15/2157096 06/30/21 TECH SUPPORT SVCS 
263.38VULCAN MATERIALS 

COMPANY
22240Reconciled06/15/2157097 06/30/21 ASPHALT 

227.28WAVE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS23169Reconciled06/15/2157098 06/30/21 CITY HALL PHONES 

38.22WAVE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS23169Reconciled06/15/2157099 06/30/21 FIRE DEPT PHONE 

396.59WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY18883Reconciled06/15/2157100 06/30/21 PW SUPPLIES 

282.02WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY18883Reconciled06/15/2157101 06/30/21 PW SUPPLIES 
1,445.00WENDEL ROSEN23218Reconciled06/15/2157102 06/30/21 LEGAL MATTER MAY 2021 

867.36WESTERN PLACER WASTE23301Reconciled06/15/2157103 06/30/21 SLUDGE REMOVAL MAY 2021 

300.00WILL STOCKWIN 19743Reconciled06/15/2157104 06/30/21 COLFAX CONN EDITING JUNE 2021 

15.00BASIC PACIFIC2087Reconciled06/14/2157105 06/30/21 FSA PLAN BENEFITS 
1,800.00CLEAR PATH LAND 

EVOLVEMENT,
03482Reconciled06/24/2157106 06/30/21 WWTP ANNUAL SUBSIDENCE 

SURVEY 
99.95DACOMM04592Reconciled06/24/2157107 06/30/21 WWTP INTERNET 

1,703.05EOSI - ENVIRONMENT 
OPERATING

05221Reconciled06/24/2157108 06/30/21 WWTP CHEMICALS 

204.74FRONTIER 
COMMUNICATIONS

06278Reconciled06/24/2157109 06/30/21 WWTP PHONE 

194.86GOLD COUNTRY MEDIA07460Reconciled06/24/2157110 06/30/21 DELINQUENT SEWER 
95.00GOLD MINER PEST CONTROL07465Printed06/24/2157111 CITY HALL PEST CONTROL 

110.71HOLT OF CALIFORNIA08500Reconciled06/24/2157112 06/30/21 BACKHOE SEALS 

521.04HUNT AND SONS, INC.08660Reconciled06/24/2157113 06/30/21 PW/WWTP FUEL 

232.00LARRY WALKER ASSOCIATES23101Printed06/24/2157114 NPDES PERMIT ASSIST MAY 2021 
5,230.50LAWRENCE & ASSOCIATES 

INC
12180Printed06/24/2157115 LANDFILL MONITORING MAY 2021 

4,804.00LIEBERT CASSIDY 
WHITMORE

12209Reconciled06/24/2157116 06/30/21 HR LEGAL ASSISTANCE MAY 2021 

2,880.18PCWA -PLACER COUNTY16300Reconciled06/24/2157117 06/30/21 WATER 

18,267.74PG&E16035Printed06/24/2157118 ELECTRICITY 
70.00PLACER COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

OFFICE
16161Printed06/24/2157119 PC DINNER SUMMIT 

700.00SERVICE ENGINEERING19279Reconciled06/24/2157120 06/30/21 POND 2 AERATOR RPR 

169.60SETON19282Reconciled06/24/2157121 06/30/21 SOCIAL DISTANCE SIGNAGE 

25.00SIERRA MEDICAL 
PARTNERSHIP

19391Printed06/24/2157122 NEW HIRE DRUG SCREEN 

518.50THUMBLER20092Reconciled06/24/2157123 06/30/21 PUBLIC OUTREACH CONSULTANT 

350.24VULCAN MATERIALS 
COMPANY

22240Reconciled06/24/2157124 06/30/21 ASPHALT 

54.90WAVE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS23169Reconciled06/24/2157125 06/30/21 CORP YARD INTERNET 

737.24WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY18883Reconciled06/24/2157126 06/30/21 PW SUPPLIES 

50.00WOOD RODGERS23451Reconciled06/24/2157127 06/30/21 INSTRUMENTATION SURVEY MAY 
750.00WOOD RODGERS23451Reconciled06/24/2157128 06/30/21 GENERATOR REPLACEMENT 

153.60BASIC PACIFIC2087Reconciled06/21/2157129 06/30/21 FSA BENEFIT PYMT 

45.00BASIC PACIFIC2087Reconciled06/29/2157130 06/30/21 FSA PLAN FEES 

335,398.44Checks Total (excluding void checks):92Total Checks:

Item 6B

192



Debit Credit Net Chng

City of Colfax

Page:  1
7/6/2021
10:37 am

DAILY CASH SUMMARY REPORT

06/01/2021 - 06/30/2021

Fund:  100 - General Fund

122.25 0.00 122.2506/01/2021 Daily Totals

4,086.83 0.00 4,086.8306/03/2021 Daily Totals

1,545.79 0.00 1,545.7906/08/2021 Daily Totals

11,897.65 0.00 11,897.6506/09/2021 Daily Totals

1,696.46 0.00 1,696.4606/10/2021 Daily Totals

2,402.50 0.00 2,402.5006/14/2021 Daily Totals

0.00 201.29 -201.2906/15/2021 Daily Totals

2,310.50 0.00 2,310.5006/16/2021 Daily Totals

7,259.21 0.00 7,259.2106/21/2021 Daily Totals

111,333.35 154.00 111,179.3506/24/2021 Daily Totals

3,248.25 0.00 3,248.2506/30/2021 Daily Totals

145,547.50355.29145,902.79TOTALS:Fund:  100 - General Fund

Fund:  120 - Land Development Fees

156.04 0.00 156.0406/03/2021 Daily Totals

130.15 0.00 130.1506/30/2021 Daily Totals

286.190.00286.19TOTALS:Fund:  120 - Land Development Fees

Fund:  250 - Streets - Roads/Transportation

90.00 0.00 90.0006/10/2021 Daily Totals

90.000.0090.00TOTALS:Fund:  250 - Streets - Roads/Transportation

Fund:  253 - Gas Taxes

3,709.68 0.00 3,709.6806/01/2021 Daily Totals

4,914.99 0.00 4,914.9906/28/2021 Daily Totals

8,624.670.008,624.67TOTALS:Fund:  253 - Gas Taxes

Fund:  258 - Road Maintenance - SB1/RSTBG

3,090.16 0.00 3,090.1606/22/2021 Daily Totals

3,090.160.003,090.16TOTALS:Fund:  258 - Road Maintenance - SB1/RSTBG

Limited to include: JE Types of: CR

Item 6B

193



Debit Credit Net Chng

City of Colfax

Page:  2
7/6/2021
10:37 am

DAILY CASH SUMMARY REPORT

06/01/2021 - 06/30/2021

Fund:  560 - Sewer

250.00 0.00 250.0006/03/2021 Daily Totals

222.12 0.00 222.1206/24/2021 Daily Totals

472.120.00472.12TOTALS:Fund:  560 - Sewer

Fund:  561 - Sewer Liftstations

407.00 0.00 407.0006/14/2021 Daily Totals

407.000.00407.00TOTALS:Fund:  561 - Sewer Liftstations

158,872.93 355.29 158,517.64GRAND TOTALS:

Limited to include: JE Types of: CR

Item 6B

194



City of Colfax Quarterly Investment Report – Quarter Ended 06/30/2021 
Staff Report July 28, 2021 

Staff Report to City Council 
FOR THE JULY 28, 2021 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
Prepared by: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 
Subject: Quarterly Investment Report – Quarter ended 06/30/2021 

 Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   √ Funded:  Un-funded: Amount: Fund(s): 

California Government Code Section 53646 and the City of Colfax Investment Policy require a quarterly 
investment report be submitted to the City Council.  Such report shall include at least the following information: 

 Types of Investments;
 Name of the institution in which funds are invested or deposited;
 Date of Maturity, if applicable;
 Par and dollar amount investment for all securities;
 Percent distribution of each type of investment or deposit; current market value as of the date of the

report, including source of the valuation except those under LAIF;
 Rate of interest;
 Average weighted yield of all investments;
 A statement relating the report to the City’s Investment Policy; and
 A statement that there are sufficient funds to meet the City’s next six months financial obligations.

The current practice for cash management is to maintain an operating balance between $75,000 and $150,000 in 
the City’s US Bank Corporate checking account.  This account accumulates Earnings Credits based on the 
account balance which offset/reduce monthly service charges.  City funds in excess of targeted operating 
balance are transferred to the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) on a weekly basis.  The 
checking account balance may be reported at an amount higher than the target balance by the Bank due to the 
timing of City checks being processed by vendors/service providers. 

The City’s investment policy is authorized under the California Government Code, section 53600, et. seq. as it 
applies to the investment of public funds.   The Government Code governs the City’s allowable investments, 
and the lengths of those investments. Our investment policy dictates that the City should have liquid short term 
securities to meet six months financial obligations.  The budget for fiscal year 2020-2021 reflects nearly $4.2M 
in annual operating expenditures; therefore, our target for liquid short term securities would be $2.1M.   

The attached schedule Analysis of Treasury Investment Pool satisfies the State’s reporting requirements.  
Additionally, we have determined: 

 The investments held at June 30, 2021 conform to the City Investment Policy adopted by Resolution 29-
2014.

 The composite yield of the City’s investment pool (US Bank and LAIF) to be the rate of .30% for the
quarter ended June 30, 2021.

 There are sufficient funds on deposit to meet all anticipated City expenditures for the period July 1, 2021
through December 31, 2021.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and File 

Item 6C

195



  
City of Colfax Quarterly Investment Report – Quarter Ended 06/30/2021 
Staff Report July 28, 2021 

  

 

Historically, due to fluctuations in fund balances, investment opportunities outside the corporate checking and 
LAIF accounts have been somewhat limited.  Staff will continue to review for opportunities, but at this time 
will continue with the current investment structure.   

 
Attachments: 

1. Analysis of Treasury Investment Pool 
2. State of California – PMIA and LAIF Performance Report (QE 06/30/2021) 
3. State of California – PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields 
4. Resolution 29-2014 

 
 

Item 6C

196



City of Colfax
Analysis of Treasury Investment Pool
Quarterly Analysis - FY2020-2021
Report Date:  06/30/2021

Type of Investment Financial Institution
Date of 

Maturity
Investment 

Amount
% of Total 

Investment

Average 
Investment 

Yield

Investment Fund State Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A 7,732,400$       97% 0.30%
Corporate Checking US Bank N/A 240,003$          3% 0.16%

Total Investment Pool 7,972,402$      100% 0.30%

Type of Investment Financial Institution
Date of 

Maturity
Investment 

Amount
% of Total 

Investment

Average 
Investment 

Yield

Investment Fund State Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A 6,950,033$       97% 0.41%
Corporate Checking US Bank N/A 198,482$          3% 0.16%

Total Investment Pool 7,148,515$      100% 0.40%

Type of Investment Financial Institution
Date of 

Maturity
Investment 

Amount
% of Total 

Investment

Average 
Investment 

Yield

Investment Fund State Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A 6,364,482$       96% 0.58%
Corporate Checking US Bank N/A 275,190$          4% 0.16%

Total Investment Pool 6,639,672$      100% 0.56%

Type of Investment Financial Institution
Date of 

Maturity
Investment 

Amount
% of Total 

Investment

Average 
Investment 

Yield

Investment Fund State Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A 7,274,095$       96% 0.80%
Corporate Checking US Bank N/A 290,744$          4% 0.16%

Total Investment Pool 7,564,839$      100% 0.77%

Quarter Ended 06/30/2021

Quarter Ended 03/31/2021

Quarter Ended 12/31/2020

Quarter Ended 09/30/2020

Item 6C

197



Jun 0.262
May 0.315
Apr 0.339

PMIA Quarter to Date(1): 0.30%
291PMIA Average Life(1):

0.33LAIF Apportionment Rate(2):
0.00000897371743018
1.00008297

 LAIF Earnings Ratio(2):
 LAIF Fair Value Factor(1):

PMIA Daily(1): 0.22%

Treasuries
70.21%

Agencies
13.17%

Certificates of 
Deposit/Bank Notes

8.41%

Time Deposits
2.04%

Commercial
Paper
5.74%

Loans
0.38%

Corporate 
Bonds
0.06%

Notes: The apportionment rate includes interest earned on the CalPERS Supplemental Pension Payment 
pursuant to Government Code 20825 (c)(1) and interest earned on the Wildfire Fund loan pursuant to Public 
Utility Code 3288 (a). 

Source:
(1) State of California, Office of the Treasurer
(2) State of Calfiornia, Office of the Controller

PMIA Average Monthly 
Effective Yields(1)

PMIA/LAIF Performance Report
as of 07/15/21

Daily rates are now available here.  View PMIA Daily Rates

Quarterly Performance
Quarter Ended 06/30/21

Chart does not include 0.01% of mortgages. Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding.

Pooled Money Investment Account
Monthly Portfolio Composition (1)

06/30/21
$193.3 billion

Item 6C

198



7/16/2021 PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/avg_mn_ylds.asp 1/2

Home ->> PMIA ->> PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields

PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields
 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

1977 5.770 5.660 5.660 5.650 5.760 5.850 5.930 6.050 6.090 6.090 6.610 6.730
1978 6.920 7.050 7.140 7.270 7.386 7.569 7.652 7.821 7.871 8.110 8.286 8.769
1979 8.777 8.904 8.820 9.082 9.046 9.224 9.202 9.528 9.259 9.814 10.223 10.218
1980 10.980 11.251 11.490 11.480 12.017 11.798 10.206 9.870 9.945 10.056 10.426 10.961
1981 10.987 11.686 11.130 11.475 12.179 11.442 12.346 12.844 12.059 12.397 11.887 11.484
1982 11.683 12.044 11.835 11.773 12.270 11.994 12.235 11.909 11.151 11.111 10.704 10.401
1983 10.251 9.887 9.688 9.868 9.527 9.600 9.879 10.076 10.202 10.182 10.164 10.227
1984 10.312 10.280 10.382 10.594 10.843 11.119 11.355 11.557 11.597 11.681 11.474 11.024
1985 10.579 10.289 10.118 10.025 10.180 9.743 9.656 9.417 9.572 9.482 9.488 9.371
1986 9.252 9.090 8.958 8.621 8.369 8.225 8.141 7.844 7.512 7.586 7.432 7.439
1987 7.365 7.157 7.205 7.044 7.294 7.289 7.464 7.562 7.712 7.825 8.121 8.071
1988 8.078 8.050 7.945 7.940 7.815 7.929 8.089 8.245 8.341 8.397 8.467 8.563
1989 8.698 8.770 8.870 8.992 9.227 9.204 9.056 8.833 8.801 8.771 8.685 8.645
1990 8.571 8.538 8.506 8.497 8.531 8.538 8.517 8.382 8.333 8.321 8.269 8.279
1991 8.164 8.002 7.775 7.666 7.374 7.169 7.098 7.072 6.859 6.719 6.591 6.318
1992 6.122 5.863 5.680 5.692 5.379 5.323 5.235 4.958 4.760 4.730 4.659 4.647
1993 4.678 4.649 4.624 4.605 4.427 4.554 4.438 4.472 4.430 4.380 4.365 4.384
1994 4.359 4.176 4.248 4.333 4.434 4.623 4.823 4.989 5.106 5.243 5.380 5.528
1995 5.612 5.779 5.934 5.960 6.008 5.997 5.972 5.910 5.832 5.784 5.805 5.748
1996 5.698 5.643 5.557 5.538 5.502 5.548 5.587 5.566 5.601 5.601 5.599 5.574
1997 5.583 5.575 5.580 5.612 5.634 5.667 5.679 5.690 5.707 5.705 5.715 5.744
1998 5.742 5.720 5.680 5.672 5.673 5.671 5.652 5.652 5.639 5.557 5.492 5.374
1999 5.265 5.210 5.136 5.119 5.086 5.095 5.178 5.225 5.274 5.391 5.484 5.639
2000 5.760 5.824 5.851 6.014 6.190 6.349 6.443 6.505 6.502 6.517 6.538 6.535
2001 6.372 6.169 5.976 5.760 5.328 4.958 4.635 4.502 4.288 3.785 3.526 3.261
2002 3.068 2.967 2.861 2.845 2.740 2.687 2.714 2.594 2.604 2.487 2.301 2.201
2003 2.103 1.945 1.904 1.858 1.769 1.697 1.653 1.632 1.635 1.596 1.572 1.545
2004 1.528 1.440 1.474 1.445 1.426 1.469 1.604 1.672 1.771 1.890 2.003 2.134
2005 2.264 2.368 2.542 2.724 2.856 2.967 3.083 3.179 3.324 3.458 3.636 3.808
2006 3.955 4.043 4.142 4.305 4.563 4.700 4.849 4.946 5.023 5.098 5.125 5.129
2007 5.156 5.181 5.214 5.222 5.248 5.250 5.255 5.253 5.231 5.137 4.962 4.801
2008 4.620 4.161 3.777 3.400 3.072 2.894 2.787 2.779 2.774 2.709 2.568 2.353
2009 2.046 1.869 1.822 1.607 1.530 1.377 1.035 0.925 0.750 0.646 0.611 0.569
2010 0.558 0.577 0.547 0.588 0.560 0.528 0.531 0.513 0.500 0.480 0.454 0.462
2011 0.538 0.512 0.500 0.588 0.413 0.448 0.381 0.408 0.378 0.385 0.401 0.382
2012 0.385 0.389 0.383 0.367 0.363 0.358 0.363 0.377 0.348 0.340 0.324 0.326
2013 0.300 0.286 0.285 0.264 0.245 0.244 0.267 0.271 0.257 0.266 0.263 0.264
2014 0.244 0.236 0.236 0.233 0.228 0.228 0.244 0.260 0.246 0.261 0.261 0.267
2015 0.262 0.266 0.278 0.283 0.290 0.299 0.320 0.330 0.337 0.357 0.374 0.400
2016 0.446 0.467 0.506 0.525 0.552 0.576 0.588 0.614 0.634 0.654 0.678 0.719
2017 0.751 0.777 0.821 0.884 0.925 0.978 1.051 1.084 1.111 1.143 1.172 1.239
2018 1.350 1.412 1.524 1.661 1.755 1.854 1.944 1.998 2.063 2.144 2.208 2.291
2019 2.355 2.392 2.436 2.445 2.449 2.428 2.379 2.341 2.280 2.190 2.103 2.043
2020 1.967 1.912 1.787 1.648 1.363 1.217 0.920 0.784 0.685 0.620 0.576 0.540

Home  | Open Government  | Careers  | Contact  | Calendar

Home PMIA Home Contacts Time Deposits LAIF

Search

Item 6C

199

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/pmia.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/pmia.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/public.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/careers/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/inside/directory.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/events-calendar.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/pmia/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/pmia/contact.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/timedeposits/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/laif.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/index.asp


7/16/2021 PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/avg_mn_ylds.asp 2/2

Home  | Comments  | Disclosure Notice  | Privacy Notice  | Accessibility Statement  | Unclaimed Property  | Site Map  | Download Adobe Reader
© 2021 California State Treasurer's Office

 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2021 0.458 0.407 0.357 0.339 0.315 0.262       

Item 6C

200

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/comments.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/disclaimer.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/privacy.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/accessibility.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/unclaimed.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/sitemap.asp
http://get.adobe.com/reader/


City of Colfax 
City Council 

Resolution NQ 29-2014 

AFFIRMING ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR FINANCIAL 
MANAGEMENT, INVESTMENT AND WHISTLEBLOWERS 

Whereas, the Colfax City Council has determined that the administrative policies for 
financial management, investment and whistleblowers are important to the smooth and 
consistent financial operations of the City; and, 

Whereas, these policies have not been updated for several years; and 

Whereas, the annual independent audit recommended such policies be updated 
and in place; and, 

Whereas, the Council has reviewed the attached policies, 

Now Therefore, Be It Resolved by the City Council of the City of Colfax that the 
administrative policies attached hereto are hereby affirmed. 

Passed and Adopted this 8th day of October by the following vote: 

Ayes: 
Noes: 
Absent: 

ATTEST: 

Douglass, Hesch, McKinney, Parnham 
None 
Barkle 

~~ Tony' sch, Mayor 

Item 6C

201



CITY OF COLFAX 
ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

Subject: 
Effective Date: 
Resolution: 

Investment Policy 
October 8,2014 
Resolution No. 29-2014 

SCOPE AND AUTHORITY 

The purpose of this policy is to establish a prudent and systematic Investment Policy, and to 
organize and formalize investment-related activities. 

The City'S Investment Policy is authorized under the California Government Code, section 
53600, et, seq.as it applies to the investment of public funds. 

It is intended that this policy cover all funds and investment activities under the direct authority 
of the City of Colfax. Investments authorized by Fiscal Agents pursuant to bonded debt are 
controlled by the terms and conditions of the specific bond, and may not necessarily coincide 
with the Investment Policy outlined herein. Investments must conform to Government Code 
Section 53600.5 concerning safekeeping of purchased securities by financial advisers, fiscal 
agent, or consultants. Wherever practical, investments made by a Fiscal Agent on behalf of the 
City will be consistent with this Policy. 

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES 

Safety - It is the primary duty and responsibility of the City Staff to protect, preserve and 
maintain cash and investments on behalf of the citizens of Colfax. 

Liquidity - An adequate percentage of the City's investment portfolio should be maintained in 
liquid short-term securities which can be converted to cash if necessary to meet disbursement 
requirements. Since all cash requirements cannot be anticipated, investments in securities with 
active secondary or resale markets is highly recommended. Emphasis should be on marketable 
securities with low sensitivity to market risk. 

Yield - Yield should become a consideration only after the basic requirements of safety and 
liquidity have been met. 

A. The overall yield should be designed to attain a market-average rate of return 
throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the City'S risk 
constraints, the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio, and State and local laws, 
ordinances or resolutions that restrict investments. 

Public Trust - All participants in the investment process shall act as custodians of the public 
trust. Investment officials shall recognize that the investment portfolio is subject to public review 
and evaluation. The overall investment program shall be designed and managed with a degree of 
professionalism that is worthy of the public trust. 

1 

Item 6C

202



Diversification - The investment portfolio will be diversified to avoid incurring unreasonable 
and avoidable risks regarding specific security types or individual financial institutions. 

A. In a diversified portfolio it must be recognized that occasional measured losses are 
inevitable, and must be considered within the context of the overall portfolio's 
investment return, provided that adequate diversification has been implemented. 

Prudence - The City adheres to the "prudent person rule" which obligates a fiduciary to insure 
that: " .. .investments shall be made with the exercise of that degree of judgment and care, under 
circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in 
the management of their own affairs, not for speculation but for investment considering the 
probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be deri ved." 

INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

The most effective method of increasing investment yields without sacrificing safety is to extend 
the investment horizon commensurate with the City'S cash requirements. To that end, improved 
cash forecasting and management is the preferred investment strategy for the City. 

A. Cash management activities include accurate cash projections, the expeditious collection 
of revenue, the control of disbursements, cost-effective banking relations, and a short
term borrowing program, when needed, that coordinates working capital requirements 
and investment opportunity. 

ALLOWABLE INVESTMENT INSTRUMENTS 

The Government Code, Sections 53601, 53601.1 and 53635 shall govern the City's allowable 
investments, and the length of those investments, unless specifically limited by this policy. 
Although the maximum maturity for any deposit or investment is five years, most investments 
should be for no longer than 2-3 years. All investments of City funds shall be made in 
accordance with California Government Code Sections 53601, et seq. and 53635 et seq., or in 
accordance with California Government Code 16429.1 authorizing investments into the State 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). Investments will be authorized by the City Manager, 
City Treasurer, Finance Director or Mayor only. 

REPORTING REQUIRMENTS 

City staff shall submit a qua11erly investment report to the City Council. The report must be 
submitted to the City Manager for the agenda within 30 days following the end of the month 
covered by the repo11, and is required under Government Code Section 53646. Such rep0l1 shall 
include at least the following information: 

• Types of investments; 
• Name of the institution in which funds are invested or deposited; 
• Date of maturity, if applicable; 
• Par and dollar amount investment for all securities; 
• Percent distribution of each type of investment or deposit; current market value as of the 

date of the report, including source of the valuation except those under LAIF; 
• Rate of interest; 

2 

Item 6C

203



• A verage weighted yield of all investments; 
• A statement relating the report to the City's Investment Policy; and 
• A statement that there are sufficient funds to meet the City's next six months' financial 

obligations. 

Staff shall also submit the above information annually to the external auditors. 

Periodic reports shall be prepared as required by circumstances or as directed by Council. Such 
circumstances include, but are not limited to, notification that any City investment may be in 
jeopardy or a sudden and significant drop in the current market value of any City investment. 

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND GENERAL GUIDELINES 

A system of internal control shall be implemented to prevent losses of public funds arising from 
fraud, employee error, misrepresentation of third parties, unanticipated changes in financial 
markets, or impmdent actions by employees and officers of the City. 

Controls deemed most important include: 
• The control of collusion and separation of duties; 
• Custodial safekeeping of funds invested or on deposit; 
• Minimizing the number of authorized Investment Officers; and 
• Written documentation of procedures and transactions. 

In selecting financial institutions for the deposit or investment of City funds, the City shall 
consider the credit-worthiness of the institution. Such credit-worthiness shall be monitored on a 
regular basis throughout the period in which City funds are deposited or invested. 

A. Any deposit or investment of funds shall be in writing, signed by the City and the 
authorized representative of the institution. 

B. All transfers must be made by authorized personnel and properly logged and 
documented. 

City staff shall encourage peer review of the City's investments and investment practices. In 
addition, the City's cash management and investment practices shall be included in any outside 
financial audit of the City. 

An annual Cash Flow Forecast may be prepared by the City, and would be used to assist in the 
development of the annual operating budget for the City. 

This Investment Policy shall be reviewed by the City Council on an annual basis as part of the 
budget process. 

3 

Item 6C

204



City of Colfax Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Personnel Handbook and 
Compensation Updates Staff Report July 28, 2021 

Staff Report to City Council 
FOR THE JULY 28, 2021 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
Prepared by: Shanna Stahl, Administrative Analyst and Laurie Van Groningen, Finance 

Director 
Subject: FY2021-2022 Personnel Handbook and Compensation Updates 

   Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   √ Funded:  Un-funded: Amount:  Fund(s):  

Summary/Background 

The Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Colfax and I.U.O.E Stationary Engineers, Local 39 
(Union) was approved at the regularly scheduled City Council meeting on June 23, 2021.  Due to the timing 
of the approval, the regularly reported change in salary schedules was not reported at that meeting along with 
other annual rate adjustments. 
The City salary schedules have been adjusted for the fiscal year 2021-2022 based on the final negotiated 
contract and are attached to this report. Consistent with previous years and the adopted operating budget, the 
City has applied the revisions to both represented and non-represented employees’ salary schedules. 
A summary of the changes made to the salary schedules and other benefits based on the new contract are 
listed below*: 

1. Cost of Living Adjustments
a. Effective July 1, 2021 a base wage increase of 2% was applied to salary wage schedules.
b. Cost of living adjustments for July 1, 2022, 2023, 2024 and 2025 will be based on the average

of the two CPI’s of San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose Urban Wage Earners and Clerical
Workers and United States City Average Urban Wage Earners and Clerk workers.  Minimum
increase of 2% and maximum increase of 4%.

2. Salary Schedules
a. Employees hired prior to July 1, 2021: The salary range for existing employees will be

converted from the current 5-step salary range to a 9-step salary range.  The new salary range
will consist of 9 steps, with 5% between existing steps 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5, and 2.5% between
additional steps 6, 7, 8 and 9.  Employees will advance through the salary range on an annual
basis consistent with City personnel policies and procedures.

b. Employees hired on or after July 1, 2021:  The salary range for new hires will consist of 11
steps, with 2.5% between steps.  The top step of the salary range for new hires will be
approximately 5% lower than the new top step for current employees.  Employees will
advance through the salary range on an annual basis consistent with City personnel policies
and procedures.

3. Standby Pay
a. Employees required to be on standby outside of their normal working hours will receive

$3.00 (previously $2.50) for each hour of assigned standby time.
4. Compensatory Time Off

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Information Only. 

Item 6D

205



 

City of Colfax Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Personnel Handbook and  
Compensation Updates Staff Report July 28, 2021 

  

a. The City generally compensates for overtime by providing Compensatory Time Off (CTO) 
at the rate of time and one-half.  Effective July 1, 2021, CTO time will be capped at 60 
hours.  All future accrued CTO time over the 60-hour cap will be paid out as overtime pay 
when occurred. Existing accrued CTO banked hours over the new 60-hour cap will be 
"frozen" with no further hours accruing.  

b. Upon request and approval of the City Manager, employees may cash out accrued CTO 
hours, including any accrued/frozen CTO hours over the new 60-hour cap, provided that 
notice is given during the month of December and will be paid out not later than the second 
pay period in January.  An effort is to be made to reduce the frozen hours by scheduling time 
off with the employee's supervisor.  CTO leave requires a minimum of 3 work-days advance 
notice.   

5. Medical Benefits  
a. The City contributes up to $1,725 per month towards the premium cost for City provided 

medical, dental, and vision insurance coverage – costs over the city contribution are paid by 
the employee.  Effective January 1, 2024, the City will contribute up to $1,875 per month 
towards the premium costs. 

b. Employees hired prior to July 1, 2021 having other medical benefits in place and providing 
evidence to the City of those benefits will receive an in-lieu taxable stipend of $800 per 
month as long as they maintain those benefits.  Employees hired July 1, 2021 or later are 
eligible for an in-lieu taxable stipend of $400 per month. 

 
*The City of Colfax Employee handbook will be updated to reflect these changes 
 

 

  

Item 6D

206



1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
City Clerk Monthly 4,688.59$      4,923.02$      5,169.17$        5,427.63$        5,699.01$        5,841.48$        5,987.52$        6,137.21$        6,290.64$        

Hourly 27.05$            28.40$            29.82$             31.31$             32.88$             33.70$             34.54$             35.41$             36.29$             
Annual 56,263.06$    59,076.21$    62,030.02$     65,131.52$     68,388.10$     70,097.80$     71,850.25$     73,646.50$     75,487.67$     

Accounting Technician Monthly 4,354.97$      4,572.71$      4,801.35$        5,041.42$        5,293.49$        5,425.83$        5,561.47$        5,700.51$        5,843.02$        
 Hourly 25.12$            26.38$            27.70$             29.09$             30.54$             31.30$             32.09$             32.89$             33.71$             

Annual 52,259.59$    54,872.57$    57,616.20$     60,497.01$     63,521.86$     65,109.90$     66,737.65$     68,406.09$     70,116.24$     
Public Works Director Monthly 7,744.81$      8,132.05$      8,538.65$        8,965.58$        9,413.86$        9,649.21$        9,890.44$        10,137.70$     10,391.14$     

Hourly 44.68$            46.92$            49.26$             51.72$             54.31$             55.67$             57.06$             58.49$             59.95$             
Annual 92,937.71$    97,584.59$    102,463.82$   107,587.02$   112,966.37$   115,790.53$   118,685.29$   121,652.42$   124,693.73$   

Customer Service Rep Monthly 2,871.69$      3,015.28$      3,166.04$        3,324.34$        3,490.56$        3,490.56$        3,490.56$        3,490.56$        3,490.56$        
Hourly 16.90$            17.74$            18.63$             19.56$             20.54$             21.05$             21.58$             22.12$             22.67$             
Annual 34,460.31$    36,183.33$    37,992.49$     39,892.12$     41,886.72$     41,886.72$     41,886.72$     41,886.72$     41,886.72$     

Administrative Analyst Monthly 5,293.39$      5,558.59$      5,836.17$        6,127.89$        6,433.75$        6,594.60$        6,759.46$        6,928.45$        7,101.66$        
Hourly 30.54$            32.07$            33.67$             35.35$             37.12$             38.05$             39.00$             39.97$             40.97$             
Annual 63,520.70$    66,703.10$    70,034.02$     73,534.66$     77,205.02$     79,135.15$     81,113.53$     83,141.37$     85,219.90$     

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
City Clerk Monthly 4,688.59$      4,805.80$      4,925.95$        5,049.10$        5,175.32$        5,304.71$        5,437.32$        5,573.26$        5,712.59$        5,855.40$        6,001.79$        

Hourly 27.05$            27.73$            28.42$             29.13$             29.86$             30.60$             31.37$             32.15$             32.96$             33.78$             34.63$             
Annual 56,263.06$    57,669.64$    59,111.38$     60,589.16$     62,103.89$     63,656.49$     65,247.90$     66,879.10$     68,551.07$     70,264.85$     72,021.47$     

Accounting Technician Monthly 4,354.97$      4,463.84$      4,575.44$        4,689.82$        4,807.07$        4,927.24$        5,050.43$        5,176.69$        5,306.10$        5,438.76$        5,574.72$        
 Hourly 25.12$            25.75$            26.40$             27.06$             27.73$             28.43$             29.14$             29.87$             30.61$             31.38$             32.16$             

Annual 52,259.59$    53,566.08$    54,905.23$     56,277.86$     57,684.81$     59,126.93$     60,605.10$     62,120.23$     63,673.23$     65,265.07$     66,896.69$     
Public Works Director Monthly 7,744.81$      7,938.43$      8,136.89$        8,340.31$        8,548.82$        8,762.54$        8,981.60$        9,206.14$        9,436.30$        9,672.21$        9,914.01$        

Hourly 44.68$            45.80$            46.94$             48.12$             49.32$             50.55$             51.82$             53.11$             54.44$             55.80$             57.20$             
Annual 92,937.71$    95,261.15$    97,642.68$     100,083.75$   102,585.84$   105,150.49$   107,779.25$   110,473.73$   113,235.57$   116,066.46$   118,968.13$   

Customer Service Rep Monthly 2,871.69$      3,015.28$      3,166.04$        3,324.34$        3,490.56$        3,490.56$        3,490.56$        3,490.56$        3,490.56$        3,490.56$        3,490.56$        
Hourly 16.90$            17.32$            17.75$             18.20$             18.65$             19.12$             19.60$             20.09$             20.59$             21.10$             21.63$             
Annual 34,460.31$    34,460.31$    34,460.31$     34,460.31$     34,460.31$     34,460.31$     34,460.31$     34,460.31$     34,460.31$     34,460.31$     34,460.31$     

Administrative Analyst Monthly 5,293.39$      5,425.73$      5,561.37$        5,700.40$        5,842.91$        5,988.99$        6,138.71$        6,292.18$        6,449.48$        6,610.72$        6,775.99$        
Hourly 30.54$            31.30$            32.08$             32.89$             33.71$             34.55$             35.42$             36.30$             37.21$             38.14$             39.09$             
Annual 63,520.70$    65,108.72$    66,736.44$     68,404.85$     70,114.97$     71,867.85$     73,664.54$     75,506.16$     77,393.81$     79,328.66$     81,311.87$     

Extended Pay Scale as of 7/1/21 for existing non-represented employees

Extended Pay Scale as of 7/1/21 for  non-represented employees hired after 7/1/21
Step

Step

Item 6D

207



CPI Increase 07/01/2021: 2.00%

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
Clerk Typist* Monthly 2,601.46$    2,732.53$    2,867.57$    3,010.55$    3,163.46$    3,242.54$       3,323.61$       3,406.70$       3,491.86$       

Hourly 15.01$          15.76$          16.54$          17.37$          18.25$          18.71$            19.17$            19.65$            20.15$            
Annual 31,217.54$  32,790.33$  34,410.78$  36,126.56$  37,961.48$  38,910.52$     39,883.28$     40,880.36$     41,902.37$     

Lead Mechanic* Monthly 4,412.56$    4,634.97$    4,867.31$    5,111.57$    5,365.76$    5,499.91$       5,637.40$       5,778.34$       5,922.80$       
Hourly 25.46$          26.74$          28.08$          29.49$          30.96$          31.73$            32.52$            33.34$            34.17$            
Annual 52,950.66$  55,619.64$  58,407.78$  61,338.89$  64,389.15$  65,998.88$     67,648.85$     69,340.07$     71,073.58$     

Maintenance Worker I* Monthly 3,046.29$    3,197.22$    3,354.10$    3,524.88$    3,701.62$    3,794.16$       3,889.02$       3,986.24$       4,085.90$       
Hourly 17.57$          18.45$          19.35$          20.34$          21.36$          21.89$            22.44$            23.00$            23.57$            
Annual 36,555.50$  38,366.59$  40,249.18$  42,298.57$  44,419.46$  45,529.95$     46,668.19$     47,834.90$     49,030.77$     

Maintenance Worker II* Monthly 3,753.25$    3,939.92$    4,136.52$    4,343.05$    4,559.51$    4,673.50$       4,790.33$       4,910.09$       5,032.84$       
Hourly 21.65$          22.73$          23.86$          25.06$          26.30$          26.96$            27.64$            28.33$            29.04$            
Annual 45,039.04$  47,279.08$  49,638.27$  52,116.61$  54,714.10$  56,081.95$     57,484.00$     58,921.10$     60,394.13$     

PW -  Working Supervisor Monthly 4,821.64$    5,062.72$    5,315.86$    5,581.65$    5,860.73$    6,007.25$       6,157.43$       6,311.37$       6,469.15$       
Hourly 27.82$          29.21$          30.67$          32.20$          33.81$          34.66$            35.52$            36.41$            37.32$            
Annual 57,859.68$  60,752.67$  63,790.30$  66,979.81$  70,328.80$  72,087.02$     73,889.20$     75,736.43$     77,629.84$     

Operator in Training* Monthly 3,443.46$    3,614.24$    3,796.94$    3,983.61$    4,184.18$    4,288.79$       4,396.01$       4,505.91$       4,618.55$       
Hourly 19.87$          20.85$          21.91$          22.98$          24.14$          24.74$            25.36$            26.00$            26.65$            
Annual 41,321.54$  43,370.93$  45,563.31$  47,803.34$  50,210.19$  51,465.45$     52,752.08$     54,070.89$     55,422.66$     

Operator II* Monthly 4,609.15$    4,839.51$    5,079.80$    5,333.99$    5,598.11$    5,738.06$       5,881.51$       6,028.55$       6,179.26$       
Hourly 26.59$          27.92$          29.31$          30.77$          32.30$          33.10$            33.93$            34.78$            35.65$            
Annual 55,309.85$  58,074.15$  60,957.61$  64,007.87$  67,177.28$  68,856.71$     70,578.13$     72,342.59$     74,151.15$     

Operator II* Monthly 4,701.34$    4,936.30$    5,181.40$    5,440.67$    5,710.07$    5,852.82$       5,999.14$       6,149.12$       6,302.85$       
GFE Only** Hourly 27.12$          28.48$          29.89$          31.39$          32.94$          33.77$            34.61$            35.48$            36.36$            

Annual 56,416.05$  59,235.64$  62,176.76$  65,288.03$  68,520.83$  70,233.85$     71,989.70$     73,789.44$     75,634.17$     
Operator III* Monthly 5,204.91$    5,467.04$    5,739.10$    6,025.06$    6,328.90$    6,487.12$       6,649.30$       6,815.53$       6,985.92$       

Hourly 30.03$          31.54$          33.11$          34.76$          36.51$          37.43$            38.36$            39.32$            40.30$            
Annual 62,458.91$  65,604.49$  68,869.23$  72,300.77$  75,946.79$  77,845.46$     79,791.60$     81,786.39$     83,831.05$     

Chief Plant Operator* Monthly 6,555.29$    6,886.92$    7,232.46$    7,591.90$    7,971.20$    8,170.48$       8,374.74$       8,584.11$       8,798.71$       
 Hourly 37.82$          39.73$          41.73$          43.80$          45.99$          47.14$            48.32$            49.52$            50.76$            

Annual 78,663.43$  82,643.07$  86,789.52$  91,102.79$  95,654.35$  98,045.71$     100,496.85$  103,009.27$  105,584.50$  
Administrative Assistant/ Monthly 4,354.97$    4,573.41$    4,801.78$    5,038.10$    5,294.27$    5,426.63$       5,562.29$       5,701.35$       5,843.89$       
Community Development* Hourly 25.12$          26.39$          27.70$          29.07$          30.54$          31.31$            32.09$            32.89$            33.71$            

Annual 52,259.59$  54,880.91$  57,621.38$  60,457.17$  63,531.26$  65,119.55$     66,747.54$     68,416.22$     70,126.63$     

CPI Increase 07/01/2021: 2.0%

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
Clerk Typist* Monthly 2,601.46$    2,666.50$    2,733.16$    2,801.49$    2,871.53$    2,943.31$       3,016.90$       3,092.32$       3,169.63$       3,248.87$       3,330.09$       

Hourly 15.01$          15.38$          15.77$          16.16$          16.57$          16.98$            17.41$            17.84$            18.29$            18.74$            19.21$            
Annual 31,217.54$  31,997.98$  32,797.93$  33,617.87$  34,458.32$  35,319.78$     36,202.77$     37,107.84$     38,035.54$     38,986.43$     39,961.09$     

Lead Mechanic* Monthly 4,412.56$    4,522.87$    4,635.94$    4,751.84$    4,870.64$    4,992.40$       5,117.21$       5,245.14$       5,376.27$       5,510.68$       5,648.44$       
Hourly 25.46$          26.09$          26.75$          27.41$          28.10$          28.80$            29.52$            30.26$            31.02$            31.79$            32.59$            
Annual 52,950.66$  54,274.43$  55,631.29$  57,022.07$  58,447.63$  59,908.82$     61,406.54$     62,941.70$     64,515.24$     66,128.12$     67,781.33$     

Maintenance Worker I* Monthly 3,046.29$    3,122.45$    3,200.51$    3,280.52$    3,362.54$    3,446.60$       3,532.76$       3,621.08$       3,711.61$       3,804.40$       3,899.51$       
Hourly 17.57$          18.01$          18.46$          18.93$          19.40$          19.88$            20.38$            20.89$            21.41$            21.95$            22.50$            
Annual 36,555.50$  37,469.39$  38,406.12$  39,366.27$  40,350.43$  41,359.19$     42,393.17$     43,453.00$     44,539.33$     45,652.81$     46,794.13$     

Maintenance Worker II* Monthly 3,753.25$    3,862.67$    4,055.41$    4,257.89$    4,470.11$    4,246.46$       4,352.62$       4,461.44$       4,572.98$       4,687.30$       4,804.48$       
Hourly 21.65$          22.19$          22.75$          23.32$          23.90$          24.50$            25.11$            25.74$            26.38$            27.04$            27.72$            
Annual 45,039.04$  46,352.04$  48,664.97$  51,094.71$  53,641.27$  50,957.54$     52,231.48$     53,537.27$     54,875.70$     56,247.59$     57,653.78$     

PW -  Working Supervisor Monthly 4,821.64$    4,942.18$    5,065.74$    5,192.38$    5,322.19$    5,455.24$       5,591.62$       5,731.41$       5,874.70$       6,021.57$       6,172.11$       
Hourly 27.82$          28.51$          29.23$          29.96$          30.70$          31.47$            32.26$            33.07$            33.89$            34.74$            35.61$            
Annual 57,859.68$  59,306.17$  60,788.83$  62,308.55$  63,866.26$  65,462.92$     67,099.49$     68,776.98$     70,496.40$     72,258.81$     74,065.28$     

Operator in Training* Monthly 3,443.46$    3,529.55$    3,617.79$    3,708.23$    3,800.94$    3,895.96$       3,993.36$       4,093.19$       4,195.52$       4,300.41$       4,407.92$       
Hourly 19.87$          20.36$          20.87$          21.39$          21.93$          22.48$            23.04$            23.61$            24.20$            24.81$            25.43$            
Annual 41,321.54$  42,354.57$  43,413.44$  44,498.77$  45,611.24$  46,751.52$     47,920.31$     49,118.32$     50,346.28$     51,604.94$     52,895.06$     

Operator II* Monthly 4,609.15$    4,724.38$    4,842.49$    4,963.56$    5,087.64$    5,214.84$       5,345.21$       5,478.84$       5,615.81$       5,756.20$       5,900.11$       
Hourly 26.59$          27.26$          27.94$          28.64$          29.35$          30.09$            30.84$            31.61$            32.40$            33.21$            34.04$            
Annual 55,309.85$  56,692.60$  58,109.91$  59,562.66$  61,051.73$  62,578.02$     64,142.47$     65,746.03$     67,389.68$     69,074.43$     70,801.29$     

Operator III* Monthly 5,204.91$    5,335.03$    5,468.41$    5,605.12$    5,745.25$    5,888.88$       6,036.10$       6,187.00$       6,341.68$       6,500.22$       6,662.72$       
Hourly 30.03$          30.78$          31.55$          32.34$          33.15$          33.97$            34.82$            35.69$            36.59$            37.50$            38.44$            
Annual 62,458.91$  64,020.38$  65,620.89$  67,261.41$  68,942.95$  70,666.52$     72,433.18$     74,244.01$     76,100.11$     78,002.62$     79,952.68$     

Chief Plant Operator* Monthly 6,555.29$    6,719.17$    6,887.15$    7,059.33$    7,235.81$    7,416.70$       7,602.12$       7,792.17$       7,986.98$       8,186.65$       8,391.32$       
 Hourly 37.82$          38.76$          39.73$          40.73$          41.75$          42.79$            43.86$            44.95$            46.08$            47.23$            48.41$            

Annual 78,663.43$  80,630.02$  82,645.77$  84,711.91$  86,829.71$  89,000.45$     91,225.46$     93,506.10$     95,843.75$     98,239.85$     100,695.84$  
Administrative Assistant/ Monthly 4,354.97$    4,463.84$    4,575.44$    4,689.82$    4,807.07$    4,927.24$       5,050.43$       5,176.69$       5,306.10$       5,438.76$       5,574.72$       
Community Development* Hourly 25.12$          25.75$          26.40$          27.06$          27.73$          28.43$            29.14$            29.87$            30.61$            31.38$            32.16$            

Annual 52,259.59$  53,566.08$  54,905.23$  56,277.86$  57,684.81$  59,126.93$     60,605.10$     62,120.23$     63,673.23$     65,265.07$     66,896.69$     

City of Colfax - Salary Range Schedule FY2021-2022
Represented Employees

Effective 7/1/21 - Schedule A With CPI Increase Hired prior to 7/1/21

Step

City of Colfax - Salary Range Schedule FY2021-2022
Represented Employees

Effective 7/1/21 - Schedule B Hired after 7/1/21

Step

Item 6D

208



City of Colfax Caltrans Sustainable Communities Grant – Agreement 
Authority Staff Report March 24, 2021 

Staff Report to City Council 
FOR JULY 28, 2021 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
Prepared by: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
Subject: Caltrans Sustainable Communities Grant – Agreement Authority 

   Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A: √ Funded:  Un-funded: Amount: Fund(s): 

Summary/Background 
Colfax was successfully awarded the Community Sustainable Community Grant (Complete Street Plan) from 
Caltrans in the amount of $211,030 with an 11% local match of $27,341. In order to receive the Grant funding, 
Caltrans requires the governing body to execute a resolution authorizing the appropriate staff member to sign 
the agreement and any future amendments; therefore, staff is requesting Council authorize the City Manager to 
execute the agreement and any future amendments for the Community Sustainability Community Grant 
funding.  

Fiscal Impacts 
N/A 

Attachments: 
1. Resolution __-2021

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the City Manager to execute all restricted grant agreements and 
any amendments with the California Department of Transportation for the City of Colfax Complete Street 
Plan. 

Item 6E

209



City of Colfax 1 
Resolution __-2021 Caltrans Sustainability Communities Grant – 

Agreement Authority 
 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 
Resolution № __-2021 

 

 AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ALL RESTRICTED 
GRANT AGREEMENTS AND ANY AMENDMENTS WITH THE 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE CITY OF 
COLFAX COMPLETE STREET PLAN 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Colfax is eligible to receive Federal and/or State 

funding for certain transportation planning related plans, through the California Department of 
Transportation; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, a Restricted Grant Agreement is needed to be executed with the California 
Department of Transportation before such funds can be claimed through the Transportation 
Planning Grant Programs; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Colfax wishes to delegate authorization to execute these agreements 
and any amendments thereto. 
  
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax 
authorizes the City Manager to execute all Restricted Grant Agreements and any amendments with 
the California Department of Transportation for the City of Colfax Complete Street Plan. 
  
 THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARY ADOPTED at the 
regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 28th day of July 2021 by the 
following vote of the Council:  
 
AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSTAIN:  
ABSENT:   

______________________________ 
        Sean Lomen, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:                                                                                                                                 
 
___________________________________ 
Amy Lind, Interim City Clerk 

Item 6E

210



City of Colfax  Homelessness Ad Hoc Committee 
Staff Report July 28, 2021 

Staff Report to City Council 
FOR THE JULY 28, 2021 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
Prepared by: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
Subject: Homelessness Ad hoc Committee 

   Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   √ Funded:  Un-funded: Amount:  Fund(s):  

Summary/Background 
Council and staff attended the recent Homelessness Summit hosted by Placer County. The Homelessness 
Summit was intended to be the kick-off for a Homelessness Regional Working Group established by Placer 
County. Subsequently, Placer County Board of Supervisors has created the aforementioned working group that 
is comprised of two representatives of each jurisdiction including the Board of Supervisor Ad hoc members and 
the non-profits that deal specifically in this field.  

The Homelessness Regional Working Group will work with the County’s consultant to review existing 
resources for displaced individuals within the County boundaries, then recommend program 
coalescence/enhancements to the Board of Supervisors. The Colfax Homelessness Ad hoc committee would 
participate in this process. 

Staff is recommending Council consider appointing two members of the body as the Homelessness Ad hoc 
committee to serve on the Homelessness Regional Working Group.   

Fiscal Impacts 
N/A  

Attachments: 
1. N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discuss and consider establishing a Homelessness Ad hoc Committee to 
represent Colfax on the Placer County Homelessness Regional Workshop Group. 

Item 9A

211


	5A  2021-2029 Housing Element Staff Report.pdf
	Summary/Background
	Attachments
	Exhibit 1 - Colfax_Addendum_Draft.pdf
	1. Addendum to the Adopted General Plan EIR
	1.1 Background
	1.2 Project Summary
	1.3 Purpose of an EIR Addendum

	2. CEQA Analysis
	2.1 Environmental Analysis
	2.2 Finding


	COLFAX_2021-2029 Housing_Element_Adoption Draft_7.21.21.pdf
	COLX-01.0_PRD_Cover_title_back_v01.pdf
	COLFAX_2021-2029 Housing_Element_Adoption Draft_7.21.pdf
	COLX-01.0_PRD_Cover_title_back_v01
	COLX-01.0_PRD_Cover_title_back_v01
	Blank Page
	Blank Page


	6A Minutes.pdf
	8 COUNCIL AND STAFF
	9 GOOD OF THE ORDER
	Councilmember Ackerman spoke of the fire service split vote and said he hopes it can be seen as a positive in the future.
	Mayor Lomen spoke on the same issue stating he was concerned the fire service was approved.
	10 ADJOURNMENT
	As there was no further business on the agenda, Mayor Lomen adjourned the meeting, by motion and without objection at 8:29 PM
	Respectfully submitted to City Council this 28th day of July, 2021.
	_______________________________________________
	Amy Lind, Interim City Clerk
	Regular Meeting Minutes of 7-14-2021.pdf
	8 COUNCIL AND STAFF
	9 GOOD OF THE ORDER
	Councilmember Mendoza reported further on the Chinese Monument and location and the Colfax Historic Society involvement.
	Councilmember Ackerman spoke about the successful 3rd of July event in Colfax.
	Mayor Pro Tem Burruss proposed having reoccurring weekly events in town, seasonally, and possibly partner with existing events in town.
	Mayor Lomen thanked Andrea Harrison, the Chamber of Commerce and the Green Machine, Placer County Sheriffs, Placer County Fire and Cal Fire, for their support at the 3rd of July event.
	10 ADJOURNMENT
	As there was no further business on the agenda, Mayor Lomen adjourned the meeting, by motion and without objection at 7:11 PM.
	Respectfully submitted to City Council this 28th day of July 2021.
	_______________________________________________
	Amy Lind, Interim City Clerk


	6B June 2021 Cash summary.pdf
	2021-12 Jun Staff Report - Cash Summary.pdf
	2021-12 Cash Balance by Fund.pdf
	2021-12 Cash Receipts June 2021.pdf
	2021-12 AP Checks.pdf
	21-12 Cash Summary Jun 2021.pdf
	2021-12 Jun Cash Balance Graph.pdf

	6C  Quarterly Investment Report 06.30.21.pdf
	PMIA - LAIF Performance Report.pdf
	Treasury Report QE 06.30.21.pdf
	PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields.pdf
	SR07282021 - Quarterly Investment Report 06.30.21.pdf




